
City of Lemon Grove
City Council Regular Meeting Agenda

Tuesday, October 4, 2016, 6: 00 p. m. 
Lemon Grove Community Center

3146 School Lane, Lemon Grove, CA

The City Council also sits as the Lemon Grove Housing Authority, Lemon Grove Sanitation District
Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board, 

and Lemon Grove Successor Agency

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

Changes to the Agenda

Presentation — New Employee Introduction

Kecia Carrasco, Associate Accountant

Reggie Lawson, Park Ranger

Francisco Rodriguez, Sanitation Tech I

Public Comment

Note: In accordance with State Law, the general public may bring forward an item not scheduled on the
agenda; however, the City Council may not take any action at this meeting. If appropriate, the item will
be referred to staff or placed on a future agenda.) 

1. Consent Calendar

Note: The items listed on the Consent Calendar will be enacted in one motion unless removed from

the Consent Calendar by Council, staff, or the public. Items that are pulled will be considered at the
end of the agenda.) 

A. Approval of Meeting Minutes
September 20, 2016 — Regular Meeting
Members present: Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, and Vasquez

B City of Lemon Grove Payment Demands
Reference: Gilbert Rojas, Interim Finance Director

Recommendation: Ratify Demands

C. Waive Full Text Reading of All Ordinances on the Agenda

Reference: Jim P. Lough, City Attorney
Recommendation: Waive the full text reading of all ordinances included in this

agenda; Ordinances shall be introduced and adopted by title

only

D. Award a Contract for the FY 2016- 2017 Sewer Capital Improvements Project: Sewer

Upsizing, Replacement and Maintenance

The Lemon Grove Sanitation District will consider a resolution awarding a construction
contract for the FY 2016- 2017 Sewer Capital Improvements Project to SC Valley
Engineering, Inc., Dokken Engineering, Ninyo and Moore, and D -Max Engineering with
the project budget not to exceed $ 1, 297, 015. 

Reference: Tim Gabrielson, District Engineer

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution



E, Second Amendment to Option Agreement Between City of Lemon Grove and the San
Diego Community Land Trust for 8084 Lemon Grove Way

The City Council will consider a resolution approving resolution amending the Option
Agreement to provide a second six month time extension. 

Reference: David De Vries, Development Services Director
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

2, Public Hearing to Consider Planned Development Permit PDP150- 0003, Tentative Map TMO- 
000- 0062, General Plan Amendment GPA -150- 0003, and Zoning Amendment ZA1- 500- 0004
Authorizing a 24 -Lot Subdivision and Construction of 20 Dwelling Units on 2. 064 Acres at the
Southwest Corner of Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas

The City Council will conduct a public hearing, consider resolutions certifying Mitigated
Negative Declaration, conditionally approving Tentative Map TMO- 000- 0062, conditionally
approving Planned Development Permit PDP -150-0003 for 20 residential dwelling units, and
Introducing and conducting first reading of Ordinance No. 440 approving a Zoning Amendment, 

Reference: Eric Craig, Associate Planner
David De Vries, Development Services Director

Recommendation: Conduct Public Hearing, Adopt Resolutions, Introduce Ordinance

3, Revised General Reserve Policy

The City Council will consider revisions to the City Council' s General Fund reserve policy. 

Reference: Gilbert Rojas, Interim Finance Director
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

City Council Oral Comments and Reports on Meetings Attended at the Expense of the City. 

GC 53232. 3 ( d) states that members of a legislative body shall provide brief reports on meetings
attended at the expense of the local agency at the next regular meeting of the legislative body.) 

Department Director Reports ( Non -Action Items) 

Adjournment

rr corinpliaAncewith IN:" i mardransl   provide specialaI < cx,'a: pirnrirnu datre, ins for Ip irons, ttr ttr ataClrtie ; fte, t a"AIC' ta}, pfAe t 6pf of Lorrain t irrama, r+milIl
irawhoAs s , . , ac eE6, attend a Airre / oir Ip air6 p mtA iin me r.' 61ng of Ot e ( AY f„, e AAAu dl Vt ^ fe; aa raeta,uirar mAAr; fh wssra>t ai wea, Iru Baas

r

a

drata
t the: 

ly ff

la
ekHall(

t19) tt2tr,. t 800 ear urraalll :,<< Are,[,- a( ra VA:^ ir r rarpGrtirr b ¢; cae trrm pr' OIr In hrr rAa, athng A' taall aArtr;: u da Ipa rAV et is arlvAr Ai Il aHe for
t



MINUTES OF A MEETING OF

THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

September 20, 2016

The City Council also sits as the Lemon Grove Housing Authority, Lemon Grove Sanitation District
Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board, and Lemon Grove

Successor Agency

Call to Order

Members present: Mayor Pro Tem George Gastil, Councilmember Jerry Jones, and Councilmember
Racquel Vasquez. 

Members absent: Mayor Mary Sessom. 

City Staff present: Lydia Romero, City ManEbrt(° r, Davi(l DeVries, Develop nrril Servir f? w Director; 
Daryn Drum, Division Fire Chief; Miranda Evans„ / ssi lant Planner; Tim I ty Engjneer 

James P. Lough, City Attorney; Mike James, l"lu blic Woiks Director; Lt. May, Sheriff' s Ct r: f
Gilbert Rojas, Interim Finance Director; and Laureen Ryan, Administrative Analyst, 

Public Comment

John L. Wood commented on the American flag at the Toyota dealership. 

Lani Stacks commented on the Lemon Grove Pet Store and on treatment of animals in pet
stores. 

1. Consent Calendar

A. Approval of City Council Minutes
September 6, 2016 Regular Meeting

B. Ratification of Payment Demands

C. Waive Full Text Reading of All Ordinances and Resolutions on the Agenda
D. Award a Professional Services Agreement for Landscape Management Services to

Aztec Landscaping, Incorporate
E. Preparation and Submittal of the Urban Rivers Grant Application

Action: Motion by Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember Vasquez, to
approve the Consent Calendar passed, by the following vote: 

Ayes: Gastil, Jones, Vasquez

Absent: Sessom, Mendoza

Resolution No. 2016- 3463: Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, 
California: Awarding a Professional Services Agreement for Landscape Management Services to
Aztec Landscaping, Incorporate

Resolution No. 2016- 3464: Resolution of the Lemon Grove ;City Council Approving
Preparation and Submittal of the Urban Rivers Grant Application Under the Water Quality, 
Supply, and Infrastructure Improvement Act of 2014 ( Proposition 1) 

Mayor Pro Tem Gastil moved item number 3 to be discussed prior to item number 2



3. Next Generation Regional Communications System Agreement, First Amendment

Lydia Romero reporled Uh 0jj,, [`4"'giorjal (" ol System partnership agreement was
established in ' 1995, Yhe Original agreernerit c,,xr6red on March 6, 2010 and was subsequently
extended in 20 10 ;) 1 id 2013, Du ri lg t1 v ext(,msion period, a Committee was formed to
research the rp,g jo , j needs and to work with consultants to develop
requirements for the Next Generation Regional Communications System ( NextGen RCS). The

Committee then developed recommendations for cost apportionment and system governance
and drafted the NextGen RCS Aqreement. 

hi Curnruittee iRcYUdeiJ a : Nvrp n r representative who reported updates at the city
mnGn mDr op' s rlon| hlyMheeU m. G VVi| tv^ RCS Manager, also presented periodic updates
al the /* nth| yoh/ ml8 agerr eehmgs l[b ' e|Vog Grove City Council reviewed and approved
the Next(' 31( m RCS /\ gM9e ml6o< m FerbrW,, ry3^ 2014, 

The NnxtGen RCS 20 -year agreement defines the terms and conditions ofparli: ipadnn in the
new system. The NextGen RCS infrastructure has two components: 1) the backbone

k| inf[ ast[ mctu, including Hie uip0 q1amd seruk es to d H* er8 P25 Trun'ked Voice Land K8Obi| S
Radio Sysfer0, Microwave ' I &@nspbrtN twopk, arul MN& z| Aid ConxeDt/ oDa| Radio System; and
2) the partic| f,)ajjng a9ericies' m[[ rW lun, i nN/ t and services to connect to the RCS, 
including udimg 9 Vcy- ovvM d () r leased connectivity, | sp i center equipment, and subscriber

radios and ancillary devices. The NextGenRCS Agreennentincludes: 
o Board ofDineotors- the new Agreement specifies that a city manager serves on the

board. 

o Cost Apportionment for NextCSery SysteMm Shared Infrastructure - the new Agreement
specifies the methodology u$(,,( to appmKinn the shared costs among all parties to the
Agreement. Them%s,t| sb4,,joadonthe total number nfradios each agency
operates nnthe RCS. 

o Financing - the new Agreement indicates that the County will make available o finance
mechanism for parties that choose to finance the infrastructure costs rather than pay the
costs upfront. The financing opportunity will a|| nvv the City to spread its shared
infrastructure coots over an estimated ten- year period. 

The First Amendment to the NextGen RCS agreement amends the final system costs from the
105 million estimated costs to the awarded contract costa of $ 70. 005207 million. Also

included is the final cost for each participating agenoy, including the cost to finance the e: ency' sinfrastructure costs. 

Lemon Grove' s share ofthe NextGon RCS system is$ 422. 100; the cost tofinance the system
over 10- yearperiod is $ 48. 954 per year. The interest nate to finance the system is 2. 79%. If
an agency chooses to pay the cost of its system share in fu||, payment must be made nt e
County ofSan Diego bySeptember 30 2010 Should t '' ays nn
payment isdue June 1"/ nfeach year. At any hmeanagen

agency

ful| o-- d` 
the debt early. 

portion ' — retire

The City' s share of the NexiGon RCS system was not included in the FY 10- 17 Budget t the

time of the budget development those costs were unavailable. To remit Lemon Grove' sfullsystemcost Vf$ 422. 10G by the September 30m date. the City Council would need to allocate
nnoneyhnnothe reserve funds

Financing the system allows staff to bring back the ons1 as o budget amendment after we have
closed out the financials for FY15 16

Public Spqaker '(s) 

There were norequests from the public tospeak. 



Action: Motion by Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember Vasquez, to
adopt the resolution passed, by the following vote: 

Ayes: Gastil, Jones, Vasquez

Absent: Sesso, Mendoza

Resolution No. 2016- 3466: Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, 
California Authorizing the City of Lemon Grove to Enter into the Next Generation Regional
Communications System Agreement, First Amendment and to Finance the System with the

County of San Diego

Councilmember Jennifer Mendoza arrived at the meeting. 

2. Short Term Concept for Connect Main Street Project from Broadway to Central
Avenue And Professional Services Agreement With Michael Baker International
For Construction Drawings Of Short Term Concept

David De Vries reported hat on August 4, 2015, the City Council accepted the proposed project
concept for the Connect Main Street project. During the public hearing, City Council members
expressed concerns about closing Main Street at Broadway while the existing businesses on
the southwest corner of Broadway and Main Street remained. The accepted short- term concept
prohibits vehicular traffic northbound on Main Street to Broadway ( buses only) and allows for no
pedestrian movements across Main Street on the south side of Broadway. 

The accepted mid- term concept prohibits all vehicular traffic north- and southbound on Main
Street to Broadway ( bus stop is relocated) and allows for shopping center vehicular traffic
southbound on Main Street. Since the short- and mid- term concepts restrict vehicular access

on Broadway, staff coordinated with KTU+ A to revise the short- term plan allowing for vehicular
traffic patterns to remain as -is and enhancing crosswalks and sidewalks within the corridor. The
revised short term -plan creates a pedestrian bulb -out at the southwest corner Broadway and
Main Street and new accessible curb ramps and crosswalks and expanded sidewalks within the
corridor. The sidewalks are proposed to be colored an earthen tone to reflect the early pioneer
period. No significant changes are proposed to the long- term concept. 

If the City Council accepts the revised short- term concept, then staff recommends that the
279, 500 of awarded Housing - Related Parks Program grant funds be used for full construction

drawings and improvements of the revised short- term Connect Main Street project plan from
Broadway to Central Avenue. Since Michael Baker International completed the 30% 

construction drawings for the Connect Main Street project, staff recommends that they prepare
the full construction drawings for this segment. A request for proposal is not required since they
prepared the 30% drawings and are exceedingly familiar with the project. The Municipal Code
allows the City Manager to waive the requirements for solicitation of multiple proposals if only
one individual or firm can provide the professional services. As such, the total contract proposal
amount is $ 50, 465. This includes design survey, final construction drawings, detailed

construction scope and cost estimates for bidding, and detailed landscape, irrigation, lighting, 
and street amenity plans for the revised short- term concept. This is consistent with the City

Council' s direction to focus construction efforts within the Connect Main Street project area on
basic pedestrian improvements first. 

Public St)( , aker( s) 

Michael Summers commented vandalism in other parks and suggested measure are in place to
prevent possible vandalism with the project. 

Alice Jefferson had comments about the project' s process and the finished project design



Mike Richards commented on project' s design and suggested a wooden look for one of the
walkways along with lighting that will remain on in case of a power outage. 

Action: Motion by Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember Mendoza, to
adopt the resolution passed, by the following vote: 

Ayes: Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, Vasquez
Absent: Sessom

Resolution No. 2016- 3465: Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove
Approving the Design Contract for Engineering and Landscape Architecture Services for the
Connect Main Street Phase I Improvement Project

City Council Oral Comments and Reports on Meetings Attended at the Expense of the
City. ( GC 53232. 3 ( d)) 

Councilmember Jones attended City of San Diego Oversight Board meetings. 

Councilmember Mendoza attended the League of California Cities monthly meeting. 

Mayor Pro Tem Gastil attended a recent MTS meeting. 

Mayor Pro Tem Vasquez attended a City/ County Reinvestment Task Force meeting. 
City Manager and Department Director Reports

Lydia Romero reported that Laureen Ryan, Administrative Analyst, has resigned and accepted a
position in the City of Carlsbad. 

Adjournment

There being no further business to come before the City Council, Housing Authority, Sanitation
District Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board, and the Lemon Grove Successor
Agency the meeting was adjourned at 7: 08 p. m. 

av x rc

Susan Garcia, City Clerk



C8y of Lemon GroveI Summary
Appiroved a,, Subinflued: 

Alli erlt Rojas, Inte1i4n I- Irlacce Diiiectoir ACH/ AP OwcAs 09/ 14/ 16- 09123/ 16 2G8, 791 90

For Cmpirlcll' 110/04/ 11, 

laymIll - 09/ 13/ 16 124, 681 62

u otall Dernands i  , 1 " 3 , ,, 1

k 11h, V-&, No Vmdd. v I C heck I Vendar I hc, i In A u, Ii

C W 01111
I' I V

i fq Y1: 1! NC VENUOR114W'. DAN NI N ) k VAO ? N

AM 1, 1, li. i- Dell C- dit S- Iun 0111412016 1 07,, jp. lf', aJril'._, - Aug" M tl m ILWIk p I d 7 M

Al: Ii u6r„, V V 16 I. P, ldhjr, f rroa 0; P11 121@: 1y Slt. t, n 19113/ 16 03 pS1 0 p U

A I. 11 R p I i V, I BOW- 61. 1h. 1 Fl i, crUl Sa YuvI-, I. I. 0 09/ 19/ 2WC, Palt. gm Wap 9/ 15/ 1- 6
Al 00 510 00

Al: IV rgaI US ir- su, y 09/ 19/ 2016 Fi, d,,, a 11 Y.--, G/ 1G/ 106 d':, K O 0 4, NJ

A( H I I + 011 ' i Gilj%ns 5e. jpjpl- nwmrRA ly- yalc, 45Plan 01;1/ 20/ 2016 457 Plan 0/ 31116 91113111, 11 ill 34 fY 0 I M

I' d 1 1, GOifoii ifla lPwl1. re01s len1nlpIl llI th eii, enit Sdote6in 09/ 2112016 - S- IfOy Fill P M 1, L, M

III V, rlltnitv HOW- Glbhfl, Fliw, cW1 5, !-, 111 09/ 22/ 20 W 11 - Wage Uug. 9/ 21116 00 0010

V I V 114, 14d' I 16 Plu- v &, ( dIc11tpajj Fl, iIall Seuvili ILO.(: 0912- 912016 PosWge dpsag, n 9/ 22/ 16 1, 10 00 101) 

OR IR, 01 M M-,. U Video Ware In, 09/ 14/ 2016 Sjn- d Siawy & IWN Coum LGA Rpal4i1i,- 0 Picrj
UMM gXI fl1V

dq 1 1 : OM J,° fi- I -, 09/ M/ 201fi youtable Ridl- I CoiM I acR 012214E 9/ 21/ 16 Y 10 00 V10 00

un 084 1 M N h, I C . " Ir, F. 1, i ' S,- 09/ 14/ 2016 C a vxnro ( Ople. I C. 01M Baan Cl, u rgcl - Sz11[ n I& D-" I mil V, 1I I h

I, 0 IM OYN V N4 d Cl"' j, 14PAa MICSAin- n-, III, 09/ 11I/ 2016 Q':. 1115cdIl' tl opid, 5// 6,/ U, H12r,11 Ed B-,,,, jr, V M

VIIIMIMICII aIn Malj[ qd iqaiwp, Cojpk' 4U- gPS/; 1jJ64/ 2G/ tG 8 1 1 M

Mfi 7+ 1` T C I ty of La I1wes, a 09/ 114/ 20 W' OveitMe RAnlixa- vvieiryt - Om9n, 711811, Y Q I IM N9

VS , l p '( PIA C.- WLY " If S. 1" A" go 111 09/ 34/ 2016 600146 Hew., k - A. g'16 1, 9X  " 0 U' l ", a

1, W8 10 1001011, 111 Caimoity W Sava DlepojAs- ssovjRe- i[ dk! if 09/ 24/ 2011C, Recurafilnr evvla'd.s- 813116 311611C, PIP M W01) 

UO Ll:, I I' M 11; 1 COX r, o1mululktiol, s 09/ 114/ 20M Phui,, w/ Cifty 1 110. 911/ 116... 1130/ 16 9118 10 t iltl

11
imp

Rd, H'' AM, 
100

R", H' I , 1111 p 1, C I, Ilt SVC - 813011 Ed 9129116 11 W 60

F,,, 1 W HkWANO DAR ( - Itv,, Anr, 09/ 14/ 2016 Anlu, A ffi, djpo,. An0' 16 Yh) 00 Y1::,) CII 11

C, d", I1tl I ",, 1'' 1111'," k ' gil CoIrl: renraE' tl1, 09/ 14/ 2016 15% lj, ujjd[ jng 6/ 2011 G 6121116 l , i hq Jtl 1V1, 

11141 8IIH 1 15% Pulldlkq 916/ hfi, 9/ 8/ 16

S. 1" A LA" H- Ull 09/ 14/ 2016 Pa - d W,, 1, 11, Sjp P.' YVn_ SlRjr,,/ Vx, dM MIR I Ui

lana. M/ 14/ 2016 lftlntlhly lNalt Staltoc)n$- CNK r, J` - Sc' IING M 00 W, 00

5 ." O- Mli

j,'- 5a1, [ fip
jr, 

09/ M/ 2016 N. We - Spa, i, 1h 8/ 19/ IG I I I) Y 0 CO

1y`, l 1 tr I I) Y ( I, I7 WK ruv U' 1., d II. Y::. 09114/ 2010 Land - pe, Malivitamallice hING 0 ri R 011 O I M MI

d ljrjflj,, u, NIdd', 5w, , V, u111. 1,, 11a1rlk, 00

I - d- p,, M., M- n,,. - A, q,'16

I " 1941 IN Ult M M4 M",[, [ p, 11 F jrj,,•, P' g( timrvfcars Vrna. 013/ 14/ 2016 1 ln, e A- Irvflrly
INI, 5& d

I I , J. P" 

rVhInd,-, VA,. dhssmaxill Ig l4, 11cal., 760

19) Im I( d I NIjr, V. & M." j, OD/ 4/ XM6 Vjr," j, 111 ¢I- t1' 1, ld 6( 2r170Y; C1 1, 0 1 1W ',( I

11011 WO III Y A 1 00

VM 1411116''';" 11', IN - dllllg: Old'' 11,%! l 11 1 1 Vid 3 116111'' 1: 11 11 II 1 1, 1":':, 

1111. 1 ) roll !, M, vpi, llg h V' O 011

f,) 1. 10001 M l IAq, ev Ru" W" d4b 11 ', Iiid ' bl vir, I, I I- 11, p" " 61 Yis 11 ge V I Y , IA h I, v i IV 7l Y, Y, Y b I RO P, 131079

f,,,[, O I '' A" N 110, 1, 1: d 1: 1 In I' VIA v( Ily I 1111", wv, ioi 1, 16 '' PVU, 1181 11: 1, JI : 120 4C, 

1q114' 11 " 11, 10 do n, l H, I' ll 6, 4 " DO

PA, of '', Dim u qv;, W 16 Pil MO VID

P,,, e od, 8eAgi* read 0 M " Y11" k q 01/ 116 ", '% P 0, 1IIII , o, 

P114 ' I' d' ON HI

OAO I Jy11 0, ) I, i- I OOWJ ' hPH NI11POM -' 1W aV i1 l4, li ITM (, 11III PI og, I, y (' 11sh 1/: 1 Y 6 I " I M10; NO I OFM ( Y) 

0461 0 1 2 1 601, 6 Nv' d 11: WId" d I ( I 140 1 1 Is 1411e 4V, s hd,`( I, Il 1 6 90 V, ' dO

MO d 773) 111?, 111 111, 1 o0, " lliqlN 11 1 r,%V1h Playgil"' Ild Mulk IT I I huToll 0q,", N, 14 W 6J d, 311) M W



1 / 3262', H N" gio- amiui vuldh , Kl, lIQW" Pa6

P7443762 I' l lewO clo Suppol, H— V So Pal 1( pprv1 X7:; 8

1404 1, 96459 rao ob (, ofti iloa Depai, Anyeio A l uso- wS/ m/? mr, V4lgu, rjpvlie Ajiop Aup,' W 01: 1 NPu 00

640S 45401 Tlho. F, x, o Co" My 01/ 14/ 2016 Nvltkcw MPPublic kainiop, 918/ 16o 00 224 00

1406 Wjpl,[ S corl, Nook, H cmrp M'. 1, 6q/ 14/ 200 Mund/ I voj000ro 8 r- i, lp/ 1hjsoo— s Llcv, sv Oveivioap- 0 A, 76 P, 

640 W103 IG Vaoitailge oloorO Iiiraoi, soev Ago, RF, 4!,-/ 0911412016 IICMA DM— O C— Imxisotkjoin Pay vvwd boding WI 1116 HO 590 ;/ 

1408 0122891 IN Vaviiinelk, Tilne, Day& Ca, olo' 0911412016 ', vc Mal, If, 1 loolu 00 1, 94000

6409 Poince, rc11/ 13/ W Voorlif ol & llaItl24 w, lvada% 09114116SiG Claliv, Pcouceg NMw js FA2/ 1C,/ GHCOOM18- oilwfl WIf 6C, i8c Gi

14 3 0 11; 7121 94 vuk. lo Mato,, OA 09114/ 20 C6 Alsphalli 11089 240 ), 0

712218a' f Mjrflhah 129 31

6411 11 & M W -n CoaV AxboiWs, lire:. 09114120 16 N-, Ma[ M-. ince 6/ J/ 16 6/ 15, 116 040 00 04000

GO) 7 Wunt ( — t 6cmeiodl ( oirpoiM ol: m 091 64/ 201 G 11 GA Rea igvoinnor Poi Pirc9/ o/ 14` 0/ 31/ 16 26', 09112 C8, 8o112

6afl3 I) iA Awscdalied Sltiimdaii3Os d So) SU 09/ 23/ 2016 1 G Y( 111, D. y ( wlii,, Ip Aq— lphr, Ro, xs ( 8 SNI 45300 453, 00

64 A GS64`, 1681 4luissYrcnlmnn, 1111. 091211201r, ho? sd EA - W I::: M d 2700 2100

6x4111 1AM 9 W, IRcir, Ols N12112014 Icouiiq x, HaWall Wxcmd Waekmf- MD oilk Noroh A— 911, 9/ 8 04 DO 64011

GA I (I C. 1111 - q Cabmt, Kenya 0912112016 1`,' 11 Df,., 0 L fil o 0)/ 10JIG 100 M 100 W

6x412 01::: A 201 Si C dIlf0lini. DeiM, 11 INA— io Ik h, c 09/ 21 / 203 G 00116 32442 324, 42

6418 16486385 ffl/ 21/ 2016 642 60 042 GO

6419 C', od. x irda, IlAa ria Vesica 09/ 21/ 2016 Refu liod/ c, Ida, Mavia Y- ora/ P, o A idlo Dqp- ltLIRII 1 9/ 161] COO flo) 200 DO

6420 ch—, Cl[,,, a,,, o'igs 09/ 21/ 2OVi iiiekiind/ r havez, Oqpcsit- L FIH4/ 91116 12.1112 1J5 IV2

6421 Cox Colynirxluirrii, avioRm, 619121IAIG lVI, xon No eJg - 9/ 1116 9130116 A- 9 T, 4& 1 41

9/ 7/) W6 B/ Ij No ,/ I 9/ / 16x- 168/ 6116 U 52

M22 1246 Ili MAN IS. lhvoI' Ixo, dvnp Ilinc 0912V12016 RI 1411110 941) 10

6421 1> 1 l Dcirrimpcir, 11 Vaiuia N12112016 ROlund/ Dcrnonojrii, l VAIIIIIOIDET- 6lIPGII ObA 1 20000 WOO

64), 4 24MR 1 . JjoS4utlr. 09/' 2p12016 o'JIM/ M 21630 fa 00

24164 I' lu' limiciii Cp' loteg So- goty (' adi ro - 9117116 344 00

447° i iVCAhPae. T Au R . 11 kbo f AuU, — ft, 09/ 2 1 / 10 16 Ove o o Yny o - n 1, oFills o or, o vm, 111 i ol, se f A oa o, i ni, l i c i [/ 1, P 0 f 11 11 SO 11 50

6426 Isms hA,, ( airilvien 09/ 21/ 2M6 Ackiiivd/ lsaos, (, virvoit/ l.) fp- 11 - Joll Y 9/ 3/ 16 AXI DO AM 00

042/ S, opllj IG 1: virnoin Gjr.,,, o oj, o[,,, o, ajj ! o, xy 09/ 21/ 2016 Reow,, Ql G I fi%ooii " A S., oy/ 11 ,, po, ol: o r vo I ou" o,' 911 Im f, 700 DO 20000

644 Aug 16 1all 1 ' Irgu, oir, Allt 111x. k I I I" 05121 / 2016 ( WIxN' dIOIIGi- rM0Q) AurAG P, M co 21, 111012

t Si Al, me, 16 451 31

ft g 16 6. ali% lhpi, e0, 6iifea, unvihi51116l-( 8 M) - I Al, ip, IG Oo

Aai6 p6< Guollxor v VAl, ivic ia I o id, ajwI\ A, uiiyt A— c 0o 1(,- f 00026 AupT 205 10

Aup, 16 1441 A",' t(, 1,',- 14 1 ', 

Aur, 16 Aw6' 16 220M, 



fl 0 1 ", 
riUor I la v a I Yr W, u, L d W N H 00NO A ug' I IN 3" Ill, 70

ft g K, lai,, so iii, ( iNqh, V 110 1: VW31 Aug' M 59' 1''( 14

A+R' I ir, mgy plivig' If 11 MNOi

Aug I 1, 14 4 in °', a i Y Al V o , ii 11, OA 1610151013 k,ill,' I fi 1, 0" 1 10

6429 414006 Mailovy Ssje.ly airid Sulipply, iv( 09/ 21124046 Nit i l Vp G love-%, Sit ii a mr I hi, v , 218 3:¢ m 449

GUO 010916 N MK ( omtrudim, ovIlIllnimir, licpail, witel, iJilil - Rec( Al rialkiligilW 4, 90000 4, R) a 00

6431 20056 1 Niny. & ' A.. i c912112016 Val" I'viri. th", 1179116
sn Mg W

200ii64 VCvvion Ravi cll I I I vqxcilond7 Oillup 7129/ I6 J, 1011 25

NOW, D I dev, HOW Nil- x h, ppcvlolis I I , v u 7129116 6141+ 5

6432 51404 NVS, h,, 01)/ 2' 1/ 219, I GA Mf, iijj' iuivivsvi - 11 iviM Dv, vjFviAUOYvi lid Nii, i, 7/ IAG " f/ WE, 18, 9 ` J V2 13,. 0/: 102

6411 122635, H- A lffr¢rBiuy 09121/ 2016 HIM N111- ii - 1- 11, 19/ 1416
91 B2 51192

6434 1 6. 0818 Padvic HIVAC Sci, vice. 09/ 2 1 JJ 0 16 AC R,, pa ii, - C ill y v 4 a H 7/ v 211 C, 
360 84110

11d- 08337 Ar, I m, als & bb— if MaLor R( rjplaceuncll' M Cilly I Will 1, 439 W

160861 A( Rclimills  1; ilrrt? Sitiv 1172/ 16 94, 17

IS 4 3 a, Pulz R,, i,, flho, isa 0912112016 Ref" ild/ H11, 141 1" 200, 00 200 DO

V ill, ficl c,, ri— mmj ... iv vBiii 9/ 37/ 16 30000 30000

6131 AugIC, SDG& F 09/ 2 V) OI 6 Gas & F "' t, i" // 1lj 16 8/ 11116 42, 46' 1546 42, 48A 8S

6438 1361344 SN' l, R-, SU4V Widi— f 0/ 2. 1/ 2076 Wovkv^ i Covir, p C iailm, - 1/ 70/ Ib
VXI 01 W3 01

W22419 Psi, 61s. v 1 ,.. - M/' 71./ 16 45 cc

299122420 Madl, av [ x— 7/ 21/ 16 169 Ou

299122814 mndi,. 11 A. 1" 1121/ 16 41, 00

2991, 21bW Nlodk, fll 1; —, v - 117":;( 16 11800

299123698 modka0 U,— 112"';,lj G, 45, 00

299224321 Medh A F,,-, 7 126/ A G 45 00

299224322 mi, do" I b, x— - x12611 (" 5000

613' 3 7' TOW92 S kiO v I . Ii f11, 1 Y, 4. 4. 6: I9eIniclple, W-, d C oi ivi al, lfuPV Mark, filue, Av, 34 1, 416 51

1 p!': 3! p A W. itufivq, SY' N' l" I 1pl[, Ilu,, uO 13

75VA26C civiiv, - wiiic" cv G1i, i ak iim v97 II) 

6440 OWA01 110r Fdnt UtMivy CAKU IdAlv 09/ 21/ 1016 PollAc Neaving, Ni, W- Pll, vii, UU1 D- Pc^ vl' vld 9/ 9/ 16 27' 4 WP sl 00

6441 PhIllipl fli-siwio Tii, ist Ancouiw ' A RI' v,, Law Ciffi", 4CP 1111, 1111p L 0912112016 Oovllft', Y V CRY dlif I C V— lv (,-- 500llyhvil, l I' N,A, v:, f 1, 666 ( u2

6442 29608 4, A US H- 14MMo1ks IMivdllcal K 09121120 Ir, 9124116 125 Do 17500

6443 Wi ong' s Verel hgo Sepl All N121120 I i, HOUflid/ Willhol awl, 17P, 113uAdil R PVTViTlP ll I(' IA20 NO Ov HO 31

6444 V. va, laym, Wall, WP121prj16rnd/ Vrcu, Isjr" v 31: 141/ 16 10000 300 vm

644', wr 6vi' m WI 11 0912112016 R, 4, jj, d/ Wi0, di,— EWildling P, iiimiR BIC, 05N 117, 8 1113 SO

6446 0912' 216 1,, v) IF,. C', my I 0, ijfl, 0912212016 P 1111, 19 ND Vull ( XiviiorKMaiol SUGIPA 140 CON 00 110 00

268, M1 ' XI 6, 761



LEMON GROVE SANITATION DISTRICT

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 1. D

MtgMt Date October 4 2016A.........-._. -- 

Dept. Public Works_ 

Item Title: Award a Contract for the FY2016- 2017 Sewer Capital Improvements Project: 

Sewer Upsizing, Replacement and Maintenance

Staff Contact: Tim Gabrielson, District Engineer

Recommendation: 

Adopt a resolution ( Attachment 13) awarding a construction contract ( Attachment C) for the FY 2016- 2017 Sewer
Capital Improvements Project: Upsizing, Replacement and Maintenance, along with associated construction

management services, materials testing and inspection services and Storm Water Inspection services. 

Item Summary: 

In support of the City' s Sanitation Capital Improvement Program, staff advertised a notice inviting bids for
FY 2016-2017 Sewer Capital Improvements Project: Upsizing, Replacement and Maintenance ( Contract
2016- 24) in August 2016. A voluntary pre- bid meeting was held on September 8, 2016. On September

20, 2016, staff received seven sealed bids. Staff determined that of the bids received, SC Valley

Engineering was the lowest responsive and responsible bidder at $ 1, 034, 275. In addition to the

construction contract, staff requested and received proposals from the City' s on- call consultants to provide
various construction services to support the City for the construction project. These proposals include: a
proposal for construction management/ inspection services from Dokken Engineering ( Attachment D — 
Exhibit 1), a proposal from Ninyo and Moore for materials testing and inspection services ( Attachment D

Exhibit 2) and D -Max Engineering for storm water inspection services (Attachment D — Exhibit 3). 

Staff recommends that Sanitation District Board of Directors adopt a resolution ( Attachment B) awarding
a construction contract ( Contract 2016- 24) for the FY 2016- 2017 Sewer Capital Improvements Project: 

Upsizing, Replacement and Maintenance to SC Valley Engineering, Inc., and enter into a professional

services agreement with Dokken Engineering, Ninyo and Moore and D -Max Engineering while

establishing a project budget not to exceed $ 1, 297, 015. 

Fiscal Impact: 

Sanitation District funds were budgeted for this project as part of the Fiscal Year 2016- 2017
budget. 

10

of subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section 15301

Public Information: 

None  Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Staff Report

B Resolution

F-1 Negative Declaration

Mitigated NegativeDeclaration

Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

Neighborhood meeting

C. SC Valley Engineering Construction Contract

1- 



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE SANITATION DISTRICT. 
STAFF REPORT

Item No. 1. D

Mtg. Date October 4 , 

w2016
Item Title: Award Contracts for the FY2016- 2017 Sewer Capital Improvements Project. 

Upsizing, Replacement and Maintenance

Staff Contact: Tim Gabrielson, City Engineer

Discussion: 

In support of the City' s Sanitation District Capital Improvement Program, staff advertised a

notice inviting bids for FY 2016- 2017 Sewer Capital Improvements Project: Upsizing, 

Replacement and Maintenance ( Contract 2016- 24) in August 2016. 

The project proposes to upsize sewer mains along Main Street from Burnell Avenue to Grange
Street/ Davidson Avenue, segments of Noble Street and EI Dora Street and segments on Edding
Drive. In addition, the project proposes to correct several sewer mains that have " sags", are

undersized and to perform " point repairs" and various sewer segments throughout the District. 

On AUgu st53, 2016, t.iara dor u, m,ierit; foi the project ( Contract No. 2016- 24) were advertised in
thr East t (,:n,1nty CaWornw n, online al eBidbr:: vd and the City' s website. On September 20, 

20-16, staff r (,, c : ived seven seaed bids, I" wo of ti -lose sealed bids were rejected as they did not
11,1eet Ille stibrnitt rl rrrgtIlae rients Alter further review, two additional bidders were subsequently
classified as unresponsive as they did not meet the qualifications and bid specifications. The

name of each qualified bidder, their location, and amount of their bid are listed below: 

Bidder' s Name Location Amount

SC Valley Engineering EI Cajon, CA $ 1, 034, 750

MJC
Bonita, CA $ 1, 089, 884

GRFCO, Inc. Brea, CA $ 1, 250, 750

The engineer' s estimate for this project was $ 1, 087, 075. The low qualified bid was submitted by

SC Valley Engineering, Inc. ( SC Valley) for $ 1, 034, 275. After staff reviewed SC Valley' s project

work history, contacted and interviewed listed references, and reviewed its construction license, 
staff concluded that SC Valley is the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, 

q$, 



Staff recommends the following budget for this project: 

Management/ Inspection

Material Testing 2. 5% 32, 300

Storm Water Inspection 0. 5% 6, 000

Contingency 11 150, 000

Total - 100% 1, 297, 015

To facilitate the construction of the project, staff requested Dokken Engineering, one of the
City' s as -needed engineering consultants submitted a scope of work and fee schedule for
construction phase services including engineering review of submittals and construction
inspections ( Attachment D — Exhibit 1). Ninyo & Moore, the City' s as -needed geotechnical
consultant, will provide geotechnical and material testing services for the project ( Attachment D

Exhibit 2). D -Max Engineering, the City' s as -needed Storm Water consultant, will provide
Storm Water Inspection and Compliance ( Attachment D — Exhibit 3). Staff reviewed the

proposals submitted by Dokken Engineering, Ninyo & Moore and D -Max Engineering for the

project and deemed it a reasonable cost for the stated services. 

Conclusion: 

Staff recommends that Sanitation District Board of Directors adopt a resolution ( Attachment B) 
awarding a construction contract ( Contract 2016- 24) for the FY2016- 2017 Sewer Capital

Improvements Project: Upsizing, Replacement and Maintenance to SC Valley Engineering Inc., 
and enter into a professional services agreement with Dokken Engineering, Ninyo and Moore
and D -Max Engineering while establishing a project budget not to exceed $ 1, 297, 015. 

M



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 

RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE SANITATION DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AWARDING A CONTRACT FOR THE FY2016- 2017 SEWER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT

PROJECT: UPSIZING, REPLACEMENT, AND MAINTENANCE

CONTRACT 2016- 24) 

WHEREAS, on August 25, 2016, bid documents for the FY2016- 2017 Sewer Capital

Improvements Project: Upsizing, Replacement and Maintenance ( project) were advertised in the
East County Californian, online at eBidboard and the City' s website; and

WHEREAS, on September 8, 2016 a voluntary pre- bid meeting was held and, 

WHEREAS, on September 20, 2016, four responsive and responsible bids were

received for the project; and

WHEREAS, said bids were opened and the responsive and responsible low bidder was

SC Valley Engineering, Inc.; and

WHEREAS, staff determined a project budget not to exceed $ 1, 297, 015 is warranted; 

and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors finds it in the public interest that a Contract for said
services be awarded. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Lemon Grove Sanitation District Board

of Directors hereby: 

1. Awards a contract in the amount of one million thirty- four thousand two hundred
seventy- five dollars ($ 1, 034, 275) to SC Valley Engineering, Inc.; and

2. Award a construction support contract for construction management and inspection

in the amount of seventy- four thousand four hundred forty dollars ($ 74, 440) to

Dokken; and

3. Award a construction support contract for material testing in the amount of thirty- two
thousand three hundred dollars ($ 32, 300) to Ninyo and Moore; and

4. Award a construction support contract for stormwater inspection in the amount of six
thousand dollars ($ 6, 000) to D -Max; and

5. Establishes a project budget not to exceed one million two hundred ninety- seven
thousand fifteen dollars ($ 1, 297, 015), and

6. Authorizes the City Manager or her designee to execute said contract. 



AGREEAIENT

FY 2016 17 SEWER CAPITAL, IMPROVEMENTPROJECT: UPSIZING, IZEPLAC'EJUENT
AND MATNTENANCF'. 

THIS CONTRACT, snade and entered into this day of' of 20 by
and beilween [ lie Lemort Grove Sanitation District. Cafif.oyrna - herein after desigmaed is the

District", and SC Valley Frigineering, Inc., hereinaller designated as file " Contractor" 

WITNESSETH: that the parties hereto do mutually agree as tbllovvs: 

I For and in consideration of the payments and agreements hereinaller inentioned to be

made and perfo.imed by the District, the Contractor agrees with lite District to furnish all
nrateriils and labor for: 

PY 2016- 17 SEWER CAPITAL IMPROVENIENTPROJECT: UPSIZING., REFI ACEIVIENT

AND MAINTENANCE

and to perforin mid complete in a good and workmanlike manner all lite work pertaining Ilieseto
shown on [ lie plans and specifications therefore; to furnish at his own proper cost and expense all

tools, equipment, labor and materials necessary therefore; and to do everything ioquired by this
agreement and the said plans and specifications. 

2. For Furnishing all said materials and labor, tools and equipment, and doing all the vvork
contemplated and embraced in this Contract, also for all loss and chunage arising out of lite
DMI -Ire of [ lie work aforesaid, or from the action of the elements, or from aii- v unf' omsoesl

difficulties which may arise or be encountered in the prosecution o$ the %Aroj k until its acceptance
by the District and for all risks of every description connected with the work; also. f'Or all
expenses incuifed by or in consequence Of the suspension or discontinuance of vvork_ except
such as in said specifications are expressly stipulated to be borne by ( lie District and for well and
faithfully completing the work and the whole thereof, in the manner shown and described in the
said plans and specifications, the District will pay and she Contractm shall receive in In]] 
compensation therefore the sum 0[' one Million thirty four thousand rvvo hundred seventy five
dollars and no cents ($ 1, 034, 275. 00). 

3. Ilie District hereby promises and agrees to employ, and does hereby employ said
Conlracloi to provide the rsiaterii1s and to do the work- according to the ( erms and conditions
herein Contained ind refen- ed to for lite price aloresaid mid hereby conditions set Jbilh In the

specification; and the said parties . for themselves, lben heirs, cxeculors, admjnls' traloss. 

successors and assigns, do hereby agree 10 the full performance of` the Covenants herein
Contained

4 The Notice Inviting Bids- Instiuctions To Bidders, Bid Forins, A- reenieni and Bond
Forms. Construction Administration Forms- Completion of the lll jccl Fosill' s- GeTiend

Re( JUnC1110111S and General Provisions, I) iawings, Plans and Specifications, Addenda, 

All owa I ices, ' and all amendments thereof me hereby, incorporated in and made Imil of this

Contract.. 

m



5. The District. tile District' srepresentative; District. Col) SUltants and authorizedvolunteersshalltrot be arlsvven . lble or accountable in anY rliajl) ljef for any loss or damage that may happen to
the , vork or any part thereof.. or 1` 01 any 01 the Materials cm other thiligs Used or erl] PIO)° e( l Ill
perf'oi-jill'oIg [ l) e work, of for WlM- v or dom, q,e to ally

person or pefsot),;. either vvorkers, 

elliployees of Contractor or its t4 the public, or For ( hi' llage to adjoining or other

property, from any cause wllalsrx%Tr jrt iolg oul of or ill eoj)] jectio) jl willi the peil'ormance of the
work. The Contractor shaR be mpcpivaihk fil,l mry daynage or ilt'july to ally person or property
lesulting from defects or obstructions or From any Cause whatsoever EIIIS1119 out of or in
connection witil the performal tee oftbe lvotic, provided, howeveIl- that the Contractor shall 1101 be

I jltl Illiscoll( ILIct or lctjyc negligence ol' the Disaricf.- liable for the ;bole established ne-P.H.gence, wi
who are directly responsible toits representatives, employees, agents and authorized volunteer' s

the District. 

a. Contractor sliall indemnify the District., District Board, District ollicink- District. 
employees, . District representatives, and authorized vohinteers against and will hold card
save then) and each of thell) hanuless From any and all actions, claims, damages to
persons or property, penalties, obligations or liabilities that may be asserted of claim] d by
any person, fit-]', ellfily, corporatioll, political subdivision or otilCr otgarlizzlti0l) arising
OUA of Of an CODIIeCti011 with the work, qsplt. ltfiojl im ootvrnn, of CoMhhAOV 0", 
employees, subcontractors or invitees, providcd 161 11"' reill, rNhoihll m, last Owre v, 
Collcuffentpassive or active ne.ah,unce " Ort lk,, vml ol i1w 0144m 1, In"IttO ilku' d 1) i, 1110
officials, District employees, District rcpivserJk1h%1, sN" And is fah hull

excluding such actions, claims, damages; lo patsojva of pl opol IV pclw It , [" aljovv a' n

liabilities arising fi-on, tile sole establisbcd
nlkcouou: t of

Ilegligence of the District. District: Board, OisniO ) ffiaJok, lay akl rJtltflolvcc". Oistrio

representatives, authorized volunteers, of - ho afv djcij%, 

in connection therewith: 

1) Contractor will defend all), lletiotl or actions filed in cortylection with any
of said claims, damages, penalties, obligations or liabilities and will pay all costs
and expenses, including at-tomey's fees ineurred in connection therea,vilh. 

11) Contractor will promptly Pay any judgment rendered againstthe
District- District. Board, , District ol' ticials, Disti let el" PlOYces, OisIl icl

representatives, and authorized volunteers covering such Claims, 
dallmges, 

penalties, obligations and liabilities arising out 01' or ill CollfleCtiort \ N' illl scads
work, operations, I, aCri% rijie.,, of Coljto<actoConti actori hereunder al) d Contcka' mnees 10

save and hold the District- District Board. District oft-1— ILS, District cMP] o) eCs

District represerrIatives., and authorized volunteers harnll- S there fit -011) 

11.1) Ill the event the District, District Board, Di,,Aticl oll'iciM'- Dislyiel
District representatives- and aull- rized volunlec' s are 1110( ic a Pall%, h.) aliv acholl
or proceeding I- ilcol or prosecuted against Corllracl() r 1or such dmmlg, S or ollWi— 
claims arising our OFOC ill c011neclion Nvith the Work. or opelallon or activities of
Contractor hereunder- Contractor agrees to pay to the District.. DisUicl 1: 30ar(L
District official', 1) isllicl eMplo\,,- es. District lepesewalives. and A111101lZed



VOILUItCers any and all costs and expenses incurred by the District- District Board, 
District officials, District employees, District i- cpresentatives, and authorized

volunteers in such action or proceeding together xvuh reasonable attorney' s 1ees. 

IV) ' fine District may retain, to the extent it deerns necessary, the money due to
the Contractor under and by vintic of the Contract Documents un it disposition
has been made of such actions or claims for damages as specified herein above. 

6. Claims, disputes and other matters in question between the parties to this Contract, 

arising out of or relating to this Contract or tire breach thereof, may be decided by arbitration If
both parties to this Contract consent in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration

Association their obtaining unless the parties mutually agree othel mrise. No arbitration arising out
of or relating to this Contract, shall include, by consolidation,, joinder or in any other manner, any
additional person not a party to this Corilract except by written consent containing a specific
reference to this Contract and sigried by CONTRACTOR, DISTRICT, and any other person
sought to be joined. ( Any Consent to arbitration involving ; ill additional person or persons shall
not constitute consent of any dispute not described therein or with my person not named or
described therein.) This agreement to arbitrate and ally agreement to al-bitrate with an additional
person or persons duly consented to by the partics to tills Contract shall be specifically
enforceable under the prevailing arbitration law, 

Notice of the demand for arbitration is to be filed in writing with the other party to this Contract
and with the American Arbitration Association. The demand is to be made within a reasonable

time after the claini, dispute or other matter in question has arisen. Ili no event is the demand for

arbitration to be made after the date when institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on

such claim; dispute or other matter it) question would be barred by the applicable statute of

limitations. The award rendered by the arbitrators shall be final and judgment may be entered
upon it in accordance with applicable law Ili any court having jurisdiction thereof. 

T ' flie Contractor agrees to comply will) all Local, State and Federal regulations and with

all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean JU- Act of 1970 ( 42

U. S. C. 1857 el seq.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act ( 33 U.& C, 1251 et seq.) as

amended. 

8. If tiny party brings a suit or action against the other party arising Ii-oril any breach of ani. 
of the covenants or agreements or any inaccuracies in any of the representations and warranlies

on the pall of' the other party arlsur-b out of' this AgreelliellL their in that event, the Prevailing
party in such action or dispute, whellier by final Iucprent or out of -courtt selement. shall be
entitled to have and recover of and [ I-011) the other party all costs and expenses of' suit. including
attonrey` s fees. 

9. Each and every provision oflaw and clause required to be inserted in this Contract shall
be deemed to be inserted herein and this Contract shall be read and enforced as [ hough it were

include(] herein, and it' through mistake or otherwise ariv such provision is not inserted or is not

inserted correctly`. them upon application of either parts the Contract shall forilmrill be phYsically
amended to make such insertion orcorrection

m



10, 111 accordance Nviffi Government Code, Section 85 46. 7, ice-Ords of' b0th the District
I

and

the Contractor shall be sul jecl to eN; IMiMIfi0II Mid aLldit for a period ofilwee ( 3) years afterfinal
payInent. 

IN WITNESS WHERLOF, the parties hereto have caused this Contract to [) e executed in ffirec
Counterparts, each of wilich sWil be deemed all wiginal Hie day and year firsi above wrillen. 

t-'ONT RACILOR

Title: 

By: 

hflc: 

Fcdcral 11). No. 

L)TSTRICT, t__ 

By: 
Title. Lydia Romero, J,. xecutjve Directoi

AI", I  "s-11': 

By: 
Title: Susan Gircia, District Clerk

j,4oarics icknovArledgement o1' excclfliMI bY all PRINCIPALS 01: (-.
0114TRACTOR shalt be

attached.) 



Mgwml

Jeremiah J. Harrington

Assistant Engineer

City of Lemon Grove

3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

Reference: Proposal to Perform Engineering Construction Support Services and Construction

Management and Inspection Services for the City of Lemon Grove – Bid Set 11 – Sewer

Upsizing Project

Dear Mr. Harrington: 

It has been our pleasure to assist the City of Lemon Grove with the Sewer Improvement Project. This
letter provides a scope of services and fee for additional services to provide the City with construction

support services and construction management and inspection services for the above referenced phase

of the project. 

The services requested under this amendment supplement, and do not overlap with, services authorized

under the original scope. The following scope of work is proposed. 

SCOPE OF SERVICES: 
1 11 1 11 - ---------- — 

Presented below is JEC' s proposed Detailed Scope of Work to be provided based on our understanding

of the project requirements. IEC has assembled a comprehensive scope of work to accomplish the City' s

project objectives for a complete and well -coordinated construction management program that results

in a project that is delivered on time and within budget, 

Task I – Construction Phase Services

Task 1, 1– Reports and Communications ( Document Control) 

A. Project Document Control

Maintain field memoranda, transmittals, Updated schedules, logs of shop drawings and other

submittals, logs of requests for information, change orders, progress payment requests, 

progress meeting reports, compaction reports, daily inspection reports, and any additional
relevant project correspondence. Project documentation will be kept digitally as well as hard

copies, and files will be organized in a logical manner as approved by the City. 

075 Xuihn laii v 250, `, m Dmgo, ( A 92123 - ' Ilvk8138 1, 1111 KV,/ - I x 8 8, 11l1 8W - vrtvea,u, coia

M



Task 1. 2 — Construction Administration

A. Construction Progress Meetings

IEC will schedule and conduct bi- weekly construction progress meetings with the contractor( s) 
and the City, provide meeting agendas and discuss the schedule, near term activities, 
clarifications and problems which need resolution, coordination with other contractors, status
of change orders, and safety issues, prepare minutes of the meetings with identified action
items, distribute the minutes to the attendees. IEC has included scope for Ms. Fagnant to attend
up to one ( 1) progress/ field meetings and two ( 2) hours of coordination for Mr. Weber in
regards to issues arising from progress/ field meetings. 

B. Project Coordination

Provide coordination between the Contractor, Agencies, Public outreach Consultant, Private
Properties and the city as needed to facilitate the construction process. IEC will ensure that the
parties have up to date necessary information and documents such as shop drawings, 
submittals, plan revisions, - by- pass plans, and traffic control plan. A documentation tracking
procedure will be used to track the distribution of these documents. 

Shop OtalI cmd Sul"' rurred
review and alI KIC will be for prot essing and III fo fill orior

Ow ' J atm of submittah. ffc"° fio, ld swif YVIII pfnvidvf: uraxny revu.,?w of the froraractm'!, 

sollf,tinlat" fm g'i.,mial 4wall the (, otftr,,jtt
proir lo tiverldllrlr, 

the 5utirnitt' llk, to the fjesjfpn sulfl. ) L( has 1j) feaA(?w up to lw(t ( 2) ` ubynjltdh by

design staff. Submittals of a general nature will be reviewed and processed by the CM team at
the City' s request. 

D. Plans and Specifications Interpretation ( RFP Processing) 

IIEC' s construction management team will review and respond to contractor RIFIs of a general
Wilk" t, IN"(" hrival Uh, will fro fo the proIv( [ dvw ( 4f", l POVIPIC- Pl, fol Imporlst.", MaIni " ifri d

f RFIs , in( l ) n order tci onst"Ire I ho wfli ren ( lar III altom anprf"wlIded Io thq, 4" ooti 404", Iro ilit d. I, 
IfI to Tvrlioesl, ' c#r Y, h' roge t(,') i he th"'Ji' n will I' w r,ubrflinud I o 010 ( AY' s

Jllolert pvlamlgirl' mu] lhi, dwoi; n le, iril' foot d0d apllm,) vol, It(: I'ao fn0, ln0L! d scopv to

review up to two ( 2) RIFIs by design staff. 

E. Respond to Change Order Requests

Identify, prepare log, and monitor contractor or City initiated claims, changes, extra work, and
change orders. Negotiate claims to an agreed Contractor/ Consultant/ City conclusion Provide
written recommendations to the City regarding the resolution of change orders and submit
change orders to the City for approval, Prepare a report providing statement of claim, extra
work, or change; background leading to the issue; resolution recommendation for action by the
City Prepare written justification and cost estimates for each change order that require design

11



modifications v' clarifications, including revisions mthe drawing, details, and specifications. 

Resolve claims, extra work, and change orders for changes to the work and obtain City approval. 

F. Progress Poyment Reviews

Prepare project related invoices and progress payments. Submit invoices to the City' s project

manager with a recommendation stating the proper amount for payment using the Schedule of

Values and nuva| quantities asa bads to prepare payment requests. proneo Payment review

will also include evaluation of the monthly updated construction schedule and review of the

project as- bui| tsu, verify that the m^ umuor i, up to date. In addition, review of monthly

progress payments will indvoc review of the Contractor' s required inspections, testing, and

reports asrequired hvthe project swpppand the Construction General Permit. 

Task 1. a— Construction Inspection Services

Aomly Construction Monitoring

Provide inspection and specialty inspection toobserve and document that the contractor' s work

is in compliance with the contract documents. prone, e daily reports of the construction

activities including weather mnduions, contractor' s equipment and manpower, work

pedo' meu, materials used, site visitors, note delays in work and reasons for the delays, and

deficiencies. prepare daily reports of deviations and nu^' mmbnnance to specifications and

provide a timely response. Perform technical inspection at the job site as required of materials
and workmanship, and discuss with the contractor appropriate revisions to the methods and

procedures used in performing the work. Provide photo docurneritation of daily site conditions

and daily construction actwuies. omeme and record all material deliveries mthe site. Material
certificates shall be verified and documented for compliance with plans, specifications, and

approved shop drawings. Prepare detailed daily report summarizing observations and work

performed on site each day/ shift. Maintain on a daily basis o set of as -built drawings as

verification and redundancy to the Contractors. 

Task 2 — Post - Construction Phase Services

Task 2. 1— Project Closeout

poFane detailed project punch mem lists at closeout of the project, upon correction of deficiencies, 

schedule, coordinate, and conduct a final walk through prior to acceptance of work with the City. Verify

work, testing, cleanup and demobilization is complete Check and submit final payment requests after
final walk through. Review and certify that the contractor' s project record drawings are complete and

accurate. 

Tamzz— nna| Project Documents

wumn 30 days of filing of the notice of completion, pmv| uc o Construction Documentation notebook

and electronic copy comprised of all approved mop drawings, material test reports, certifications, daily

12- 



inspection reports, meeting minutes, conversation logs, and photo documentation. A15o provide and

submit one set o/ redlined as - built drawings. 

FEE: 

IEC is pleased to present this estimated fee for Construction Support and Inspection Services for the Bid

Set 11 - Sewer upsidnQ Project. Our estimated not to exceed fee for the proposed scope of work b

74' 440. 00 ( Seventy Four Thousand, pour Hundred, ronv nnUa,,>. ec has developed the estimated

hours for these services through conversations with City staff and our experience onsimilar projects. we

have budgeted for five ( s) hours vffield inspection time on a zzn calendar day construction schedule. 

We have has also included a breakdown of anticipated hours by staff type, with corresponding hourly

rates, that we feel will be dedicated meach task outlined in our scope. 

Fee mtWa* Owm* 01 L& nbw Gnme

ccrdwrwwn suppon= w* mpealon S" Vkfs

The fee for this project will be billed on a " Time and Materials" basis however the initial agreed on

budget will not be exceeded without prior negotiation with ookken and the City. Should the

construction schedule be extended, or should IEC be requested to provide additional services, IEC will

request additional budget from ookkenand the City



We sincerely appreciate the opportunity to provide this proposal and assist the City with this project. 
Please contact me at ( 858) 413- 2400 should you have any questions or need further information. 

Sincerely, 

51' 
1iio

Robert S. Weber, PE Scott Adamson, PE John Klemunes, PE

Senior Project Manager Construction Services Manager Regional Manager

Infrastructure Engineering Corporation Infrastructure Engineering Corporation Dokken Engineering

M



Mr- Jeremiah Piarrington

City of Lemon Grove
3232 Main Street

Subject: Revised Scope and Fee Estimate for Geotechnical and Material Testing Services
Sewer Capital Improvement Project Bid Sc« U— SewerUpaizinO

Lemon Grove, California

Dear Mr. Harrington: 

In accordance with your request, we have prepared this revised Scope and Fee Estimate for

providing geotechnical and material testing services onthe subject project. Weunderstand the
project is to include the removal of 6 - inch to 10- inoh sewer lines and mp| omamcnt of them with

8 -inch and 12 -inch sewer lines at various locations in the City mLemon Grove. The construction

will include a total of approximately 4000 lineal feet of pipelines, as well as the construction of new

mmnho| ns, n|eanouts. and DawmrkOur services will be needed for observation of the bottom of

the trench and pipe bedding. Vvowill also provide observations and testing nf trench backfill, sub- 

o, oue. aggregate base, and asphalt concrete. Additional services are anticipated for the sampling
of concrete utilized in the construction of manhole risers and concrete sidewalk replacement. 

No construction schedule was available at the time of this pmpooa|, and approximately

200 hours of on- call materials testing services has been requested as an initial budget. We an- 

ficipate providing the following services at your request: 

observation by Our field technician of trench bottoms. Observation and testing by our fioN
technician of trench backfill, subgrade, aggregate base, and asphalt concrete. In- placo den- 

sity tests will be conducted in general accordance with nuclear gauge methods ( ASTM
mtemuhono| [ ASTM] Do0o8) The technician will p* cpvm daily Uo| d reports desuhbmg the

Sampling and testing o/ concrete placement by our ACI -credentialed technician. Our
um» nimn" will measure the concrete for temperature and slump and cast specimens for
compressive strength

15- 



Sewer Capital Improvement Project Bid Set 11 - Sewer Upsizing August 5, 2016

Lemon Grove, California Proposal No. 106355046

Laboratory testing of the materials used for bedding, backfill, aggregate base, asphalt pave- 
ment, and concrete. The tests performed are anticipated to include Proctor density/ optimurr- 
moisture content ( ASTM D 1557), sand equivalent, sieve analysis, Hveern density ( D1188), 
and compressive strength ( C39). Other tests will be performed, as requested. 

Preparation of a summary report presenting the results of our testing and our opinion of -0m
conformance of the work with the project specifications. 

Based on the Q , ect duration and our antic - m, 

ipated involvement, the estimated fee for the services described herein is approximately

32, 300 ( Thirty -Two Thousand Three Hundred Dollars). A breakdown of the estimated fee is
attached as Table 1. If this proposal meets with your approval, please forward your Task Order. 

We appreciate the opportunity to work with you on this project. 

Brian T. Matusek Kenneth H. Mansir, Jr., PE, GE

Senior Staff Geologist Principal Engineer

BTM/ KHM/ gg

Attachment: Table 1 - Breakdown of Estimated Fee

Distribution: ( 1) Addressee

M

16



Attachment D — Exhibit 2

Sewer Capital Improvement Project Bid Set 11 — Sewer Upsizing August 5, 2016

Lemon Grove, California Proposal No. 106355046

TABLE I — BREAKDOWN OF ESTIMATED FEE

UTILITY TRENCH BACKFILL OBSERVATION AND TESTING

Senior Staff Engineer/ Geologisl

Senior Field/ Laboratory Technician

Field Vehicle Usage

Send Equivalent, D 2419, CT 217

Sieve Analysis, D 422, CT 202

Proctor Density - D 1557 or D 698

6 hours @ $ 141. 00 Incur $ 846. 00

200 hours @ $ 87. 00 / hour $ 17, 40000

Senior Field/ Laboratory Technician

200 hours @ $ 12. 00 / hour $ 2, 400. 00

2 tests @ $ 9000 / test $ 18000

2 tests @ $ 120. 00 / test $ 240. 00

8 tests @ $ 200. 00 / test $ 1, 600. 00

Subtotal $ 22, 666 . 00

PAVEMENT SECTION OBSERVATION AND TESTING

Senior Staff Engineer/ Geologist 4 hours @ $ 141. 00 / hour $ 56400

Senior Field/ Laboratory Technician 20 hours @ $ 87. 00 / hour $ 1, 740. 00

Field Vehicle Usage 20 hours @ $ 1200 / hour $ 240. 00

Hveem Stability and Unit Weight CTM or ASTM, CT 366 4 tests @ $ 215. 00 / test $ 86000

Extraction, % Asphalt, including Gradation, D 2172, CT 310 4 tests @ $ 240. 00 / test $ 960. 00

Subtotal 4, 364, 00

CONCRETE SAMPLING AND TESTING

ACI Concrete Technician 8 hours@ $ 87. 00 / hour $ 69600

Field Vehicle Usage 8 hours@ $ 12. 00 / hour $ 96. 00

Compression Tests, 6x12 Cylinder, C 39 12 tests @ $ 25. 00 / test $ 30000

Subtotal

11"...-1111-- 

1, 092. 00

PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND REPORT PREPARATION

6ncipal Engineer/ Geologist 8 hours @ $ 168. 00 / hour $ 1, 344 00

enior Staff Engineer/ Geologisi. 20 hours @ $ 141 00 Incur $ 2, 820 00

Subtotal 4, 164. 00

TOTAL ESTIMATED FEE $ 32, 286. 00

1 ofl



D- MAxlRn~^ neeri0g, Inc. 
Co^ m\ mn' sioWater & Environmental Sciences

Septerriber 15, 2016

Mc MaQkTamimi

City mLemon Grove
3232Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

HIM lawNsom A1111111111

No immmm ME" 

am

Subject: Storm Water Construction Inspections at the FY 2016- 17Sewer Upsizing
Capital Improvement Project

Dear MrTamimi: 

IN MOTO

arneridea Dy Ur Os. # 77--1111717971:, UM IL

and post -construction BMP ordinances, 

Scope mfServices

VYewill provide the following services adthe " FY oo1E+ 17Sewer UpszingCapital Improvement
Project": 

Conduct regular, routine inspections based on the site phoritization assigned via the
process included inthe JRMP. 

v During the wet season, high priority sites are inspected twice per mnnth, medium
priority sites are inspected monthly' and low priority sites are inspected as
needed

o During site inspections, we will walk the site with the responsible person and
discuss the condition of the sites and potential corrective actions during the
inspection where possible. We expect that the fist inspection may be longer
than subsequent inspections. During all inspections after the first inspection . our
inspector will document the extent to which deficiencies noted during the

preceding inspections have been resolved

e We will document inspection results and required corrective actions on aQty of

Lemon Grove construction inspection form The form will clearly identify
instances of non- compliance and our recommendations for resolving the non- 
compliance VY* will include photos, marked up schematics, mother figures as
necessary to illustrate places where correction needs to be madeInspection
documentation will bedelivered through email and, ifnecessary, byfax

o For efficiency, routine inspections will be scheduled tzoccur nndays where D- 
M^ x will also be conducting storm water construction inspections at private
construction projects inthe City

71u" Iom, IFnvpW "' vill,. N° rj8+"^ c, 4Qo/ N/* m. sn6* 0111PHill Fax ' osm5oaxaw



malikum. m./ 
no NEMMMAMM

Gilyu/ mmnumv

September 15, ro/ a M" VW BE A 

poo^ c

Conduct as- neededfoUnw- upmpm- andpout- rainev* n inspections

o Additional fo| I0W' upinspections may be necessary to verify corrections required
during routine inspections have been mode. Often follow- up inspections are

completed prior to rain to verifyverifycorrections have been made before e storm
and/ or after a storm to verify that BMPu performed adequately In some cases, 
emailed photos demonstrating that required corrections have been mad* may be
accepted inlieu ofanonsite follow- up inspection, 

Attend pr*' cnnstTnCtiwo meeting todescribe storm water requirements, ifrequested, 

o If requested by the City' we will review the requirements as presented on the
erosion control plan, focusing on key actions necessary to maintain compliance, 
The importance oferosion control BMPs, which have been the Subject o/ multiple

recent enforcement actions by the Regional Doard, will also be stressed. The

goal of the storm water discussion during the pre -construction meeting ivto
establish o|* or expectations for the contractor as a proactive step to minimize
future risk of noncompliance. 

Collected runoff samples asneeded

o Runoff samples will be collected as needed to assess BIVIP effectiveness
Samples are collected from Storm runoff and are typically analyzed for turbidity
and pH, Additional analyses can also U* completed when necessary

0 Ent mnememdouumentatimnassistance

o If enforcement action beyond providing written correction notices based oil
inspections becomes n* uemnory' we will provide the City with o written
description o/ violation( s) noted and necessary supporting documentation to
support preparation ofother enforcement actions, such as notices of violation, 

administrative citations, and stop work orders

o We understand that City staff will notify the Regional Board in the event that
escalated enforcement action iotaken. 

Deliverables foreach inspected project will include the 0o| kxeng: 

Attendance atpre- uonstTuctionmeetings

A completed inspection form and associated photos for each inspection

A memo summarizing results oYstorm water runoff sampling for each sampling even
We will also maintain a list of dates inspections have been completed for reference by City staff

Cost Estimate

We will complete the tasks described above on atime and materials basis in a000damueaom
the attached fee schedu| e, not to exceed $ 6' 000. We expect that the per inspection oost, 

including reporting and , ecn/ dka* ping. will typically be about $ 250 to $ 400 per inspecdon, with
the amoumdepending on the extent of deficiencies noted at the niten, and the amoun, Of foUoW' 



walfilkTamm/ EM ' EMMOM MME
EM NOMMM& NO

okymi-nmonGrove EM now MW MO

oepleinnbe, 1s. mWe M AMM MW = A sy

Page

up correspondence necessary following each inspection, This estimation is based on project
construction period of 12 months. Extra services will becharged separately, 

Should you have any questions regarding the above comments, please call me at ( 858) 50O- 
80OO' extension 22. 

Sincerely, 

D- MAXEng| neehng' Inc. 

AmalanDaUhhah, Ph.[ l.P. E

Principal



AM INAM" * VM

u

SCHEDULE OF FEES

City of Lemon Grove Construction and Development Storm Water Services

January 1, 2016

Classification Hourly Rate

Word Processor 65

Drafter 75

Technician 75

Senior Technician 85

Staff Scientist/ Engineer 1 95

Staff Scientist/ Engineer 11 110

Assistant Project Scientist/ Engineer 120

Project Scientist/ Engineer 136

Senior Scientist/ Engineer 155

Principal Scientist/ Engineer 175

Field and hourly services will be

charged portal to portal from our office, 

with a two-hour minimum. 

Appearance as expert witnesses at

court trials, mediation, arbitration

hearings and depositions will be

charged at $ 200/ hour. Time spent

preparing for such appearances will be
charged at the above standard hourly
rates. 

IJOWNFIIANIII, M

Subcontracted services, such as sub

consultants, outside testing, drilling, and
surveyors, will be charged at cost plus

15%. Other project - specific costs, such

as rentals, expendable or special

supplies, special project insurance, 

permits and licenses, shipping, 

subsistence, tolls and parking, outside

copying/ printing, etc., will be charged at
cost plus 15% Mileage will be charged

at the current IRS rate Meals, lodging, 
and travel expenses, when pre - 

approved by the City, will be charged at
cost or at standard per diem rates, as

applicable. 

Client will be responsible for any
applicable taxes in addition to the fees

due for Services. 

21. 



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. _ 1. E _ 

Mtg. Date Octobertober 4 2016
Dept. Development Services

Item Title: Second Amendment to Option Agreement Between City of Lemon Grove and
the San Diego Community Land Trust for 8084 Lemon Grove Way

Staff Contact: David De Vries, Development Services Director

Recommendation: 

Adopt a resolution amending the Option Agreement to provide a second six month time
extension. 

Item Summary: 

In September 2014, tl' ae City rrrrl Sar" DCC 9 a C,0  
Purchase

1- and 1rri ( af C4.. T or°rt coca into

aPura,;h ase Option Agreer ient for Itle ( vWntrral sale of 808,4 Len,iorr (' rovE: VVElY, I_er q̀" ron trove

Housing Authority owned land Tile 1° rurchase Optiot" Arfweernerit regUiGed Sl) CI- T Io complete
certain rrjlle9torres b ) ecif' ieci  rr rr..ri ih r orrlc toraa"~, s cul ung buitdrr,.,ig gird Site

r

y I  al iles. f lac

irliprovernent peimits an(,] securing, as to 9orrrr, fire 99..yra ar r, jrourad le.,Ise t) ropos d to be used as
l M1f1, 2016 and Me first, 

the conveyanceanrof Afla:frcl. rlrle Unit iriterr s ts w1s to tae c orriplek,.,d by May  

Option Aru endillerrt extended this date to fir iObEr 19, t?t1 t6 , lra e rnilestones erascirE' that SDCLT

has, progr(r sled towards the purc.,faasr:: of 80t.34 I. eriion ( arrive Fly, fkre applicant is working with

City staff and other agencies to achieve this rr'rilr storre, they will be unable to meet the

sl:.)e ifier,l deadline, The staff report presents an ov(-,Wiew o f progressr ss towards achievarrrf this

mileslone ("# rt,y staff recoririrn(,m(.lrr llr,.rt the City t. (¢ Anal adopt za i'fa Olr.utir. n arnerrr:ling fl"re Option

Agreenlent to provide a second six time rrxtension. 

Fiscal Impact: 

None. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section

Public Information: 

None  
Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Staff Report

B. Resolution Amending the Option Agreement

C. Time Extension Request from SDCLT

Negative Declaration

C Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

Neighborhood meeting



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Item No. 1. E

Mtg. Date October 4, 2016

Attachment A

Item Title: Second Amendment to Option Agreement Between City of Lemon Grove and
the San Diego Community Land Trust for 8084 Lemon Grove Way, 

Staff Contact: David De Vries, Development Services Director

Discussion: 

On September 22, 2014, the City and San Diego Community Land Trust ( SDCLT) entered into a
Purchase Option Agreement for the eventual sale of 8084 Lemon Grove Way which is owned by
the Lemon Grove Housing Authority ( City Council Resolution No. 2014- 3284 dated September
16, 2014). A nine unit housing development is currently entitled on the subject property based
on approvals in 2007 and amendments approved on March 1, 2016. The Purchase Option

Agreement allows SDCLT to purchase the property for one dollar in exchange for constructing
the units and restricting them to moderate income households included in their 99 -year ground
lease mechanism. SDCLT is required to achieve certain milestones by specified dates. These

milestones ensure that SDCLT has done their due diligence to determine whether the project is

feasible. 

The first milestone— submission of a business plan— was to be achieved by December 2014. 
The business plan was submitted on December 1, 2014 and the City Council reviewed the
business plan and provided feedback to SDCLT on January 6, 2015. 

The second milestone— securing entitlements and construction financing— was to be achieved

by September 2, 2015 and October 19, 2015, respectively. Minimal revisions to the approved
Tentative Map ( TM0052) and Planned Development Permit ( PDP06- 09) were proposed and

amendments to the floor and elevation plans were approved by the City Council on March 1, 
2016. Entitlements are in place until February 20, 2017. On September 4, 2015, SDCLT

submitted a Letter of Intent ( LOI) from Torrey Pines Bank that has been signed with the Bank
required deposit providing conditional approval for construction financing from Torrey Pines
Bank. These actions satisfied the second milestone. 

The third milestone— submit building and site improvement applications— was to be achieved by
April 4, 2016 This milestone requires submittal of development plans and technical studies

required for a grading permit, building permit, landscape permit, and a final map. Appropriate

plans and reports include building and site construction plans, grading plans, a landscape
documentation package, an acoustical analysis, a Storm Water Quality Management Plan and a
hydrology report, draft Conditions, Covenants, and Restrictions ( CC& Rs), and potentially other

necessary reports, studies, and plans in accordance with City Council Resolutions 2694 and
2695, which approved TM0052 and PDP06- 09 respectively. A " Hold Harmless" agreement was

rrmquiied I"a. F e,301 ' Srabt rrttal to Feer r_,,) ry of 2016, SD(. 11 sut', mifted th(,,, necessnry r.' wrrnit

applications achieving the third milestone. 

The fourth rn * ne— secu ring building and site improvement permits and securing approval
to form of the 99 -year ground lease proposed to be used as the conveyance of Affordable Unit

interests— was to be achieved by May 19, 2016, but is now extended to October 19, 2016, 



Attachment A

requires that all permits applied for in the third milestone are secured ( permits issued and

improvements secured either through a bond or cash deposit). At this time, SDCLT is

responding to the initial corrections provided to them related to the building and engineering
permits and the final map application submittals and is working towards removing all storm
water detention facilities from the access road and onto the subject property. City staff estimates
all of the needed engineering and building permits in the fourth milestone should be able to be
issued and secured within three to six months. City staff recommends that a second six month
extension to the Option Agreement be provided in order to allow SDCLT sufficient time to
secure the permits. 

SDCLT has submitted a draft ground lease for City review and the City provided feedback to
SDCLT in June 2016 that the draft lease must: 1) eliminate provisions that would allow the units

to revert to market rate housing in the event of a leasehold mortgage foreclosure, which would
eliminate affordable housing restrictions; and 2) that provisions must be added to the lease that
restrict the lease payments of the moderate income households ( lessees) to be consistent with

state law ( mortgage payments and related housing costs shall be equal to or less than 35
percent of the gross monthly household income). The regulatory agreement will be drafted once
concerns with the 99 -year ground lease are resolved to ensure consistency with state law and
City affordable housing objectives. A draft of the affordability agreements and the 99 -year
ground lease will be mutually agreed upon by City staff and SDCLT before it is submitted to City
Council for consideration and approval at a future meeting. 

Should the City Council decide to take no action providing for no amendment to the Option
Agreement, then the Option Agreement will terminate on October 19, 2016 since the fourth
milestone would not have been achieved and, thereafter, the developer would need to

renegotiate a new option agreement with the City should they continue to pursue the project. 
The City Council may pursue other opportunities for the property if this option agreement
terminates. 

Conclusion: 

City staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution amending the Option Agreement
to provide a second six month time extension. 



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA
APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO AN OPTION AGREEMENT WITH THE SAN DIEGO

COMMUNITY LAND TRUST FOR THE PARCEL IDENTIFIED AS 8084 LEMON GROVE WAY
APN 475- 450- 19- 00) 

WHEREAS, on June 20, 2006 and June 19, 2007, the former Lemon Grove Community
Development Agency and a developer entered into loan agreements for the development of
nine townhome units at 8084 Lemon Grove Way; and

WHEREAS, said developer defaulted on the loan agreements, resulting in the parcel
identified as 8084 Lemon Grove Way becoming property of the City of Lemon Grove; and

WHEREAS, in 2014, the San Diego Community Land Trust provided a formal offer to
purchase 8084 Lemon Grove Way from the City of Lemon Grove; and

WHEREAS, the San Diego Community Land Trust' s offer included a commitment to
develop and construct a minimum of nine affordable housing units to be ground leased for a 99 - 
year period to households earning from 80 percent to 120 percent of the San Diego Area
Median Income at the time of sale or resale; and

WHEREAS, the provision of these affordable units helps meet the City' s moderate
housing targets established by the Regional Housing Needs Assessment ( January 1, 2013 — 
December 31, 2020); and

WHEREAS, on June 17, 2014, the City Council directed City staff to negotiate purchase
agreements with the San Diego Community Land Trust, based on its offer; and

WHEREAS, on September 16, 2014, the City Council approved an Option Agreement
and a Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement between the City of Lemon Grove and the
San Diego Community Land Trust; and

WHEREAS, on May 17, 2016, the City Council approved an amendment to the Option
Agreement with the San Diego Community Land Trust extending the expiration date of
milestone 7. 4 to October 19, 2016 and the option term to March 22, 2017 ( both six month

extensions) and including an Optionee requirement to execute an Affordable Housing
Agreement and Regulatory Agreement and a Notice of Affordability Restrictions on Transfer of
Property; and

WHEREAS, the City has negotiated a second amendment to the Option Agreement with
the San Diego Community Land Trust further extending the expiration date of milestone 7. 4 to
April 19, 2017 and the option term to September 22, 2017 ( both six month extensions); and

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed said amendment; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds it in the best interest of the City of Lemon Grove to
approve said amendment; and

NOW, THEREFORE, E IT RESOLVED thal tl' vv City Ccg g1( jJ ( it' tfie t, oy (:) i 1,. ei"i n; 

Grove, California hereby: 

1, Approves a second Amendment to the Option Agreement ( Exhibit 1) between the

City of Lemon Grove and the San Diego Community Land Trust; and
2, Authorizes the City Manager to execute said Amendment and related documents

subject to minor modifications. The draft 99 -year ground lease and regulatory

agreement will be provided to City Council for consideration and approval. 



EXHIBIT 1

SECOND AMENDMENT TO OPTION AGREEMENT

This Second Amendment to Option Agreement (" Second Amendment") is entered into as
of October _, 2016, by and between and between THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE a public
body (" Optionor") and THE SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY LAND TRUST a California 501( c)( 3) 
non- profit organization(" Op±ionee°) 

RECITALS: 

A Optionor and Optionee entered into that certain Option Agreement dated September 22, 
2014 relating the Property commonly known as 8084 Lemon Gove Way, Lemon Grove, CA
APN475- 450- 19- 00), as amended by the First Amendment dated March 18, 2016 ( together the
Option Agreement"). 

B. Optionor and Optionee desire to further amend the Option Agreement set forth herein. 
All initially capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the same meanings as set
forth in the Option Agreement. 

AGREEMENT: 

1. Extension of Option Term. Paragraph 4 of the Option Agreement is deleted in
its entirety and replaced as follows: 

A Diorr I- era of t"Iac Option f°r°any r exercised upon the Effective Date and no
later tharf September 22, 2017.( the " Option Term"), unless terminated earlier under
the ten171s of Section 6. If the Option is not exercised in accordance with the
provisnor as and cf; ndi ior,is I aereof dtAiflg the Option Term, then the Option shall expire
and the panties shatl have f-ao forth(Ir obligations under this Agreement with the
exception of any surviving indemnification obligations as provided in this Agreement." 

the Option Agreemet is deleted in its entirety and replaced as follows
af fN Subparagraph 7. 4 ofion o f deadline for Permiit acid O tuc) n s

ows

7. 4 No later than April 19, 2017: ( a) Optionee shall have ( i) secured Building
and Site Improvement Permits ( including building, street improvement, and

grading plans shall be issued and the final map shall be recorded), ( ii) secured

Optionor' s approval as to form of the 99 -year ground lease proposed to be used
as the conveyance of Affordable Unit interests; and ( b) Optionor shall have
prepared for recording on the Closing Date as defined in the Purchase
agreement in the records of San Diego County, an Affordable Housing
Agreement and Regulatory Agreement and a Notice of Affordability Restrictions
on Transfer of Property ( together " Regulatory Agreement"). Optionor and

Optionee agree that recordation of said Regulatory Agreement shall be deemed
a condition of City' s ( Optionor' s) obligation to transfer the Property to the
Developer (" Optionee") under the Purchase Agreement and the Purchase
Agreement shall be amended to include said condition prior to execution

3. ( ounate f..fj'ar IIfls f fmoa° d Afnnendment may be signed in multiple counterparts
with the same force .. and t"410f l r15 if all onagin;, l signatures appeared on one copy; and in the
event this Secoraa,°1 i , SkinC",(] In COUnterparts, each counterpart shall be deemed an
original and all e) itPawsa e efeanatfn gm aft si'iatl be d(e,, . tried to be one Second Amp-nr mpnt
M



4, Effect of S(, , nd Amendwient

Agreement

remain11
s in full force and effect. 

Attachment B

Except as amended hereby, the Option

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Optionor and Optionee have executed this Second Amendment
as of the date set forth above

OPTIONOR: 

THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE., 

Name: 

Its: 

Approved as to legal form. 

By
James P. Lough, City Attorney

OPTIONEE: 

THE SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY LAND TRUST, 

M

Name

Its: 



W

Bmwcl 0 DiF ectc) ff-S Septern e 1' 7

Schard Lawrence

flow DaWd B. De Vick AICCP
t),,avis f)cveloj,.)rrwnt SemicGs, Direwor' 

President City of Lemon Grove
WNW W-Aby Developn- ient services Department

Smrguay
3232 Mak A

Tom ScoR

Cpo Umon Gmve, C/ y 9194.) 

Damon Braden

Momas caawdgln RE: Req wM Rx 00011 ExwnAon — 8084 Lemon ( hove MAY

Make Kennedy
Ixe Van Dian' Dear Davi( L

C We 2 , W 0, Noy I & 2A 16 Fkm A rnendnrent. to option Agreenjent between the City 0 r
AWO" CwnmWee

Lemon Chn v wd W, S, I N, W t Wmmurdty Land 1' rust ( SDC LT) requires Lhat no pater Kan
the Chy' s approval of theMahn Humhw Chair Odoba It 2W 6 SWU Ims sonlred bWW& g Permits mW smumd

Chories Black
Rw", 

oil
pl,(,)und lease and Regulatory AgreerneM., 

Gina Champion- ' ain

WeWH Mvmh SOUL t, 141s wmked difigently %vkh t lelix MIItcl ood 01C 1 [ 11, " VIal " hall fu hild
Robert Ro

Vince Kasperick Kmnj hm twWd kmp Ow Wous OWOM eau ,: b

Toni Lernillon

Wa, dWnh to duvdop an ahniWive flint oVoIdd PT
Namy 19de

Arnulfo ManriqUeZ the StOrni water on site. These pWis are currend,, hehlp dcvulk, ped Ind we moik- 9paw ^ mhrnmjllp
David mulvaney the K ... 6,, M,,,, w-,Iteg- plau, within 4 to 6 weeks. 

Slic tzeynolds

Susan FUggs 1, addil:j() C,., vve, have yet to 1' eceivet drag Hpilatory
Agreement for rev& v- 

DebWe Ruane

Bal ry schutrz we theretbre request till extension to the () pfion Agreement to aHONY us to conclude ou' r

Bdan Troder divelopmonnofthe ah.ernative stot in Water Man and redew and ap-ee on the Ann of ReguWcn-Y
avicl Weiland

1, " r e4 e ( i vc V i e " ( , 1. ()' r

J - n DQz, Ad dwbW

Page I of I

M



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 2

Mt -

b

g, Date—. October , 2016

Dept. eveloent Services Department

Item Title: Public Hearing to Consider Planned Development Permit PDP150- 0003, 
Tentative Map TMO- 000- 0062, General Plan Amendment GPA -150- 0003, and
Zoning Amendment ZA1- 500- 0004 Authorizing a 24 -Lot Subdivision and
Construction of 20 Dwelling Units on 2. 064 Acres at the Southwest Corner of
Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas

Staff Contact: Eric Craig, Associate Planner
David De Vries, Development Services Director

Recommendation: 

1) Conduct the public hearing; 

2) Adopt a resolution ( Attachment B) approving General Plan Amendment GPA -150- 0003
and certifying Mitigated Negative Declaration ND16- 04; 

3) Introduce and conduct first reading of Ordinance No. 440 ( Attachment C) approving

Zoning Amendment ( ZA1- 500- 0004); 
4) Adopt a resolution ( Attachment D) conditionally approving Tentative Map TMO- 000- 0062; 

and

5) Adopt a resolution ( Attachment E) conditionally approving Planned Development Permit
PDP -150- 0003. 

Item Summary: 

The proposed project is located on the southwest corner of Palm Street and Camino De Las
Palmas on a 2. 064 acre vacant site in the Residential Low and Residential Low/ Medium zones. 
The request is to 1) amend the General Plan land use designation from Transportation to
Medium Density Residential ( up to 14 dwelling units per acre), 2) amend the Zoning District

from Residential Low ( RL) and Residential Low/ Medium ( RL/ M) to Residential Medium ( RM), 3) 

approve a Tentative Subdivision Map to authorize a 24 -lot subdivision, including 20 residential
lots, one private street lot ( 0. 30 acres), and three common area lots, and 4) approve a Planned

Development Permit for the development of 14 single- family homes, three twin homes, and two
common area parks. The staff report describes the project in detail. The project, as proposed
and conditioned, in the resolutions complies with the Municipal Code. 

Fiscal Impact: 

No fiscal impact. 

Environmental Review: 

E] Not subject to review Negative Declaration

Mitigated Negative Declaration



None El Newsletter article ® Notice to property owners within 500 ft
Notice published in local newspaper ® Neighborhood meeting

Attachments: 

A. Staff Report

B. Resolution -(GPA=150- 0003) 

C. Ordinance 440 ( ZA1- 500- 0004) 

D. Resolution ( TMO- 000- 0062) 

E. Resolution ( PDP -150- 0003) 

F. Mitigated Negative Declaration ND16- 04

G. Vicinity Map

H. General Plan Tables CD -1 & 2

L Letter from the Applicant

J Exhibit "A"—Project Plans



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Item No. 2

Mtg. Date : October 4, 2016

Attachment A

Item Title: Public Hearing to Consider Planned Development Permit PDP -150- 0003, 
Tentative Map TMO- 000- 0062, General Plan Amendment GPA -150- 0003, and
Zoning Amendment ZA1- 500- 0004 Authorizing a 24 -Lot Subdivision and
Construction of 20 Dwelling Units on 2. 064 Acres at the Southwest Corner of
Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas

Staff Contact: Eric Craig, Associate Planner
David De Vries, Development Services Director

SURROUNDING

PROPERTIES: 

ENVIRONMENTAL

IMPACT: 

North: Single- family residential

South: Single- family residential

East: Vacant Caltrans property and State Route 125

West: Liberty Charter High School and single- family residential

A Mitre, ited Negahve ter e lanifion ( MIN111")) of Enviri.ir p°') erltal Iprrpart will

be ; rl i: l rptr., rirJr r"rt 1,0l.hrrr a. iittrit tpr n and final approval of tl°re
l,.,rrrtii si.ir f ojetia [) ytVri. (" it ('" w"In(,,! J, 

JJJ

ie Initial StI.,1dY

prepar,r5d for project is e[ltifio ;t Iy:,jtetrjtral ir,jjpzir; ts rtl°p ippr( il:°)riale

r itif : trrrr' io "" Issr u'ati" rl wilh cultur" il l G; rsource geology , Ind

Noise, , in l Mandtitory lir"1(: tip ' s () f Significance, , A dr,'aft MND was

Wed voth tlie 4maci in( y t ierk pnor to t. lr, City , ixjnri it public, hearing, 



Attachment A

Background: 

This project was originally considered by the City Council on April 19, 2016. At the April 19th
hearing, the City Council reviewed and disapproved the project recommending that it be

I" lle propose(: J 22 16 of which were in the attached, twin -home
configuration, and six of wNch were suiglefarnily residences. The project included one common
area park and pr'Oposed a two- cai, gar, ige per unit, four guest parking spaces, and six driveway

No private rear yar(Js were provided, The City Council provided feedback that the
prr")ject density was " xccssivt, and the pro,ject design should more closely reflect a single- family
residentiall C( NIMILINty and there should be Increased parks or open space and parking. 

In r'esponse, the apl) Hcant st.,jbrnitted r('wised pr()Ject plans for City Council consideration for a 20
unit proIect, with ' l4 ( jc"tacliecl single- farflily Units and six units in the attached twin -home
configuratior), An addi6orial COIT101011 area park replaced a single- farrAy resideri( ii,,O lot a( J acent

ThO projecl now provides a passive view park and an active park oi1_sjtc,,., to the cul- de J

The project now exceeds requirerrientS for USat) 1e open space and this deviation is rio longer
requested. Two garage spaces are provided per unit, 14 driveway spaces ( eight zind

six guest parking spaces ( two additional) are provided, Private rear yards are also provideci, I' Ile
new project proposes less environmental impacts and less impacts on City public services. 
Discussion: 

Site and Project Description

Chris Dahrling, Vista Azul, LLC filed a complete application on September 15, 2016. 
The property is a vacant 89, 887 square foot ( 2, 064 gross acre) parcel, which is a for,irler
Caltrans right- of-way that remained after constrUction, of State ROUle," ( SFJ) ' 125The piroposed
project is a request to 1) amend the General Pliin Land Use DesignaIion from Transportation to
Medium Density Residential ( up to 14 dwelling UnkS per acre), 2) amend the Zoning District
from Residential Low ( RL) and Residential LowlMedil, 411 ( RUM) to Residential Mediiji,11 ( 133), 3) 

approve a Tentative Subdivision Map to authorize a 24 -lot subdivision, inclu(,'fing: 20 residen6al
lots, one private street lot, and three common area lots, and 4) approve an associ,,,ited Planned' 
Development Permit for the site improvements. This staff report provides a description of the
existing site, the proposed project and the conformance to the regulatory framework. 
1]" Ie, propect propos(" s ' 14 sirlgle- fan-IOY units and three twin -homes ( six attached units) for a total
of 20 dwelling units, it is clesiqned to provide a comin"ron cirea park and two clef ached sin( Je_ 
fan"Oly reskjen(,es, locr_Ite( j along the Palm Street caul -de sari C0411patible With the
hornes lo than, South along (,", amino De Las PaIll,,las. Twelve addibonal deta(,'-,hexJ sjtnc1Je_ r,,,Ia1j1y
residences are located along the perimeter of the project site on top, of Ole hill along Pa

I

fin Street

and Camino De Las Palmas. The remaining six dwelling units arecon1p() reed of three twwI- 
homes, which are grouped together in the center or interior of the site not visible from the public
right- of-way. The subdivision proposes 20 residential lots ranging in size from 1, 330 square feet
to 11, 237 square feet and four additional lots that include a lot for the private street ( Lot A), two
lots providing a separate active and passive common area park ( Lot B and Lot D), and a

common private parking lot ( Lot (",) - I" he two Gof'flrrion area pai'ks have a cornbined of

8, 287 square feet that includes a ' 1, 525 SCILKire foot turf area SUH' ot.inc:k,ad 1) y a Walking on
Lot 13; and a 2, 020 square foot a(: tiv(,r, use area witl,°ii a, play ;; trUCtUi' e, b('r,, nch, barl,,wcue gfill, 

shade canopy, and picnic table on Lot D. Total net area of tfro ( Jevelopioent ( exclt,idjng the
private street) is 1. 752 acres. The maximum clen,34 for O" ie prop(.)se(.'l Medh.im IResidenti,,,,Il land
use designation is 14 dwelling units per acre, or a maximum of 24 dwelling units. The proposed
density is 11. 4 dwelling units per acre, 20 total dwelling units. 

M



Attachment A

The proposed private street will take access from the cul- de- sac portion of Palm Street at two
locations. The private street provides sidewalks on both sides with rolled curb and gutters. 
Required guest parking will be provided by a combination of on -street parallel parking ( two

spaces) and off- street parking areas ( four spaces inc{urlirlg one ADA- coropin,, int spy ices) Otlrrrr

improvements for the project include a project monument sign o 1 the r u1- rlo- sar portion of F.raln' I
Street, hardscape, landscaping and irrigation, lighting, a detention basirr at the sotltl eeasl corner" 
of the site, a six- foot high sound wall behind the proposed units orl Lots 1 tlTrrough l` and the
common area park ( Lot B), and stairs and a walkway that provide access from the pwjecl to
Palm Street to the north. 

The State has established Regional Housing Needs Allocation ( RHNA) targets for each city in
order to ensure adequate housing stock. RHNA targets create athreshold for cities in order to
obtain grant and transportation funding. This project works towards the City' s goals of meeting
its RHNA allotment for market -rate housing or affordable to * rr.rve--moderate income

households. The project also meets housing polrr ios of ttie 1 -- lousing Element as It rel;,Iter to
promoting a mix of housing types and encouraging a balanced mix of housing. 
Land Use Designation

The existing General Plan land use designation is Transportation, which provides for

transportation facilities and associated rights- of-way. The proposed project includes a General
Plan Amendment to re -designate the site from Transportation to Medium Density Residential
up to 14 dwelling units per acre). The General Plan Special Treatment Area overlay

acknowledged that a future general plan amendment would be required after Caltrans sold
excess right- of-way subsequent to construction of SR -125, and anticipated the same

designation as adjacent properties. The residential properties directly across the Palm Street
cul- de- sac to the south of the project are designated Low/ Medium Density Residential ( up to 7
du/ ac). The properties across Palm Street to the north have a Transportaborr larld use
designation and further north and northwest have a Low Density Resr.ter rtral desig,Ination ( Up to
4 du/ ac). The site is conducive to a higher density due to its location, which is On, 1 KIII- r

trafficked collector street, it is directly adjacent to a school on the west, and it is within a quarter
mile of a bus stop which is located at Sweetwater Road and Troy Street. There is vacant
Caltrans right- of-way across Camino De Las Palmas to the east and across Palm Street to the
north. 

Zoning District Amendment and Regulations

The property is currently zoned Residential Low ( up to 4 du/ ac) and Residential Low -Medium
up to 7 du/ ac). The project proposes a Zoning Amendment to Residential Medium ( up to 14

du/ ac). 

The Lemon Grove Municipal Code allows applicants to request deviations from development
standards through the Planned Development Permit process where it can be found that the
project provides equivalent benefits and/ or achieves efficiencies in use, structures, 

transportation and/ or utility systems. The applicant proposes a pedestrian -oriented infill
development with a mix of housing types ( single- family homes and twin -homes), large setbacks

from Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas, bicycle racks for each residence and sited
throughoul l'i'je development, two errtrmlcr.`c8 r', orninorr parks tlr. rt provrc.,trw rerwreationrrl r: rrr aw

for the project, enhanced landscaping throughout the site, and residences that exceed energy
efficiency standards. In order to accomplish this project design, the applicant requests various
deviations from the Zoning and Subdivision Codes, including deviations to the building
envelope, setbacks, lot size and dimensions, building height, and public street requirements

5-- 



The following table describes the development standards of the Residential Medium Zone: 
Criteria Residential Medium ( RM) Proposed Development

Zone Development Standard Standard and Deviations

Min. Lot Area 6, 000 SF ( allows multi family Lot size ranges from 1, 330
units on one lot) square feet to 11, 237 square

feet

Min. Lot Width/ Depth

Setbacks

Building Height

Max. Building Coverage

Bicycle Parking

Building Design

60 -feet by 90 -feet

25 -feet ( front) 

5 -feet ( side) 

20 -feet ( rear) 

25 -feet maximum; height

extensions up to 10 feet high
allowed if all setback are
increased 5 feet

30 -feet by 45 -feet minimum

provided

3 -feet ( front)* 

0 -feet ( side)* 

6 -feet ( rear)* 

Minimum provided shown. 

Setbacks vary per lot. 

32'- 11" maximum; two and three
stories. Increased setbacks are
not proposed. 

None established Approximately 24% for entire
project site

Five required Three common bike racks

provided.- 1 in the common
parking area ( Lot C) and 1 in
each common area park ( Lot B

and Lot D). Bike racks sufficient
for two bicycles are provided in
each garage ( 40 racks total). 

A total of 14 detached single- family residences are proposed. The single-family residences are
proc ") osed around the perimeter of the site. Two different floor plans are provided for the single- 
family dwellings, which range in size from 1, 836 to 2, 079 square feet of living area. The two
u lots Burros(.,,i along the Palm Street frontage are two- story houses ( Plan 1) and the remainingJt; Nmr,, d sim;lle- family units are all three story structures ( Plan 3). The detached two- story
homes include three bedrooms and two and one- half bathrooms. The detached three- story
homes include four bedrooms and three and one- half bathrooms. 

The six units proposed as twin homes would be located at the center of the project site in three
structures All of the twin -home units are three story structures with three bedrooms and three
bathrooms There are two floor plans in the twin home configuration; both plans have 1, 925
square feet of living area, 

In total, there are four different floor plans for the 20 units. The project elevations indicate three
architectural themes ( Spanish Revival, Costal Cottage, and Craftsman) with five different earth- 



Attachment A

toned exterior color packages, including variations in roof and siding materials, window

treatments, entry doors, and garage doors. All proposed units include an attached two -car
garage. 

The neighboring properties to the south are single- family residences with varying forms and
sizes and largely have stucco siding with asphalt shingle roofing with varying window treatments
and siding accents consisting of stone or vertical or horizontal wood siding. The project

proposes roof, siding, and window treatments as presented in the table below: 

Plan Type (# of Description

units) 

1A ( 1 unit); Two- story single-family residence with concrete Spanish style tile roof, 

Spanish Revival
stucco siding, and shutter window treatments. 

1C ( 1 unit); Two- story single- family residence with concrete tile roof, stucco siding, 

Coastal Cottage
decorative rock trim, and shutter window treatments. 

2A ( 2 units in 1 twin Three- story twin homes with concrete Spanish style tile roof, stucco
home); siding, and shutter window treatments. 

Spanish Revival

2B ( 4 units in 2 twin Three- story twin homes with concrete tile roof, stucco siding, 

homes); decorative shingle -board siding, and shutter window treatments. 

Craftsman

3A ( 4 units); Three- story single- family residence with concrete Spanish style tile
Spanish Revival

roof, stucco siding, and shutter window treatments. 

3 ( 4 units); Three- story single- family residence with concrete tile roof, stucco

Craftsman
siding, decorative shingle - board siding, and shutter window

treatments. 

3C ( 4 units); Three- story single- family residence with concrete tile roof, stucco

Coastal Cottage
siding, decorative rock trim, and shutter window treatments. 

Grading

The site is vacant and consists of a relatively flat pad bounded almost entirely by descending
slopes that allows fou view lots to be created The slopes vary in gradient from Z I ( horizontal to
vertical) above Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas, to gentler slopes at gradients of

approximately 31 to 41 above the southern most frontage of Camino De Las Palmas and along
the Palm Street cul- de- sac. Existing slope h(,' ights vary up to approximat0y 30 feet, with the
tallest slopes near the intersection of Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas. The entire site is
proposed to be graded to provide lots that step down gradually along Palm Street from west to
east and along Camino De Las Palmas from north to south. Two to seven - foot high retaining

walls will be provided to accomplish the changes in grade ( approximately 22. 5 feet change in
finished pad elevations). 



Attachment A

Landscaping/ Screening and Usable Open Space

Projects located in residential zones are required to landscape 15 percent of the total lot area. 
The project proposes a total of 46, 362 square feet of landscaping or approximately 60 percent
of the net lot area. Proposed landscaping includes 33 street trees on Palm Street, Camino De
Las Palmas, and the cul- de- sac portion of Palm Street. The 17 existing palm trees along the
public streets will be retained, with 16 new street trees installed along the three adjoining public
streets. An additional 83 trees will be planted on the property including five citrus and plum trees
as required by the landscape provisions. All landscaping along the street and on- site will be
maintained by a private Home Owners Association ( HOA). 

A minimum of 11, 000 square feet of both private and common area usable open space is
required to serve the 20 dwellings proposed. Usable open space are generally considered to be
flat areas for active or passive recreational activities. The project provides 3, 545 sq. ft. of
common usable open space through the two common area parks and provides 12, 687 sq. ft. of
private open space through the private rear yards in each residence. A total of 16, 232 sq. ft. of
usable open space is provided and exceeds requirements. 

Traffic

The Trip Generation Analysis that was prepared for this project estimates the project will
generate approximately 220 average daily trips ( ADT) per day. Based on the San Diego Traffic
Engineers' Council ( SANTEC) and the Institute of Transportation Engineers ( ITE) document

SANTEC/ ITE Guidelines for Traffic Impact Studies in the San Diego Region, a traffic impact
study is not required because the project' s trip generation is calculated to be less than 1, 000
ADT and less than 100 peak hour trips. Additionally, the Trip Generation Analysis determined
that the ADT and number of peak hour trips generated by the proposed project does not trigger
Caltrans' threshold for a requirement to analyze State highway facilities. 

Approximately 90 percent of the trips generated by the proposed project are expected to be
distributed onto Palm Street, with approximately 50 percent heading west into Lemon Grove and
40 percent heading east toward Spring Valley ( County of San Diego). Palm Street is designated
as a Class II Collector in the Mobility Element of the General Plan, and the addition of

approximately 220 vehicle trips is not expected to have any significant traffic impacts. 
Off -Street Parking

The off-street parking requirements for projects in the Residential Medium zone are noted in the
table below. The project proposes a mix of 14 detached single- family residences and three twin - 
homes ( duplexes, for the purpose of the City' s parking requirements). Single- family residences
require two parking spaces per dwelling unit, with the spaces required to be garaged. Duplexes
of one bedroom or more require two parking spaces per unit, one of which must be covered. 
Duplexes also require guest parking space at the rate of one space per four dwelling units. 

8- 



Attachment A

PARKING REQUIREMENTS

Use ( RM Zone Proposed) Number of Units Parking Spaces

Ratio Required

Single - Family Residential 14 Single -Family 2/ Unit, 28

Residences Garaged

Duplex ( 1+ Bedrooms) 6 Units 2/ Unit, One of 12 ( 6 must

which must be covered) 

be Covered

Guest Parking ( Duplex) 6 Units 1/ Four Units 1. 5

Total Required
42

Parking Provided On- site 20 Units 3/ Unit 60

The project proposes two -car garages for all units, plus a total of 20 guest parking spaces, 
including 14 spaces in private driveways, two parallel spaces on the private street and four
spaces within the common parking areas located near the Palm Avenue cul- de- sac. The project
is providing 18 more spaces than required. Additionally, eight on -street parking spaces will be
along the property' s frontage along the north side of the Palm Street cul- de- sac street and 16
on -street parking spaces will be along the Camino De Las Palmas frontage of the subject
property ( a total of 24 on -street spaces are provided that are not accounted for in the parking
table above). A ceiling -mounted bicycle parking space is provided within each garage; and
three common area bicycle racks will be provided; one rack in each of the two common area
parks and one rack in the private parking area. 

Noise

State Route 125 and Palm Street are the primary noise sources within close proximity of the
project. A noise study was conducted for this project. It shows that predicted exterior noise
levels at the proposed building fagades and outdoor of the several lots generally along Camino
De Las Palmas would all exceed the maximum 65 dB CNEL. As a mitigation measure, a six- foot
sound wall will be constructed adjacent to these lots. In addition, the noise study showed that a
windows open" condition will not provide adequate interior noise mitigations at all units. 

Therefore, a " closed window" condition is required for all units subject to noise levels above 60
dBA CNEL to reduce interior noise levels to comply with the City of Lemon Grove requirements. 
The " windows closed" condition requires that mechanical ventilation be installed to move air
within the structure. As a mitigation measure, specific construction assemblies and mechanical
ventilation are required to ensure that the interior levels are reduced below 45 dBA CNEL. 
These mitigation measures have been included as conditions in the Draft Resolution of
Approval. 

Public Street Dedication and Improvement Requirements

I' hire is exLstiing Curb, tuit s , a.. n 4 sldw; lk aka' rt the frontaf,4es of Prrflrll StMO" f -h'. 

Palmas and the Palm Street cul- de- sac. Additionalstreet trees and landscape are proposed
within the four to five foot wide landscape parkway behind the sidewalk. 

Appropriate street dedication is already provided on Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas
There is an existing 52 foot right- of-way width on the Palm Street cul- de- sac where a 56 foot

a



Attachment A

right- of-way width could be required. Staff felt the existing street width was adequate to provide
on -street parking, sufficient vehicle travel lanes, and sidewalk and landscape parkway to not
warrant additional right- of-way dedication, however, this condition requires that the south side of
the Palm Street cul- de- sac be designated " no parking." The adjoining property owners have
agreed to this condition. The cul- de- sac and north side of the street will remain available for on - 
street parking and 24 on -street parking spaces are along the subject property' s street frontage. 
Appropriate requirements have been included in the Draft Resolution of Approval. 

Undergrounding of Overhead Utility Lines

Existing overhead utility lines located within the boundaries of the property or within the one- half
right- of-way abutting the subject property are required to be placed underground. There is
existing power poles located on the property. The service on these poles is to be placed
underground, as well as any new services to the project. A condition has been included in the
Draft Resolution of Approval requiring the undergrounding of all new services to the proposed
project. 

Drainage/ Water Quality

The applicant prepared a Hydrology Report, a Hydro Modification Management Plan ( HMP), 
and a Storm Water Quality Management Plan ( SWAMP) for this project. Low impact design, 
including permeable pavers in driveways and a detention basin will be used to minimize
stormwater impacts and runoff from this project. According to the Hydrology Report prepared for
this project, the increase in flow is not anticipated to have significant impacts on the downstream
storm drain facilities. The HMP prepared for this project determined that the post -construction
hydrologic characteristics of the project simulate the pre -development hydrologic characteristics
at the point of compliance as required. 

The implementation, construction and on- going maintenance of the project components
recommended in these reports are included as conditions in the Draft Resolution of Approval. 
Expiration Date of the Planned Development Permit

The Tentative Map and Planned Development Permits will expire within two ( 2) years if the final
map has not been recorded. This requirement has been included in the Resolution of Approval. 
The General Plan Amendment will be effective after the initial City Council approval and the
Zoning Amendment will be effective after City Council approval and upon second reading of the
zoning amendment ordinance. 

Public Information: 

The Notice of Public Hearing was published in the September 8, 2016 edition of the East
County Californian and mailed to all property owners within 500 feet of the subject property. 
Assembly Bill 52 and Senate Bill 18 Native American Tribal Government Consultation was
conducted pursuant to Government Code Sections 6540. 2, 65092, 65351, 65352. 3, 65352 4, 
65562. 5 et. seq. 

Additionally, the applicant conducted a neighborhood meeting to answer questions of nearby
property owners. 

The City received no comments in response to the Notice of Public Hearing and Environmental
Analysis at the time this staff report was prepared. Staff will provide the City Council at the time
of the public hearing with any comments submitted after the distribution of the staff report. 

10- 



Attachment A

Conclusion: 

Staff recommends that the City Council conduct the public hearing, introduce and conduct first
reading of the Ordinance No. 440 ( Attachment C) and approve the resolutions ( Attachments
B, D, and E). 



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE ; CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA
APPROVING GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT GPA -150- 003 AMENDING THE GENERAL
PLAN LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM TRANSPORTATION TO MEDIUM DENSITY

RESIDENTIAL FOR A PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF PALM
STREET AND CAMINO DE LAS PALMS, LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

WHEREAS, the applicant, Chris Dahrling, Vista Azul, LLC, filed a complete application
for approval of a General Plan Amendment ( GPA -150- 0003) and a Zoning Amendment ( ZA1- 
500- 0004) on September 15, 2016 to amend the General Plan from Transportation to Medium
Density Residential ( up to 14 dwelling units per acre) and to amend the Zoning District from
Residential Low and Residential Low/ Medium to Residential Medium as part of a request for
approval of a Tentative Map ( TM0062) and Planned Development Permit ( PDP150- 0003) to
authorize the subdivision of 2. 064 acres of land into 25 parcels, including 20 residential lots with
20 dwelling units, a lot for a private street, a lot for common parking, and two lots for common
open space; and

WHEREAS, on April 19, 2016, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon
Grove City Council. At the April 19`h hearing, the City Council reviewed and disapproved the
project which proposed 22 units, 16 of which were in the attached twin -home configuration, and
six of which were single- family residences. The City Council provided feedback that the project
density was excessive and the project design should more closely reflect a single- family
residential community. In response, the applicant submitted final revisions to the project plans
on September 15, 2016 for City Council consideration. The revised project proposes 14

detached single- family units and six units in the attached twin -home configuration ( 20 units

total). An additional common area park replaced a single- family residential lot adjacent to the
public cul- de- sac. The new project proposes less environmental impacts and less impacts on
City public services; and

WHEREAS, a Mitigated Negative Declaration ( MND) of Environmental Impact will be

filed subsequent to the adoption and final approval of the proposed project by the City Council. 
The Initial Environmental Study prepared for this project found that the project would have no
significant effect on the environment because identified potentially significant impacts

associated with Cultural Resources, Geology and Soils, Noise, and Mandatory Findings of

Significance will be mitigated to below a level of significance. A notice of intent to adopt a
mitigated negative declaration was filed with the County Clerk prior to the City Council public
hearing -,and

WHEREAS, on October 4, 2016, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the
Lemon Grove City Council; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the General Plan Amendment is in accordance
with Government Code Sections 65350 to 65359 and is consistent with the goals and policies of
the Geriejali I" 11arl awxrj Ch ipter 18, 410 ( Gen(-,?ral IM" lan tvonf ern-ir ty) of the Mrdn1CjJ;1 1l Cocle: 

The existing General Plan land use designation is Transportation, which provides for
transportation facilities and associated rights- of-way. This site was formerly Caltrans
right- of-way which was sold after completion of SR -125. The proposed project includes a
General Plan Amendment to redesignate the site from Transportation to Medium Density
Residential. The General Plan acknowledged that a future general plan amendment



Attachment B

would be required after Caltrans sold excess right- of-way subsequent to construction of
SR -125. The site is conducive to a higher density due to its location, which is on a high
trafficked collector street, it is directly adjacent to a school on the west, and it is within a
quarter mile of a bus stop; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, 
California hereby: 

SECTION 1. Finds and determines that the facts set forth in the recitals of this Resolution are
declared to be true; and

SECTION 2. Certifies the adequacy of the Mitigated Negative Declaration of Environmental
Impact ND16- 04; and

SECTION 3. Approves General Plan Amendment GPA -150- 0003 amending the General Plan
Land Use Designation from Transportation to Medium Density Residential ( up to 14 dwelling units
per net acre) for the property located at the southwest corner of Palm Street and Camino De Las
Palmas ( APN No. 503-252-42- 00). 



Attachment C

ORDINANCE NO. 440

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA
APPROVING ZONING AMENDMENT ZA1- 500- 0004 AMENDING THE ZONING DISTRICT
FROM RESIDENTIAL LOW ( RL) AND RESIDENTIAL LOW/ MEDIUM ( RL/ M) TO

RESIDENTIAL MEDIUM ( RM) FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER
OF PALM STREET AND CAMINO DE LAS PALMAS, LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

WHEREAS, the applicant, Chris Dahrling, Vista Azul, LLC, filed a complete application
for approval of a General Plan Amendment ( GPA -150- 0003) and a Zoning Amendment ( ZA1- 
500- 0004) on September 15, 2016 to amend the General Plan from Transportation to Medium
Density Residential and to amend the Zoning District from Residential Low and Residential
Low/ Medium to Residential Medium as part of a request for approval of a Tentative Map
TM0062) and Planned Development Permit ( PDP150- 0003) to authorize the subdivision of

2. 064 acres of land into 24 parcels, including 20 residential lots with 20 dwelling units, a lot for a
private street, a lot for common parking, and two lots for common open space; and

Wf1ERIEAS, on April 19, 2016, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon
Grove Qly Council. At the April 19th hearing, the City Council reviewed and disapproved the
project which I r p(,')sed 22 Units, 16 of which were in the attached twin -home configuration, and
six of wl'iIcla were s, ngpe- I'at nily residences. The City Council provided feedback that the project
density was excessive and the project design should more closely reflect a single- family
residential community. In response, the applicant submitted final revisions to the project plans
on September 15, 2016 for City Council consideration. The revised project proposes 14

detached single- family units and six units in the attached twin -home configuration ( 20 units
total). An additional common area park replaced a single- family residential lot adjacent to the
public cul- de- sac. The new project proposes less environmental impacts and less impacts on
City public services; and

WHEREAS, a Mitigated Negative Declaration ( MND) of Environmental Impact will be

filed subsequent to the adoption and final approval of the proposed project by the City Council. 
The Initial Environmental Study prepared for this project found that the project would have no
significant effect on the environment because identified potentially significant impacts

associated with Cultural Resources, Geology and Soils, Noise, and Mandatory Findings of

Significance will be mitigated to below a level of significance. A notice of intent to adopt a
mitigated negative declaration was filed with the County Clerk prior to the City Council public
hearing -, and

WHEREAS, on October 4, 2016, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the
Lemon Grove City Council; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the following findings required to approve a
Zoning Amendment can be made in accordance with Section 17. 28. 080( B) of the Municipal

Code: 

That liµncd proposed amend 'meait is c°onsisl; ent with, the Gc".'rlenai I°Irnrn, 41 ac ice with

Government Code Section 65860, as amended The

existing General Plan land use designation is Transportation, which provides for transportation
facilities and associated rights-of-way This site was formerly Caltrans right-
of-way which was sold after completion of SR - 125 The proposed project includes

a General Plan Amendment to redesignate the site from Transportation to



Attachment C

Medium Density Residential. As a part of the Special Treatment Area overlay, the
General Plan acknowledged that a future general plan amendment would be
required after Caltrans sold excess right-of-way subsequent to construction of SR - 
125. 

2. That the public health, safety, and general welfare benefit from the adoption of the
proposed amendment. 

The site is conducive to a higher density due to its location, which is on a high
trafficked collector street, it is directly adjacent to a school on the west, and it is
within a quarter mile of a bus stop. 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA DOES ORDAIN AS
FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. Finds and determines that the facts set forth in the recitals of this Ordinance are
declared to be true; and

SECTION 2. Approves Zoning Amendment ZA1- 500- 0004 amending the Zoning District from
Residential Low and Residential Low/ Medium to Residential Medium for property located at the
southwest corner of Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas ( APN No. 503- 252- 42- 00). 

16 ... 



RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING TENTATIVE

SUBDIVISION MAP TMO- 000- 062 ( PLANNED DEVELOPMENT) AUTHORIZING THE

SUBDIVISION OF A 2. 064 ACRE PARCEL INTO TWENTY RESIDENTIAL LOTS, ONE

COMMON LOT FOR A PRIVATE STREET, ONE COMMON LOT FOR PARKING, AND TWO
COMMON LOTS FOR OPEN SPACE ON AN UNDEVELOPED SITE AT THE SOUTHWEST
CORNER OF PALM STREET AND CAMINO DE LAS PALMAS, LEMON GROVE, 

CALIFORNIA.: 

WHEREAS, the applicant, Chris Dahrling, Vista Azul, LLC, filed a complete application
for a Tentative Map ( TMO- 000- 062) on September 15, 2016 to authorize the subdivision of

2. 064 acres of land into 24 parcels, including 20 residential lots with 20 dwelling units, a lot for a
private street, a lot for common parking, and two lots for common open space; as part of an
application for a Planned Development Permit ( PDP150- 0003), a General Plan Amendment

GPA -150- 0003) and a Zoning Amendment (ZA1- 500-0004); and

WHEREAS, on April 19, 2016, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon
Grove City Council. At the April 19th hearing, the City Council reviewed and disapproved the
project which proposed 22 units, 16 of which were in the attached twin -home configuration, and
six of which were single- family residences. The City Council provided feedback that the project
density was excessive and the project design should more closely reflect a single- family
residential community. In response, the applicant submitted final revisions to the project plans
on September 15, 2016 for City Council consideration. The revised project proposes 14

detached single- family units and six units in the attached twin -home configuration ( 20 units

total). An additional common area park replaced a single- family residential lot adjacent to the
public cul- de- sac. The new project proposes less environmental impacts and less impacts on
City public services; and

WHEREAS, a Mitigated Negative Declaration ( MND) of Environmental Impact will be
filed subsequent to the adoption and final approval of the proposed project by the City Council. 
The Initial Environmental Study prepared for this project found that the project would have no
significant effect on the environment because identified potentially significant impacts
associated with Cultural Resources, Geology and Soils, Noise, and Mandatory Findings of
Significance will be mitigated to below a level of significance. A notice of intent to adopt a
mitigated negative declaration was filed with the County Clerk prior to the City Council public
hearing; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon Grove City
Council on October 4, 2016; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the tentative map is consistent with the Lemon
Grove General Plan because it proposes Ilots for 20 dwelling units at a density of 11 A dwelling
units per acre on a 1 752 net acre parcel of land in the Medium Density Residential land use
designation of the Lemon Grove Genet°al Plan which allows a maximum of 14 dwelling units per
net acre; and

the City Council finds that the tentative map complies with the findings of
fact required to approve this project pursuant to Municipal Code Section 16. 16. 400 because the
project complies with the time limitations of the State Subdivision Map Act; the existing lot is a
legal lot; the proposed subdivision creates more than five lots; the proposed subdivision
complies with the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance; the map and design or

1. 7... 



Attachment D

improvements are consistent with applicable general and specific plans; the site is physically
suitable for the type of development, and the site is physically suitable for the proposed density
of development; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered said Tentative Map and recommendations
of the Planning Department, City Engineer, and the Lemon Grove Fire Department with respect
thereto and has determined that the conditions hereinafter enumerated are necessary to insure
that the subdivision and the improvements thereof will conform to all ordinances, plans, rules, 
and Improvement and design standards of the City of Lemon Grove; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered said Tentative Map and recommendations
of the Planning, Engineering, and Stormwater Divisions, and the Heartland Fire District with
respect thereto and has determined that the conditions hereinafter enumerated are necessary to
ensure that the subdivision and the improvements thereof will conform to all ordinances, plans, 
rules, and improvement and design standards of the City of Lemon Grove; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered Planned Development Permit PDP -150- 
0003 including site, architectural, and landscape plans dated received September 15, 2016
associated with Tentative Map TMO- 000- 0062; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 16. 12. 280, the City Council finds that it is
impractical in this particular case for this subdivision to conform fully to the Design Standards of
the Subdivision Ordinance because the Subdivision Ordinance does not account for lots sized
for planned developments and waivers granted as part of the approval of this project are found
to conform to the spirit and purpose of the Subdivision Map Act and of the Subdivision
Ordinance of the Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby makes the following findings: 
1. The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements are not likely to cause

substantial environmental damage or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife
or their habitat because the property has no environmentally protected resources as
discussed in the Mitigated Negative Declaration; and

2, The proposed Tentative Subdivision Map ( TMO- 000- 0062) is consistent with the

Medium Density Residential land use designation ( up to 14 -dwelling units per net
acre) of the General Plan; and

3. The site is physically suitable for the proposed density of development because
public and private utilities will be available to serve the proposed density; and

4. The design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will not cause serious
public health problems because public services ( e. g., sewer, water, gas, and

electricity) will be provided to the subdivision; and

5. The design of the subdivision or type of improvements do not conflict with
easements, acquired by the public at large, for access through, or use of property
within the proposed subdivision as defined under Section 66474 of the Government
Code, State of California; and

6. The design and improvements of the proposed subdivision map comply with the
requirements of the State Subdivision Map Act and the Subdivision Ordinance
except as specifically waived or modified for the requested deviations in accordance
with Section 16. 12. 280 and pursuant to the Planned Development Permit process; 
and

118



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, 
California hereby: 

SECTION 1. Finds and determines that the facts set forth in the recitals of this Resolution are
declared to be true; and

SECTION 2. Waives or modifies the following Design Standards in accordance with Section
16. 12. 280: 

1. Section 16. 12. 22013 ( Minimum Lot Area of 6, 000 sq. ft.) to allow 20 planned

development lots with areas ranging from 1, 330 square feet to 11, 237 square feet. 

2. Section 16. 12. 220C ( Lots Shall Front on Dedicated Street) to allow 20 planned

development lots to not front on a dedicated street. 

3. Section 16. 12. 220D ( Minimum Lot Width and Depth of 60 feet by 90 feet) to allow 20
planned development lots with minimum dimensions of less than sixty feet by ninety feet. 

4. section 16, 12 2201. 1 ( the side lines of all lots shall be at right angles or radial to the
street capon wht j the bats front with a maximum deviation of up to ten degrees allowed) 
to allow p alarmed ( J(-avf' I0J-,anent lots accommodating for garage access and enhanced
pedestrian paths. 

5. Section 16. 12. 2201 ( Lot depth shall be no greater than three times the average width) to
allow slope and open space behind proposed residences to be a part of individual
residential lots, but maintained by the Homeowner' s Association. 

SECTION 3. Conditionally approves Tentative M jp TM -000- 0062 ira assoclatirara with Planned
Development perraait FIDP, 150_0003 cwt tj the gr acorea , site, landscape, and architeclrrr, al t) tarr s
dated received Septenai er 1, a 2016 ( incorp oralOrl herein by reference as Exhibit " A°) pursraant

to the City of Lerrarn Gruve Sutadivtoion OrdinanCe ( Titl16 of the M( rnicJpal Code) and

confingent upon the secoraal aea( linq arm fim,,it- IpprovrMal of an rrardinance appr(aving Zoning

An,'ieridrnient ZA1 500- 0004. 1 he ratal) r0V' l Con (lit ion ally @titliorizes the developraient of a vacant
site with a 20 a.. rrait pl,arar ecl develr,r̀pralti' rxt with z. rr) assccrated I.arivate strec` t and conttaar r) -area

located on the southwest corner of Palm Streuet y.'ind Camino Ela L, as ilaIrnas Lemon Grove, 
California ( APN No. 503- 252- 42- 00). The subdivider, corrataly with all applicable provisions

of the Subdivision Map Act, the City of Lerrwin Grove Subc ivurriora O' R141 ance, prrll0wira!,°1

conditions of approval: 

NO PARCEL SHOWN ON THIS APPROVED TENTATIVE SUBDIVITION MAP SHALL BE
LEASED, SOLD, CONVEYED, OR TRANSFERRED, UNLESS AND UNTIL A SUBDIVISION
MAP APPROVED BY THE CITY ENGINEER HAS BEEN FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE
COUNTY RECORDER. 

A. WITHIN FIVE DAYS OF APPROVAL, THE SUBDIVIDER/ APPLICANT SHALL COMPLY
WITH THE FOLLOWING: 

1 Submit the appropriate payment for the CEQA filing fee ( Department of Fish and

Game MND and County Clerk Processing Fee). 

2 Pay all outstandinrl fees for City permits related to this project. 
B, PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF A GRADING OR

IMPROVEMENT PERMIT , ND A` 

DURING GRADING ACTIVITY, THE SUBDIVIER/ APPLICANT SHALL COMPLY WITH
THE FOLLOWING: 

1, All physical elements of the proposed project shown on the approved plans dated
September 15, 2016 except as noted herein, shall be located substantially where

19



Attachment D

they are shown and shall be constructed in accordance with applicable Lemon Grove
City Codes to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director. 

2. 

Obtain a grading permit from the City prior to any grading activities. The grading
permit shall constitute an authorization to do only that work which is described or
illustrated on the application for the permit, or in the plans and specifications
approved by the City Engineer. 

3. 

All grading permit fees and deposits shall be paid and all actions necessary
Preceding the issuance of the grading permit shall be completed. 

4. 

Coordinate with Helix Water District for the installation of water facilities and ensure
that all of the appropriate permits are obtained. 

5. 

Obtain an encroachment permit for the installation of private facilities and/ or for
grading work in/ or adjacent to the public right- of-way. 

6. 

Building permits shall be submitted with the grading plans for retaining and
freestanding walls where required. Except as noted in this condition, building permits
shall be termed building permits for post -grading activities in the resolutions
approving this project. 

7. 

A minimum four foot separation shall be provided between buildings and building
posts and proposed retaining walls, freestanding walls and fences. 

8. 

Safety fencing shall be required at the top of retaining walls and slopes and shall be
shown on all Grading Plans where appropriate. 

9. 

A private Storm Water Facility and Best Management Practice maintenance
agreement shall be recorded for the future repair and rehabilitation of the proposed
private drainage and storm water treatment. The City will provide the template for the
agreement. 

10. As a part of the grading permit submittal, a private improvement, grading, and

drainage plan shall be submitted showing all of the proposed and existing on- site
improvements. The plan shall be prepared in accordance with the City' s standard
requirements by a Registered Civil Engineer. All necessary measures for prevention
of storm water pollution and hazardous material run- off to the public storm drain
system from the proposed development shall be implemented with the design of the
grading, 

11. A public improvement plan as a part of an improvement plan check, shall be

submitted with applicable deposit ( plan check fee) showing all of the proposed and
existing improvements within the public right- of-way. The plan shall be prepared in
accordance with the City' s standard requirements by a Registered Civil EngineerStriping and word legends for a five- foot wide bike lane * hall be provided along the
south side of Palm Street for the property frontage per CA- MUTCD Detail 39 and
intersection striping per CA- MUTCD Detail 39. The signage is R81 ( CA) PalmStreet shall be red curbed and marked " No Parking" to the satisfaction of the
Development Services Director. 

12. As -built drawings shall be submitted to SDG& E to energize all of the required streetlights. 

13 Submit the street improvement and grading plans to Helix Water for review and
signature. 

14 All utilities shall be shown on the grading plans

20



15. Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, a deposit shall be paid to cover the City' s
expenses, costs, and overhead for the field inspection, office engineering, and

administration of the work performed, including landscape and irrigation work. The
amount of the deposit shall be as determined by the City Engineer. 

16. All existing survey monuments shall be shown on the grading plan. 
17. Evidence indicating that arrangements have been made for the preservation and/ or

relocation of existing monuments shall be submitted to the City Engineer prior to the
issuance of a grading permit. 

18. All grading plans shall be signed by a registered civil engineer and by the soil
engineer. 

19. Conditions imposed by the City shall be shown on the grading plans under the
heading " General Notes." 

20. The subdivider shall execute a Subdivision Improvement Agreement and a

Subdivision Improvement Security in accordance with Section 16. 12. 200. A cost
estlro at(! for gall Of 111c Pr'oposed grading df ainage, street improvements, landscaping, 
and ret aifairarl and ( rr estanding wr'alts work proposed shall be submitted with the
grading and Otiprdveiynent plans A sciparate cost estimate shall be submitted for
work prop.aosr d within the publrr rrflht of -way TerrfplateS for the e agreements are
zavaikible frorn City The , Ip alrcant shall poi st seca.rrity with the City cornpris d of

r cash def,)osit of a o"orrabiriation of cash deposit and GorpOa' ate srfrely land of ", à
star°arty raaatl°rr:rrrzr ri to rlo barr rn u s rrr til-je state. An ifastrunlent of Cfr r.tit: of other srfct.rrrty
pledging thae perforni ante of the work raaay he :si.rhannitfed in lieu of jtjcsurety I°aond to
insure riast alk.rlion Of n,,.,quired strfre"tures, drams, laridscaping, irrigWrofl ar) d othf r
rnrprovr prams shown on the gra( fiiaal plan Sucp) funds are trruSt frrrart f() r thea

purposes oftJhsfyrr rg Ole cost of cor re . frog any deficierrry,, tjazard or injury created
by tl àr* work or lack of rlaarntenance, thereof, An irrevoczible standby tetter of Cr(,,,,6t° 
issued by a fin,ancrual irrstitfrtion subject to the regulation by the state or federal
goverr au r entramy br posted Gra lierw,r of the surety bond, instrument of credit or other

oc("rrity 1- h("! oslirrr„ ted r..:osl rat the work shall be determined by the City Engineer
sftr^ r r, vra wing the civil r rrrflrrea r` ua a surnate. The total amount of the security shall be

equal to one hundred fifty percent of ttie estirnated cost of the work

authorized by the permit plus an additional sr..fr equal to one hundred pcNrCerrll aaf the

estimated cost for the construction of public street ir`nparovernerits urrr' aa. rulrrrf

landscaping and irrigation; and on- site drairiage structures rar friar ulrlrr sa rrrnlr,aaYivag

standard terrace drains, slope planting, irrigall'ion systeaa, erosion =
11r01 rt](,wwes, 

retaining walls and similar facilities authorized by the permit. 
21. Three copies of a preliminary soils engineering report shall be submitted with the

application of a grading permit. Each report shall be prepared by a soil engineer and
contain all information applicable to the project in accordance with generally
accepted geotechnical engineering practice. The preliminary soil engineering report
shall include, but not be limited to, the requirements outlined within 18. 08, 120( A) All

recomrnrr, irtdotur r f:m outptrnr, d- urr the - souls report -, hall h,o imbedded Otothe(. Y a61ng

plans. The grading plans shall include site monitoring and inspections to ensure
recommendations of the Geotechnical Evaluation are adhered to The Evaluation
recommends that undocumented fill, colluvium and bedrock be removed. Removal
depths are estimated at two to seven feet with variation. Properly designed site
drainage is required to reduce erosion damage to the planned improvements Typical
erosion control measures will be required during site grading



22. The soil engineer and engineering geologist should refer to the geologic conditions
element of the Lemon Grove General Plan in preparing the reports required in
18. 08. 120. 

23. Recommendations contained within approved reports and technical analyses shall
be incorporated into the grading plan and specifications and shall become conditions
of the grading permit. 

24. Submit a truck hauling route with diagram showing streets, This should include the
source of borrow and/ or disposal and any BMPs tied to the imported material. 

25 SUbrnrt a frr earl l- lydrolof y Report and Storm Water Quality Management PlanSV"w' t. Mt") to rde termirre and analyze tIoe increased volume of storm water runoff as a
rOsLOt of they rrrrtfrosed design. Analysis of the downstream onsite detention basin
nIust I e based on hydrology calculations. Any modifications must be reflected onthey plan& His, report should contain calculations and diagrams of pre and post- 
dc,;,V .lopment conditions. The SWQMIshall be completed and approved prior to the
iSSUarice of ael!y olt°,(,r perrnits. Grading and site improvements shall be in
accord. vine with the SWO MP for ( lie proposed project. The SWQMP shall specify
irnplerrrerttation of BMPs required in 8, 48 and 18. 08 of Municipal Code and the BMPDesign Manur:)f. Provide evidence that treatment Best Management Practices
EiNlPs) are adequately shed for [ lie increase in impervious surfaces. 

Plans2r t ns torr an erosion coritrol syr>tern shall be prepared and subs-nrltext for th(,, review
and approval of theme ( arty Er)grrreer and' Water i°° ualitytae oroltrr tor s a lrLIrt ofanyapllir, aborr for a e. onstrua tron permit I" I° re erosion control systoein shall cor°r°rpty witti
the r"eelrrir' enreprrts of the later st state general construction stormm,'Oer perroil: and any
arrrendments therelo, the M 4 Permit, LdiTion Grovr, Municit al Cafe Chapter 8,489and 18, 08, 170. 

27. A private Stormwater Facilities and Best Management Practices maintenance
agreement shall be submitted for the future repair and rehabilitation of the proposed
private drainage and stormwater treatment facilities prior to the issuance of a gradingor improvement permit. 

28. An agreement not -to -oppose the formation of a future utility undergrounding district
will be required to be submitted prior to issuance of grading or improvement permits. 

29. An agreement not -to -oppose the formation of a future street improvement district will
be required to be submitted prior to issuance of grading or improvement permits. 

30. The ("'
e' velope' r shall sr,rtrq"° 4 e, osror° and sediment control plans with construction

Best Marr
tolrtjent pt,a ctrr res ( BIVI s) and an irrigation plan for review and approval

t) y Ilia Water Quality CoOretrr°gator'„ vVhk.h will be required to be abided by duringgrarlrrg acfivttres

31 The applicant shall submit sewer lateral plans with the improvement plans. These
sewer lateral plans shall be submitted to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

32. The structural pavement section for the private access located on the subject
property shall be based on the soils report prepared by a Geotechnical Engineer to
the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

33. Parking spaces shall be of the dimensions outlined in Chapter 17. 24. 010 of the
Lemon Grove Municipal Code unless specified otherwise by the DevelopmentServices Director. 



34. Improvements, where applicable, shall conform to the San Diego Regional Standard
Drawings unless otherwise specified by the City Engineer, 

35 The subdivider shall provide proof satisfactory to the Director of Public Health that
there exists an adequate potable water supply available to each lot or parcel, and
that the subdivider install or agree to install water supply pipes of a minimum six
inches in diameter, provided that the City Engineer may require such other diameter
of water supply pipe as may be recommended by Helix Water District. 

36. Sight distance requirements along streets and at all intersections shall conform to the
intersectional sight distance criteria as provided by the Caltrans Highway Design
Manual. 

37, The subdivider shall provide the City Engineer with letters from the serving utility
companies stating that arrangements satisfactory to the utility have been made to
serve all parcels created. 

38. A private Sewer Maintenance Agreement shall be submitted for the future repair and
rehabilitation of the proposed private sewer prior to the issuance of grading or
improvement permits. The City will provide the template for the agreement. 

39. The Sewer main for this project shall be designated as private, not public. 

40. Each dwelling unit of the proposed subdivision shall be connected to a sewer of the
Lemon Grove Sanitation District. 

41. Provide the City with a final drainage/ hydrology report indicating that the site design
is in accordance with the report and the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System ( NDPES) permit. On- site drainage shall be in compliance with the NDPES
permit. 

42. Submit a maintenance agreement for the on- going maintenance of the private street
and access improvements, parking and other proposed paved areas, fencing, 

landscape and irrigation ( private and within the public right- of-way along the

property' s frontage), drainage and water quality facilities required by the SWQMP, 
and recreational and other facilities as specified to be reviewed and approved by the
City Engineer and Director of Development Services. This maintenance agreement
shall be adhered to by the HOA and incorporated into the CC& Rs to the satisfaction
of the Director of Development Services and City Engineer. 

43. All plans and technical studies required to be submitted to the Engineering
Department for review and approval shall be prepared by a California Registered
Professional Engineer or applicable utility provider. 

44, The permittee shall be responsible to maintain in an obvious and accessible location
on the site, a copy of the grading and improvement permit and grading plans bearing
the approval of the City Engineer. 

45 After grading permit issuance, but prior to any land development work involving
grading, brushing or clearing, there shall be a pre -grading meeting Prior to pouring
curbs and -gutters -or placement of --base-- materials,-- there - shall- - be - a pre -paving

meeting held on the site. The permittee, or his or her agent, shall notify the City
Engineer at least two working days prior to the meeting and shall be responsible for
notifying all principals responsible for grading and paving related operations. The

Storm Water Coordinator shall be a part of the meeting A qualified paleontologist, 

archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American with cultural resource



Attachment D

knowledge shall be present at the pre -grading meeting to consult with the grading
and excavation contractors. 

46. All land development work shall be performed by a contractor licensed by the state to
perform the types of work required by the permit. 

47. The property owner shall pay the City for all costs of placing, repairing, replacing or
maintaining a city -owned facility within the public right- of-way when the city facility
has been damaged or has failed as a result of the construction or existence of the
owner's laird development work during the progress of such work. The costs of
placing, replacing or maintaining the city -owned facility shall include the cost of
obtaining an alternate easement if necessary. The City may withhold certification of
the completion of a building or other work where a notice has been issued. 

48. In accordance with Municipal Code Sections 12. 10. 080 and 16. 12. 240, the property
owner(s) shall underground all existing utility distribution facilities, including
telecommunication lines, on and along the frontage of the subject property as
required by the City Engineer. The property owner( s) shall make the necessary
arrangements with each of the serving utilities, including licensed communication
operators for the installation or relocation of such facilities. No new overhead poles

shall result from undergrounding activities. 

49. Submit private street improvement plans with roadway cross- sections with rolled
curb configuration on both sides to the Fire Marshal for review and approval. 
Minimum 20 foot fire lane for emergency access required. A four to six inch curb is
permissible. 

50. Prior to combustibles being brought to the site, the developer shall provide written
certification from the Water Purveyor, dated within the last thirty days, that: 
a. All public fire hydrants required of the project have been installed, tested, and

approved by the Water Purveyor; and

b. Are permanently connected to the public water main system; and

c. Are capable of supplying the required fire flow as required by Heartland Fire & 
Rescue. 

51. Group R- 3 and U Occupancies: An approved water supply capable of supplying the
required fire flow for fire protection shall be provided to all premises upon which
facilities, buildings, or portions of buildings are hereafter constructed or moved into or
within the jurisdictions. When any portion of the facility or building protected is in
excess of 400 feet ( 122 mm) from a water supply on a public street, as measured by
an approved route around the exterior of the facility or building, on- site fire hydrants
and mains capable of supplying the required flow shall be provided when required by
the Fire Code official. The size of fire hydrant outlets shall be a minimum of one 4
inch and one 2-'/ 2 inch NST outlet or greater as required by the Fire Code official. 

52. In order to mitigate any impacts that grading may cause to paleontological and
archaeological resources the following conditions shall be complied with: 
a. The subdivider/ applicant shall conduct a cultural resources records search and a

Sacred Lands File search of the project area to determine if there is likelihood for
on- site Native American cultural resources. A copy of a letter regarding the
records search shall be provided to the Development Services Department prior
to issuance of grading or improvement permits The report shall provide



recommendations for further analysis and those recommendations shall be
implemented as a part of the mitigation measures. 

b A qualified paleontologist, archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American
with cultural resource knowledge shall be present at the pre -grading meeting to
consult with the grading and excavation contractors. A qualified paleontologist is
defined as an individual with a Bachelor' s or higher degree in paleontology or
geology experienced in pale ontological techniques and procedures. 

c. A qualified paleontologist, archaeologist and culturallyulturally affiliated Native Amer rczIn
with cultural resource knowledge shall be present at all lirrres during the rrriginal
cutting of previously undisturbed

sediments of the Mi srour \ ljrlley porrnatrml

These monitors shall inspect an excavr,,xhor) whick"r
exposes se( JUT)(?, " Its Of tl°le

Mission Valley Formation. Said monitors shall salvage remains as they are
uncovered. 

d, A Kumeyaay Cultural Monitor shall be on- site for ground disturbing activities to
inform the Viejas Band of Kumeyaay Indians of any new developments such as
the inadvertent discovery of cultural artifacts, cremation sites, or human remains. 

e The p . r9 eontolc first, archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American with
r.,r,rltrrr-a l tf source knowledge shall be allowed to temporarily direct, divert or halt
gn,iding to allow recovery of fossil and artifact remains. If cultural resources are
1i cr)vr red during site fair: pt1nG,3tjon argI/ or grading, then any further work shall
cease and programs and procedures shall be initiated as outlined in CEQA
guidelines 15064. 5. 

f. The paleontologist, archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American with
cultural resource knowledge shall document the stratigraphic and geologic
context of salvaged fossil and artifact remains. 

g, The paleontologist, archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American with
cultural resource knowledge shall clean, repair and sort salvaged fossils and
artifacts for eventual donation

h, I rrr r to final tr rst. e troy°'r; a repoi sh A be prepared sui-nriiar rzrnt,l the rr 9zrllr of tl rt` lrrs

r r trrlaUon program an sr„ brnitted [ o the t: r elopmenl ` 3r r vrr° r t rn.,r,, ; tor

rr poft will inbade a discussion rpt rnethods er rliloyed 10Fsil s ilrld al' tala

ar
is

recovered, geolof;.tic context of fr SSil and MlifilCt, r° r rr`rains and tlIe srrlrrif (;,a ' ice of
the mitigation program, 

i. Donate all curated fossil and artifact specimens to an institution with a proven
history of professional, long term care and storage of paleontological and
archaeological collections, such as the San Diego Natural History Museum. 

53 One temporary on- site sign legible from the major vehicle travel lanes adjacent to the
project shall be shall be posted on the property for the duration of all construction on- 
site. The sign shall be a minimum of six feet high, six feet wide, and not to exceed 64
square feet- t-otal for two sides_ or 32 square feet for one side. Such sign shall include
the permit numbers, property location and APN number, a site plan and description
of the project, project name, and the developer' s name, address and telephone

number. Such sign shall be removed prior to grading permit final. Signs shall be
maintained in good condition at all times. 

54 Private residential, public residential, 
commercial and industrial fire access roads

shall provide an access roadway with a minimum unobstructed width of 20 -feet wide

2X51



C

Attachment D

and a minimum 13' 6" vertical clearance. All fire apparatus access roadways must be
maintained unobstructed and drivable by fire apparatus throughout the construction
process. Access roadways shall be capable of holding an imposed load of 75, 000
pounds including in adverse weather conditions,. 

55. Grades for driveway and fire apparatus access roads shall not exceed 10 percent. 
Fire Department approval and additional conditions are required for grades up to 20
percent maximum. Angle of approach and departure for driveways shall not exceedfive ( 5) percent. 

56. Fire lane designations shall be required for all fire access roadways as determinedby Heartland Fire & Rescue. Posted signs shall be required for all fire access
roadways as determined by Heartland Fire & Rescue. Posted signs which state
FIRE LANE, NO PARKING" shall be installed every 50 feet. Curbs shall be painted

red and stenciled with white letters indicating the same on the face and top of anycurb as directed by Heartland Fire & Rescue. All fire lanes shall be marked andidentified prior to Certificate of Occupancy. Fire lane maintenance must be
addressed in the CC& R' s for the project. 

57. All required fire apparatus access roads, fire lanes, fire department turn -around and
entry/ exit drives shall have a minimum 28 -foot turning radius for fire apparatusdepending on size, location, 

and type of project. Site plans shall provide a fire
department turning radius template along the access roadway or within a detail
confirming that the radius meets Heartland Fire & Rescue requirements. 

58. Roadway design features ( speed humps, bumps, speed control dips, etc.) which mayinterfere or delay emergency apparatus responses shall not be installed or allowed to
remain on the emergency access roadways. 

PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT, THE SUBDIVIDER/ APPLICANTSHALL COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING - 
1 - 

OLLOWING: 
1. 

All physical elements of the proposed project shown on the approved plans dated
September 15, 2016 except as noted herein, shall be located substantially where
they are shown and shall be constructed in accordance with applicable Lemon Grove
City Codes to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director. 

2. 

Pay all outstanding fees prior to issuance of a building permit( s) for new dwellingunits authorized by this tentative map. 
3. 

Per Ordinance 372 a Uniform Transportation Mitigation Fee for each unit must be
paid at the time of building permit issuance. The fee is subject to annual increase
and the actual fee will be calculated at the time of payment. 

4. 

Obtain sewer permits and pay capacity fees for 20 dwelling units or as modified bythe Lemon Grove Sanitation District prior to the issuance of a building permit. The

permit requires a capacity fee plus prorated sewer service fees be paid at the time ofpermit issuance

5. 

Pay appropriate school, parkland, diversion deposit, and other fees as applicable. 
6. Submit for Development Services Director approval, a detailed landscape andirrigation plan. 

Provide reference sheets for the grading and landscape erosion
control plans The plan shall indicate all surface improvements including, but notlimited to, the design and locations of all walls, fences, driveways, walkways, 

botanical and common names of all plant materials, number, size and location of allplantings; all irrigation lines including valves and back- flow devices; and soil



Attachment D

amendments. Said landscape plan shall comply with the requirements of Section
17. 24. 050( B) and Chapter 18. 44 of the Municipal Code. The landscape plan shall be

in substantial conformance to the approved landscape concept plan, 

7. Water supply, access, and fire protection system requirements shall meet City of
Lemon Grove Fire Department standards. 

8. An 18 foot wide by 19 foot clear space is required within all required two -car
garages. Bike racks for two bicycles shall be installed in each garage. Driveways

shall be a minimum of 18 feet wide by 19 feet deep if used for parking. 

9. Future development shall comply with all applicable California Building Codes. 

10. The project shall comply with applicable provisions of the current California Building
and Fire Codes. 

11. All new utility distribution facilities, including cable television lines, within the

boundaries of any new subdivision or within any half street abutting a new
subdivision shall be placed underground. The subdivider shall coordinate with the

necessary cable television operators for the installation of such facilities. 

Transformers, terminal boxes, meter cabinets, pedestals, concealed ducts, and other

facilities necessarily appurtenant to such underground utilities and street lighting
systems may be placed above ground unless directed otherwise by the City
Engineer. All proposed structures on the subject property shall connect to the utility
system via underground system. 

12. Submit a written statement signed by the civil engineer reporting that the site is
rough graded in conformance with the approved grading plan, as modified or

amended by any construction changes approved by the city engineer, and which
specifically states the items which were performed under his/ her supervision, and are
shown correctly on the as -graded drawings. 

13. Prior to issuance of building permits, incorporate best management practices

including site design, source control and treatment control, construction and on- going
maintenance identified in the SWQMP and Drainage Report into the Building Plans. 

14. Provide the City with, upon completion of the grading, a compaction report from the
geotechnical firm and a letter from a licensed civil engineer that the grading and
elevations of the pad were done in accordance with the approved grading plans and

prior to the issuance of building plans. 

15, Fire apparatus access roads ( all roads in the project) shall be paved and accessible

and fire hydrants shall be capable of flowing required GPM and shall be tested and
accepted by the Fire Department prior to dropping any lumber for construction. 

16. Any gate or barrier across a fire access roadway, whether manual or automatic, must
meet the Heartland Fire & Rescue requirements and have specific plans and permits

approved prior to installation. Knox brand key -operated electric key switch keyed to
Heartland Fire & Rescue specification are required. The Knox switch shall override

all gate functions and open the gate. Other access control systems such as Opticom, 
siren, etc. shelf -be permitted with -the -approval of Heartlanc! Fire R R1".1.- 1, 

17. Provide plans on Auto CAD ( any release) for pre -fire planning use by the Fire
Department. Information shall include locations of all exits, stairwells, and roof

access. Also, gas, electrical, water, fire sprinkler, and standpipe valves and shutoffs, 

and elevator and electrical equipment rooms, fire alarm panels, remote annunciators, 

and RTU/ HVAC detectors, 

21



Attachment D

18. All pedestrian paths shall be Title 24 compliant and ADA accessible to persons with
disabilities if applicable,, 

19. Driveways shall drain into landscape areas. 

20. Provide proof of utility easement vacation. 
D, DURING GRADING ACTIVITY AND PRIOR TO GRADING PERMIT FINAL APPROVAL, 

THE SUBDIVIDER/ APPLICANT SHALL COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING: 

1. All physical elements of the project shown on the approved grading, improvement
and related plans shall be located substantially where they are shown and shall be
constructed in accordance with appropriate Lemon Grove City Codes. 

2. All trash, debris, and waste materials should be disposed of offsite, in accordance

with current local, state, and federal disposal regulations. Any materials containing
petroleum residues encountered during property improvements should be evaluated
prior to removal and disposal, following proper procedures. Any buried trash/ debris
encountered should be evaluated by an experienced environmental consultant prior
to removal. 

3. Soil sampling and analysis for the presence of organochlorine pesticides in soil shall
be performed. 

4. Soil sampling and analysis for the presence of lead in soil shall be performed. 

5. For any work within the public right- of-way, the subdivider shall secure an

encroachment permit to work within the City right- of-way and place a special deposit
with the City to ensure that any damage to the existing roadway or other public
improvements is repaired in a timely manner. The subdivider shall be responsible for
all unforeseen costs related to work performed in the right- of-way. 

6. The development and preparation of the site shall conform to all recommendations of
the approved geotechnical reports submitted to the City. 

7. The drainage structures, bio retention areas, underground storage pipes, and outlet
structures identified in the Standard Water Quality Management Plan ( SWAMP) shall
be installed. Any modifications to the bio retention areas shall require modifications
to the SWAMP and review and approval by the City Engineer. 

8. Provide the City with a final drainage/hydrology report/ letter indicating that the site
design is in accordance with the report and the National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System ( NPDES) permit. 

9. The fire hydrant system shall be tested to ensure adequate fire flow. The required
fire hydrant flow shall be 1, 500 GPM for a 2 -hour duration at 20 PSI residual

operating pressure. Documentation is required from the Water Purveyor verifying
that the system is capable of meeting the required fire flow prior to building permit
issuance If the system is not capable of meeting the required fire flow

documentation shall be provided showing financial arrangements have been made
and water system improvement plans have been submitted and approved by
Heartland Fire & Rescue and the Water Purveyor to upgrade the existing system
prior to release of building permits. The terms and conditions of the Tentative
Subdivision Map shall be binding upon the permittee and all persons, firms, and
corporations having an interest in the property subject to this Planned Development
Permit and the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of each of
them, including municipal corporations, public agencies, and districts. Fire hydrants



Attachment D

shall be painted per Heartland Fire & Rescue and the local Water Purveyor

standards and be maintained free of obstructions. Blue reflective raised pavement
markers shall be installed on the pavement at approved locations marking each fire
hydrant. 

10. Public and private water utility mains must provide the level of reliability/ redundancy
determined necessary by Heartland Fire & Rescue and the local Water Purveyor

Engineer. 

11. The subdivider shall construct or shall cause to be constructed, at his/ her own cost, a
street lighting system conforming to the City standards. 

12. Street signs for private and public streets meeting the requirements of the City
Engineer standards shall be installed at all intersections prior to final occupancy
approval. 

13. A street naming request application shall be completed to rename the Palm Street
cul- de- sac to Palm Court or another mutually agreed upon name by the effected
property owners. An additional request shall be completed for the proposed private
street. Appropriate signage shall be required to tac, rrr Jalled. 

14. The installation of gas, electric, sewer, and water lines and arty ott°rer below surface
utilities is required to take place before lyre ru u tallatrcr n ofwny r cnc r ete curbs, gutters, 
sidewalks, and surfacing of the streets ( ina ludlrig rep air or replacernent). 

Sewer and

water lines shall not be laid in the same trw:!?,n(,Jh rr°w ;) iry part of this subdivision. 

15. Metallic identification tape shall be placed between the bottom layer of the finished
surface and the top of all irrigation lines in the public right- of- way. 

16. The contractor/ permittee conducting any earth moving operation shall be responsible
for controlling dust created by its grading operation or activities at all times. 

17. RePorkirwg for earthwork, asphall, and cowrt. r' w tc testrract st41 be required and

prepared in accordance witl°r tyre batest v( rr rorr of tlwe rer nbook"° Standard

pwacrtrc aat.iora Works onstr w tction Reports shzill be swrt:rrrrrttect to the ( rty

t r review and, approval puucar' tca Ihr wl) l lrc rani s request for lurr w# iraslau r trorw on glary
grading oc rn l: arc ver raerat peirnits, 

1, he reports sjl wKjil be signed staraaped by a

California registered engineer. 

18. All flammable vegetation shall be removed from each building site with slopes less
than 15% at a minimum distance of thirty ( 30) feet from all structures or to the

property line, whichever is less to the satisfaction of the Deputy Fire Marshal and
Development Services Director. 

19. A pad certification and compaction report shall be submitted to the City for review
and approval prior to the applicant' s request for final inspection on the grading
permit. 

20. The subdivider shall submit record drawings ( as- builts) and engineering

documentation with applicable fees for all public improvements to the City to the
satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

2' i . w brrrrt tr'w c;, w.. rtrfic,:ratrarw.. r Irtt r sh wt rwtt tlr l II' I 

wau
wdrrart wu.r rtcar'wr i ej,, lte wpprovr d pk.,irr

ti. rr' rarli ,"' I'S. gr. aato- d Versicarr cat they clr' Ictrr q l: 



Attachment D

sections of all buttress/ stabilization and fills, subdrains and general location anddepth of all areas or removal of unusable soil. 
22, Sul')mit a sails

lfig rep orl p,,irepared by a soil engineer, including type of
field lestirtq Pet forrrlr cl, compaction rej) orts, final pad elevations, suitability of utility
lt' OruIt an(.J retairii, 19 wall backtill, ttae I- Tiaximurn allowable soil bearing pressure andthe rcqt,6red pav(.,?rnerfl

SUMf"naries of fic',fl(J lZ'[) OUItory les,ts ,: I ild
ratty r subst,',infiating data, i -Ant,] conln-JEMtc, on arly cl ian( c -,,s rnade during grading andti"leir efforc" l on the re c',Omnlencl qfiorls n,jad'L ata tlae
Ea(,,.J, t fiel( I (, I(, Pf'eiin,iiriary Soils enginek` ' ir

Y test shall be identified, located on a plar,1 01 , rrapt, 
ep

the test, and lhe lest rt°iethod of obtainiijq
he elevafiorl of

the in- place density described, 
23, Fimal approval sl,) ijl riot be given Until Ml Work, including Of all drainage

facilifies and their Pr0te)C( jVQ' devic(--S, required irrigation systern installed' protr- cJ, vedevices, reqUit' E' d plarrting, ancl all erosion control I" tave began cc)rnpleted in
ac Ordarrce wiff-I the firlal JPP" Oved grading and the as -graded drawirig, required
repcirls arx) Statenrents of compliarlce Consistent with section "18-08,030 and Chapter
18, 44 of I, he Lemon GrOVe Mrlk'ipal Code have been stsbrnilled, 

24. The Developers and Current and Future Property Owners shall adhere to the
recorrlrnenrjalaoras of the requirements of the Storm Water Quality Management Plan
SWOMP) prepared for this project to the satisfaction of the Water Quality ProgramCoordln, ilc) r, 

25. The exterior boundary of the subdivision and all lot corners shall be monumented
with permanent monuments in accordance with Section 16. 12. 250 to the satisfactionof the City Engineer. 

E. 

PRIOR TO BUILDING FINAL, THE SUBDIVIDER/ APPLICANT SHALL COMPLY WITHTHE FOLLOWING: 

1. All physical' 
of the projecl, including public street improvements, shown or

the - 4Proved builchrig, JandS(-MI) e,, 91,% Jing, improvement and related plans shall be
located subskiritialty where lh(-,;Y alt! shown and shall be constructed in accordance
With appropriate City Codes, 

Z
resuJenfial thrOe- climensional street numbers, minimum 4 inches in

hei(jht, "51- lalf be, J' A"ovided Orl the ackiress side of the building at the highest point and
trrrfl"leg[ projechon of the slrtrctu,( a, ' T' he acidress shall be visible form the street and
sJ"wll riot be, obstructecl in any rrianner, 

3. Comply with the new " solar ready" requirements in Title 24 ( Section 110. 10). This

includes reserved solar zones on the roof, conduit installation, 200 amp service, etc. 
4. Pryor lo Fire Depi,,irjrrent for occupa,,Icy, ail aUtO11U.1fic fire spririklet syste(,11sh"M t'jf", Instalk-"d. I' tre systr,,1, 11 sfazalt C0rrrJ) 1Y With NFPA # 13- D St«,,indard for Autornatic, Fire Spirinkler

F,.,,vnily 1 -') welling, F'hree ( 3) 

Tlem','11 specifications sheets for e( Ittilornent used in fl"ie system
and VM

hYd(, RfliG

shall be sLibritifled by as CaVGI] Ir I 11- icerised C- 16 C,onlractoi, for reVk-,,'W, 
approval, and permits issued prior to c0mMen(; h) 9 work

5, Den-lonsfialra t[, ic' 
of 0"ie Development Services Director that the

l'e('JU11f,,X1 nose bariier,/ sr)'Afld walls was shown on Exhibit "A" have been installed and1providc-, nois(,-', 
n'litic,k"hon at r.)r below the Clity of Lemon Grove 65 dBA CNEL exterior

FlQiSf lc vc 1 standarck"; for the OUticloor areas as described in the Noise EvaluationR,er)orl ( difl(,)d Now?"'11,)(, 1 l 0, 2011` i) l,)rfor this project - 

M



Attachment   x uu xn n 

O All dwelling units shall comply with the interior noise level requirements of California
Code Title 24 Exterior walls and roof assemblies shall have a STC rating of 46 or
better in occ ndance with the acoustical an| 

ExteriorExt r shallsh b e a

minimum STC rating of 28 in accordance ,| h uhe S-# o[ alYSiS' he glass

assemblies ( windows, fixed windows, and [ asglass, doors) of the pennneter units hawiog

direct line ` sightt~ qState Route 125 | Uir'e a SOUmdTr-3mSnhiSSi() f

nu` STC) rating of 31 o reduce the in r O noise V | vv 45 dB ( 0EL in

accordanceanoovvith the Otherona| y r glass as e/ b|/ es shaU be dua' 

paned | aea| antaround\ hextfe6or edges b3have anSTC rating of 26
higher iDaccordance with the acoustical analysis. 

7 Aclosed window condition is required with mechanical ventilation installed to move
air within the structure in accordance with the acoustical analysis. 

O. The deve| oper/ ovnersho|\ be required to repair and/ or replace any damaged public
improvements fronting the project a// withind it\ 100 feat to the satisfaction of the City

Engineer. 

F. PRIOR TO RECORDATION OF /\ FINAL N1AP, THE SUBD| V\ DERA\ PPL| CANT SHALL
COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING: 

1 All physical elements of the pro] e: t, excepting improvements for bui| d\ OQo. including
public street improvements, shown on the approved building, | andscape, grading, 

improvement and related plans shall have obtained final approval or appropriate
securities associated with such improvements shall be provided for in accordance
with appropriate City Codes, 

2 Submit a copy of the Preliminary Title Report, Subdivision Guarantee and Tax

anClearance Certificate no more than 00 days in advance of the recordation of the
Final Mop to the City Engineer for review. 

3. The subdivider shall provide the City Engineer with one reproducible Mylar copy of
the final map for recordation. 

4. Provide proof ofthe utility easement vacation. 

5. Each parcel shall be subject to inclusion into the Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting
District which includes anannual assessment. 

0 Aformal written request toadd street | ightsio LemlQn Gr(.,we I igilbog: Mstr1ct -sh@ll

be submitted to the City of Lennon G/ ovo LigUUDg DistriI J prior to, o rN0aMeM{; y
energizing. If required, a deposit for the

ezpeocl by Ihe

bi c  ShaVUbe u RmM1 mfiNihe t ks are p[ a ed
Lighting District for the su-' e property

onthe Tax Assessor' s yearly statement. 

T Water improvement plans Sh3|| be opl,)roved by Head];,,,Ind Fire & RWSUK r l) rio

recO[ d8dnO shalldeveloper sh furnhsh [ e Fire  & | esc with 1hree \ 

es of the improvement p| aOs desIgA d V a gisteped EQgine nr d/ Or
copies

Licensed C"

e

nwater
n- site firere sorvicMm iN s h-. IYX w nmim; R) urN 0f ighd ( 0) 

Contractor. 

inch water mains with six 0) inch laterals and risers Larger pipes may be requiredto
meet required fire flow requirements. Fire hydrants shall provide one 4 -inch port and
2' 2| 6ports and must beonapproved fire hydrant type. 

8 Backflow prevention devices for private building sewers shall be required pursuant to
Section 71O. Oofthe CBC ( 20O0UPC) 

31- 



Attachment D

9. Pay $ 85 for the preparation and recordation of each document as required for the
subject permit. 

10. The subdivider shall comply with Sectiour 6643k) Of the Goverrmient Cade by
furnishing to the City Engineer a certifit' Ar on frarn few -Ji lartlalrc, udhNy and e',,01 p,,Iblic, 
entity crwrIrrarj easernents within the proposed strb6visur n statirag ttrai. y tta° y fl avt
received from the developer a copy of the pl-Oposect final raonja t; r) they objecl to/ do. 
not object to tine folrrrg of tlae ramp without their signature, Irl t1lie subdivider.. Shrrll furnish

to ttict satisfaction of the City Engineer that no new encumbrances
have bet"gra crf atr=ar. t that would subordinate the City' s interest over areas to be
dedicated for public road purposes since submittal of the tentative map. 

11. The protection of the public interest requires that the subdivider, contractors, 

builders, lot or parcel owners, and other persons, firms, and corporations concerned
with the development of said subdivision conform to the following standards, and all
permits required by the City of Lemon Grove will be issued pursuant to such
standards: 

a. 

All domestic water supplied for this subdivision shall come from Helix WaterDistrict. 

b. 
All buildings constructed for this subdivision shall be connected to the public
sewer system of the Lemon Grove Sanitation District. 

c. The project shall comply with applicable provisions of Title 15 ( Buildings andConstruction). 

d. 
Proper drainage shall be maintained throughout this subdivision as to prevent
ponding and/ or storage of surface water and shall be in compliance with the
NPDES permit to the satisfaction of the Water Quality Coordinator and the CityEngineer. 

12. The final map shall show or provide for the following: 
a. 

The design and area of all lots and the design of the final map shall be in
substantial conformance to that shown on the approved tentative map to the
satisfaction of the Development Services Director. 

b. 

The final map shall indicate that this project is a planned development for twenty20) dwelling units. 

c. 

The final map shall include the signature of the Development Services Director
prior to recording and other items required in Title 16. 

d. 
The final map shall identify any easements indicated within the Title Report, 
proposed on the approved Tentative Map, and as required by the Lemon Grove
Fire Department or City Engineer. 

e. 

The Final Map shall include all easements as shown on Tentative Subdivision
Map TMO- 000- 0062, including but not limited to private sewer, drainage, utility
and open space, and public access and emergency access easements. 

f. 

A note shall be placed on the final map indicating that domestic water supplied
for this project shall come from Helix Water District. 

13. Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions ( CC& Rs) shall be submitted to the City for
review and shall be written to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director
and the City Engineer. The CC& Rs shall include the conditions herein to the

32



Attachment D

satisfaction of the Fire Marshal, Water Quality Program Coordinator, City Engineer, 
and Development Services Director and shall be recorded prior to or concurrent with
the final map and shall include but not be limited to the following: 
a. The Developer, Current and Future Property Owners shall adhere to the CC& Rs

approved for this project. 

b. The formation of a home owner' s association ( HOA) with maintenance

responsibilities is required. 

c. A Best Management Practices ( BMP' s) and a Private Driveway and Drainage
Maintenance Agreement to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. The

maintenance and the preservation of drainage and BMP facilities shall be
included. 

d. The CC& Rs shall identify and implement the BMP' s identified in the SWQMP
prepared fuarthis pr()Ject quad state that the Developer, Current and Future

Property Owners shall con', ply with the recommendations of the SWQMP
l. ar tanr e l for this Dior t to Il ur: satisfaction of the Water Quality Program

Coordinator arid the City Funding of the long term maintenance of all
facilities required by the SWQMP shall be included in the annual HOA budget. 

e A long- term operation and maintenance program ( OMP) will be a requirement
and the responsibility of HOA to maintain. Funding for the program is required to
be accounted for in the annual budget of the HOA. 

f, The CC& Rs shall include on- going mauuater- rranc
of land, atatr' rg auad rrri1rfatrrpra

private and within public right-of-way) of slopes parkways, open space sisal part
areas as illustrated on approved landscape and irriftation plzans ( t. xl) ibil A). . l tris

Exhibit A shall be included in the GC&[ s. All l andscat il'ag sh 11 l) e w , 

maintained in a healthy growing condition at all times in substantially the same
condition as approved in accordance with tlq approved trwandscuape and irrigation

plans. Sprinkler heads shall be adjusted so ase tea prevent oversprr.ay upon the
public sidewalk or the street. I.he proposed sprinl lrueu, hearls sh,,,fll be installed
behind the sidewalk, and the ' irrigatioll M,' Iinlrrura private property only, as

required by the City. The HOA or, its successors or assrrtras, s} a al9 r" e ° rXa v'e and
relocate all irrigation items from the public 1 jg1' at- of_way at rlra eWOst tri t.h(,, GiIy, and

within a reasonable time frame upon a wr°1tte,, r,Iotwfur; rahon by the City Hrjganeer- 

An Encroachment, Maintenance, and I ernow,il Agru ernent shall lae sigrrecl gar -R] 
recorded prior to recordation of the final asap Or bUile.trrag t) eOl' aittrrag The City will
provide the template for the agreement. 

g, Immediate removal of graffiti and any other type of offensive debris is required. 

h All garage doors shall be automatic roll -up type doors and equipped with remote
control devices. 

i All garages shall be available for required off-street parking ( 18 foot wide by 19
foot deep interior clear space) at all times. 

No parking id',; 
withirr t1, ie private street, 

pedestrian pathways, or

rte„ ugn rate; d fire N ar°ae al any tirnt,, Parking on- site is only permitted within

rte siigrrraterl parkorag W pl ,,, Ices, arrej wutNcern the dwelling units' garages. Parking within

driveways Less than 19 fe t,4 ira u: te°: tatla is l: ai` ohibited. 

k Maintain the drainage facilities and any access easements ( where they occur) on
the property



I. All light fixtures shall be designed, shielded and adjusted to reflect light
downward, away from any road or street, and away from any adjoining premises. 

m. 

The property shall comply with all performance standards relating to the
generation of noise, glare, dust, and odor. 

n. If any fire hydrant is taken " OUT OF SERVICE," Heartland Fire & Rescue shall
be notified immediately and the hydrant marked, bagged, or otherwise identified
as " OUT OF SERVICE" as directed by the Fire Marshal. 

o. Designated fire apparatus streets and turn- arounds shall be maintained

accessible and usable by emergency vehicles. Usable conditions include but are
not limited to the following: 

i. An all- weather road surface shall be maintained. 
ii Road shall support imposed loads of fire apparatus at 75, 000 pounds. 

iii, No parking -fire lane signs shall be repaired or replaced as needed. 
iv. 

Fire lanes shall remain free at all times of any obstruction including but
not limited to: vehicles, storage, debris, etc. 

V, 

Fire lane or hammerhead turn -around shall maintain an unobstructed
width of 20 feet and a minimum 13' 6" vertical clearance. 

vi

Grades exceeding 12 percent shall be concrete with a deep broom finish
perpendicular to the access roadway. 

vii. 

Fire Department approval and conditions are required for fire apparatus
access roads with grades between 10 percent and 20 percent. 

viii. 

All required fire access roads and turn arounds shall have a minimum 28
foot turning radius

P. Trees shall not grow within five feet of any proposed chimneys. 
q. Safety features including fire sprinklers igrritrr r° r~esistar t coras&r rru l} . s i- nokrw and carbon monoxide detectors frre resin iv °r I 1rrr lsca1:iron svia,ll I e

maintained in accordance with Californr j Fire, Cody t :aPifr ririi,.a ElcsrlAr ing Ccicje, California Vehicle Code ( fire lanes), City M€ niGrt) al f.aode rr rr„ t r rry r ll r. 
applicable codes. 

u All tract—i '
and rer ycarrrg recepacfes are requrrr cl to bei w4hirr J J- Je rrldivir.dual

r esrrlr nceAg of the faro posc-ad par.,bned devr- lopn rent at alt tin res, r xcepj tt,, Fr1 rarre
recyclirug container one rc firrsrv c°or11ainr r per dweflrrrag Limit is p rrrrllled
direcily outside of the ir, clividual CIW0rr'19 Uflil s (, fJara ewiti11r1 leiri
trash pick- up times specified by EDCO waste and recycling company

s Rooftop mechanical equipment, including but not limited to heating, air

conditioning and ventilating equipment, shall be screened so that it may not be
seen from the level of adjacent streets and sidewalks. 

t. The use of barbed wire or razor ribbon on any fences, gates, or walls isprohibited. 

u. Ongoing maintenance of the onsite private sewer is required. 

34



Attachment D

v. The CC& Rs shall clearly establish the responsibilities of the individual home
owners and the HOA with regard to the continuing maintenance and preservation

of the project. 

w. The CC& Rs shall specifically limit the number of dwelling units to twenty ( 20) on
the site. 

x. The CC& Rs shall give the City the right but not the duty to enter the premises to
do maintenance and levy assessments if the home owners fail or refuse to
maintain said facilities, and shall forbid amendments to the CC& Rs without

express written consent of the City. 

y. Common open space areas shall be well maintained at all times ( e. g., bike racks, 

barbeques, tables, landscape, signage, and public art features). 

z. Street trees along the roadway shall not obstruct the ability of fire apparatus
access and fire department aerial operations. Tree height and type should be
considered in the ultimate landscape design. 

G. The terms and conditions of the Tentative Subdivision Map shall be binding upon the
permittee and all persons, firms, and corporations having an interest in the property
subject to Planned Development Permit PDP - 150- 0003 and the heirs, executors, 

administrators, successors, and assigns of each of them, including municipal

corporations, public agencies, and districts. 

H This Tentative Subdivision Map approval expires on October 4, 2018 or such longer
period as may be extended by State Law or through time extensions approved by the
Development Services Director or City Council. A Final Map must be recorded within
two ( 2) years ( excluding extensions granted by State Law) from the date of approval
unless time extension is granted. 

I The subdivider shall indemnify, protect, defend, and hold harmless, the City and any
agency thereof, and/ or any of its officers, employees, and agents from any and all
claims, actions, or proceedings against the City, or any agency or instrumentality
thereof, or any of its officers, employees, or agents to attack, set aside, void, or annul, 
an approval of the City, or any agency or instrumentality thereof, advisory agency, 
appeal board, or legislative body, including actions approved by the voters of the City, 
concerning the project. City shall promptly notify the applicant/subdivider of any claim, 
action, or proceeding brought within this time period, and City shall further cooperate
fully

35



RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING PLANNED

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PDP - 150- 0003 AUTHORIZING THE DEVELOPMENT OF A

TWENTY UNIT PLANNED DEVELOPMENT ON A 2. 064 ACRE UNDEVELOPED SITE AT

THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF PALM STREET AND CAMINO DE LAS PALMAS, LEMON

GROVE, CALIFORNIA. 

WHEREAS, the applicant, Chris Dahrling, Vista Azul, LLC, filed a complete application
for a Planned Development Permit ( PDP - 150- 0003) and a Tentative Subdivision Map ( TM0062) 
on September 15, 2016 to authorize the subdivision of 2. 064 acres of land into 24 parcels, 

including 20 residential lots with 20 dwelling units, a lot for a private street, a lot for common
parking, and two lots for common open space; and construction of 20 dwelling units, as part of a
request for approval of a General Plan Amendment ( GPA -150- 0003) and a Zoning Amendment
ZA1- 500- 0004) to amend the General Plan Land Use Designation from Transportation to

Medium Density Residential and to amend the Zoning District from Residential Low and
Residential Low/ Medium to Residential Medium; and

WHEREAS, on April 19, 2016, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon
Grove City Council. At the April 19th hearing, the City Council reviewed and disapproved the
project which proposed 22 units, 16 of which were in the attached twin -home configuration, and

six of which were single- family residences. The City Council provided feedback that the project
density was excessive and the project design should more closely reflect a single- family
residential community. In response, the applicant submitted final revisions to the project plans
on September 15, 2016 for City Council consideration. The revised project proposes 14

detached single- family units and six units in the attached twin -home configuration ( 20 units
total). An additional common area park replaced a single- family residential lot adjacent to the
public cul- de- sac. The new project proposes less environmental impacts and less impacts on

City public services; and

WHEREAS, a Mitigated Negative Declaration ( MND) of Environmental Impact will be

filed subsequent to the adoption and final approval of the proposed project by the City Council. 
The Initial Environmental Study prepared for this project found that the project would have no
significant effect on the environment because identified potentially significant impacts
associated with Cultural Resources, Geology and Soils, Noise, and Mandatory Findings of
Significance will be mitigated to below a level of significance. A notice of intent to adopt a

mitigated negative declaration was filed with the County Clerk prior to the City Council public
hearing; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon Grove City
Council on October 4, 2016; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the following Planned Development
Permit findings of fact, as required by Section 17. 28. 030( C), can be made as follows: 

1. That thL—development- isnot- detrimental- to- the- public- interest-,—health, safety, or- general----- 
welfare. 

eneral-- -- 

welfare. 

a. The City Council finds that the design of the proposed project complies, or will be
made to comply with all of the applicable requirements of the City Zoning Ordinance
relating to public safety and no such detriment should occur. 

2 That the development complies with applicable provision of the Zoning Ordinance ( Title



Attachment E

17) and/ or deviations that comply with applicable provisions in subsection D of the
Planned Development Permit regulations ( Section 17. 28. 030). 

a. The City Council finds that the proposed project complies with, or conditions have
been included for this project to require it comply with the Zoning Ordinance
requirements relating to off- street parking, screening, and landscaping and waivers
or modifications to the minimum lot area, width, and depth, setbacks, and landscape

requirements are offset by the provision of enhanced pedestrian and bicycle
improvements and recreational/ outdoor amenities. 

3. That the development is consistent with general plan policies and standards and other

applicable plans or policies adopted by the City Council. 

a. The City Council finds that the Planned Development is consistent with the General
Plan policies and standards because the project includes a General Plan

Amendment to Residential Medium which allows the residential development at the

form and scale proposed; and

4. That the development density or intensity does not exceed general plan limitations. 

a. The City Council finds that the Planned Development is consistent with the Lemon

Grove General Plan because it proposes 20 dwelling units at a density of 11. 4
dwelling units per acre on a 1. 752 net acre parcel of land in the Medium Density
Residential land use designation of the Lemon Grove General Plan which allows a

residential development with a maximum of 14 dwelling units per net acre; and

5. That the existing infrastructure such as utilities, transportation systems, and

communications networks adequately serve the development or will be upgraded to
efficiently accommodate the additional burdens imposed. 

a. The City council finds that appropriate public services ( e. g., sewer, water, gas, and

electricity) exist to the subject property and that improvements proposed for the
project allow for safe circulation of pedestrian, bicyclists, and motor vehicles and

improve the general welfare of the community; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the following deviations as permitted
by the Planned Development Permit regulations ( Section 17. 28 030D) are adequately offset by
equivalent benefits associated with enhanced pedestrian, landscape, bicycle, and

recreational/ outdoor amenities: 

1. A deviation of Section 16. 16. 291A ( Residential Lot Design Standards) to allow the

reduction of the minimum building envelope ( minimum 28' wide by 50' deep is required, 
25'- 11" wide by 35'- 6" is provided); and

2. A deviation of Section 17. 16. 030D3 ( Minimum Yards) to allow reduced setbacks

minimum 25' front, 5' side, and 20' rear is required, minimum 3' front, 0' side, 5' rear is
provided); and

3. A deviation of Section 17, 16. 030D1 ( Minimum Site Area) to allow reduced lot size

minimum 6, 000 sq. ft, required, minimum 1, 338 sq. ft. provided); and

4. A deviation of 17. 16. 030D2 ( Minimum Site Width and Depth) to allow reduced lot

dimensions ( minimum 60' wide by 90' deep required, minimum 25' wide by 45' deep
provided); and

5. Deviations of Section 16. 12 220 related to all units fronting on a dedicated public street, 
where instead a private street is provided with pedestrian paths on both sides as follows: 



a. Minimum 56' wide public street right- of-way required; 29. 5' private street lot width
provided; and

b. Minimum 5' landscaped parkways required; no landscaped parkways provided; and

c. Parking on both sides of street required; no parking on private street provided except
one parallel space; and

6. A deviation of Section 17. 16030D4a ( Maximum Building Height) to allow increase in
building height ( maximum 25' allowed, maximum 33'- 8" provided); and

7. A deviation of Section 16. 12. 230E to allow reduced street
entrance separation ( 200' 

required, 190' provided); and

8. A deviation of Section 16. 12. 2201 to exceed the maximum depth to width lot ratio ( 3: 1
maximum required, 4. 3: 1 provided); and

9. A deviation of Section 17. 24. 010F to allow a reduced parking aisle ( 24' required, 22. 5' 
provided); and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered Tentative Subdivision Map TM -000- 0062, 
associated with Planned Development Permit ( PDP150-0003); and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, 
California hereby: 

SECTION 1. Finds and determines that the facts set forth in the recitals of this Resolution are
declared to be true; and

SECTION 2. Approves the following deviations of Development Standards in accordance with
Section 17. 28. 030D ( Deviations): 

1. A deviation of Section 16. 16. 291A ( Residential Lot Design Standards) to allow the

reduction of the minimum building envelope ( minimum 28' wide by 50' deep is required, 

25'- 11" wide by 35- 6" is provided); and

2. A deviation of Section 17. 16. 030D3 ( Minimum Site Width and Depth) to allow reduced
setbacks ( minimum 25' front, 5' side, and 20' rear is required, minimum 3' front, 0' side, 
5' rear is provided); and

3. A deviation of Section 17. 16. 030D1 ( Minimum Site Area) to allow reduced lot size

minimum 6, 000 sq. ft. required, minimum 1, 367 sq. ft. provided); and

4. A deviation of 17. 16. 030D2 ( Minimum Site Width and Depth) to allow reduced lot

dimensions ( minimum 60' wide by 90' deep required, minimum 25' wide by 45' deep
provided); and

5. Deviations of Section 16. 220 related to all units fronting on a dedicated public street, 
where instead a private street is provided with pedestrian paths on both sides as follows: 
a, Minimum 56' wide public street right- of-way required; 29 5' private street lot width

provided; and

b. Minimum 5' landscaped parkways required; no landscaped parkways provided; and

c Parking on both sides of street required; no parking on private street provided except
one parallel space; and

6 A deviation of Section 17. 16030D4a ( Maximum Building Height) to allow increase in

building height ( maximum 25' allowed, maximum 33'- 8" provided); and



Attachment E

7. 
A deviation of Section 16. 12. 230E to allow reduced street entrance separation ( 200' 
required, 190' provided); and

8. 
A deviation of Section 16. 12. 2201 to exceed the maximum depth to width lot ratio ( 3: 1
maximum required, 4. 3: 1 provided); and

9. 
A deviation of Section 17. 24 01OF to allow a reduced parking aisle ( 24' required, 22. 5' 
provided); and

SECTION 3 r,...rann lrrron.'ally

1

l 150- 000 y ars njuit chorl
l l ., ., 

r a itr o 1 ar°a

l rrtraat r. 
aarrav m I larrs, a rl D  I raar rr' l PI, rP. 

with entative Mira 1M 000- 0002 and the r r aduaq  rtsr aye , and rarcl"lite tural plans dated
rr ceived Septearrber 15 2016 ( rracorporG' Ie l herein by reference as Exhibit ,), except zas ranted
tararerra  t"Irr x aptarraval authorizes tNaac

evralral° Plerrl of ; a 2 064 acre p ararrrl irito 20 dwellingsnits
With associ ate+lI corrar oirlarea rrrrprov(,mieratx and a private street carr ar undeveloped site at tlir 
southwest corner of P'talrn Street Zand Camino, De t..as Patinas, Lenmr) Grrove, California ( APN No, 503. 252- 42- 00) Except, as aroenr,Ied, the approvalovr:al of this project shall be subject to thefollowing conditionslo
A. 

PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION
AUTHORIZED BY PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PDP -150- 0003: 

1. 

All physical elements shown on the approw" d 1rlafls strall I) e located substantially where
they are shown and shall be constructa. rd in accordance with the Municipal' ter>d'e The
Development Services Director has the authority to callow naodil°icatioras to the approve, 
plans when the modifications are found tolye in srwbst antial corrfor°raaranor (

iaairard
deviations in colors, roof and siding materrrrd acceptal;ale) an(.jI in rrorrrpliance with the
Municipal Code and General Plan. 

2. Pay parkland fees, school fees, Helix Water District Capacity fees, Regional

Transportation Congestion Improvement Program ( RTCIP) fees, sewer connection fees, 
and other applicable development fees. 

3. Record the Final Map for TM -000- 0062 unless otherwise determined by theDevelopment Services Director. 

4. A two -car garage is required for each single- family residence with appropriate access, 
5. An 18 foot wide by 19 foot clear space is required within all required two -car garages. 
6. 

All garage doors shall be equipped with an automatic roll -up garage door and remote
control. 

7. Show the location, height, and materials of all fencing, 
ft

r ratat aat

r ". a landscape a,lraa rrra' reprq a9ia.ars 1a<a kin e for landscape carr- srt , arar f wrtlrNra the public
t w ray, ' Fh dr arrrraaaarrlatrrara fr ar w arty lr all rear lucle ea detailed lanr,Jscape and

rrrrWatrorr plara for the en irr pr0t0r, d l=arovirle refrVwrrrra st eOIs for the grr6nl sand' ldarartsa crape lerosion control plans, 1 N" a( a t) N am h all rrrrllr rte all surface rrrrlar ravr rrar. rutr» 
ot

rwacll wrr

arl,,
NarN; alr.at arrarr.

l,

alallarrr.lta r; atrrarrrealrGr ra ap. r. i
a tiirir°arratjr; xrasral.

M .° „, 

ppm
4 

all w aNl ferry r , driveways, 
of all pl, arat rn rterl+al, AIl, arrat7r r si f,." Barad

location of all plantings; all irrigation Tines f1cludang wilves ' and b,'v, k4jaw rlr varM rws rarr l
soil amendments. Said landscape plan shusall (--: rarnPly with the reo.rnrern ents of Se"Ctrran
17. 24. 050( B) and Chapter 18. 44 of the Municipal Code. The landscape plan shall be in
substantial conformance to the approved landscape concept plan. 

9 The building plans for the proposed residential units shall include a color and materials
board to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director. 



Attachment E

10. All light fixtures shall be designed, shielded and adjusted to reflect light downward, away
from any road or street, and away from any adjoining premises. 

11. Vehicular sight distance of all driveway entrances shall be to the satisfaction of the City
Engineer. 

12. Each dwelling unit in the development shall be protected with an approved automatic fire
suppression sprinkler system to the satisfaction of the Fire Marshal. 

13. The private driveway is to be designated as a Fire Lane. Fire lanes ( 20 -foot clear with

no parking) and fire lane markings shall be provided to the satisfaction of the Lemon
Grove Fire Department along the private vehicular driveway within the project. The fire

lane will be designated per City Fire Department standards and shall be marked and
posted " No Parking -Fire Lane" every 50 feet and the curb shall be painted red to the
satisfaction of the Heartland Fire & Rescue. A final inspection by the Fire Department

shall be required to confirm compliance with this requirement prior to the construction
with combustible materials and final occupancy. 

14. The south side of the Palm Street cul- de- sac street, not the cul- de- sac portion, shall be
marked and posted " No Parking -Fire Lane" every 50 feet and the curb shall be painted
red to the satisfaction of the City of Lemon Grove Fire District. A final inspection by the
Fire Department shall be required to confirm compliance with this requirement prior to
the construction with combustible materials and final occupancy. 

15. All access roadways and driveways shall maintain a minimum vertical clearance of 13'- 
6" to the satisfaction of the Fire Marshal. 

16. Install only high efficiency appliances, use only high -efficiency watering technologies, 
and landscape using low -water -use plants as follows: 

a. Install the following indoor fixtures: 

i. High -efficiency toilets ( 1. 28 gallons or less per flush); 

ii. High -efficiency dishwashers ( Energy Star, WaterSense or equivalent); 

iii. High -efficiency clothes washers ( 3. 7 water factor or lower); and

iv. Low -flow shower heads ( 2. 0 gallons per minute or less) 

b, Install dedicated meters for common area outdoor water use Enroll all new irrigation

meters ( except those at single- family residences) in the Helix Water Budget Program
and provide documentation of irrigated landscape area at the time of meter
purchase. 

c. Install automatic irrigation controllers with a rain sensor that utilize either

evapotranspiration ( weather -based) or soil moisture data and install high -efficiency, 
matched -precipitation rate sprinkler nozzles at all residential landscapes and
common areas. 

17 The project shall comply with all applicable provisions of the California Fire Code and the
California - Building Code:- 

B, 

ode—

B, PRIOR TO FINAL APPROVAL OF A BUILDING PERMIT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION
AUTHORIZED BY PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PDP -150- 0003: 

1 All physical elements of the project shown on the approved building, landscape, and
related plans shall be located substantially where they are shown and shall be

41



Attachment E

constructed in accordance with appropriate Lemon Grove City Codes to the satisfaction
of the Development Services Director. 

2. The color palette shall be consistent with the conceptual drawing on the approved plans
dated September 15, 2016 and the color and materials board to the satisfaction of the
Development Services Director. 

3. Schedule a Helix Water District inspection for compliance with water efficiency
requirements

4. E - file FAA Form 7460- 2 to the Federal Aviation Administration, Notice of Actual

Construction or Alteration within five days after the construction reaches its greatest
height. 

C. UPON ESTABLISHMENT OF USE IN RELIANCE WITH TENTATIVE MAP: 
1. Comply with all of the Conditions of this resolution and the requirements of Tentative

Map TM -000- 0062, as applicable. 

2. All physical elements of the project shown on the approved grading, improvement, 
building, landscape, and related plans shall be maintained and located substantially
where they are in accordance with appropriate City Codes. 

3. The City approved CC& Rs shall be abided by at all times. 
4. All landscaping shall be well maintained and adequately watered at all times. The

landscaping located on the subject property shall be maintained in a healthy and
growing condition at all times. All on- site & off- site landscaped areas shall be planted
and irrigated by a permanent irrigation system. 

5. The proposed facility shall fully comply with the requirements of the California Fire Code
to the satisfaction of the Fire Chief. 

6. All screening fences/ walls and retaining and sound walls on the subject property shall be
maintained in good condition at all times. 

7. All light fixtures shall be designed, shielded and adjusted to reflect light downward, away
from any road or street, and away from any adjoining premises. 

8. All graffiti shall be removed or painted over with a paint that closely matches the color of
the exterior of the building within 48 hours of the discovery of the graffiti. 

9. Provide water -use efficiency data upon request to the Helix Water District for six years
following installation/ development. 

10. Any deviations proposed from the approved plans relating to the construction of facilities
and maintenance of improvements shall substantially conform to the approved plans
dated September 15, 2016 to the satisfaction of the Development Services Department. 

D. This approval of this Planned Development Permit will expire two ( 2) years from the date
of approval or such longer period as may be extended by State Law ( the Planned
Development Permit will be extended automatically with any extensions required of
Tentative Map TM -000-0062 in accordance with State Law). 

E. The terms and conditions of the Planned Development Permit shall be binding upon the
permittee and all persons, firms, and corporations having an interest in the property
subject to this Planned Development Permit and the heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors, and assigns of each of them, including municipal corporations, public

agencies, and districts. 

42



Attachment E

43. 



Attachment F

INITIAL STUDY / ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT NO. ND16- 04

FOR THE

VISTA AZUL PROJECT

SOUTHWEST CORNER OF CAMINO DE LAS PALMAS AND PALM
STREET

LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

Prepared by: 
Lemon Grove Planning Staff

3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945
619) 825- 3805

September 8, 2016



City of Lemon Grove
I' nitial Study / Environmental Checklil

This Initial Study / Environmental Checklist has been prepared pursuant to the California

Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) [ Public Resources Code § 21000, et seq.] and the 2016 State
CEQA Guidelines [ California Code of Regulations § 15000, et seq.]. This Initial Study / 

Environmental Checklist determines that the Vista Azul project will result in no impacts or
less than significant impacts ( with mitigation) on the environmental resources and issues

evaluated herein, and hence would not have a significant impact on the environment. 

This document is beina made available for a 20-dav nublic review comment Period b nninn

Septemb _ 2016. Comments regarding this I .... ial
ens   Initial Study/ be 8 2016 and line September  a

Environmental Checklist must be made in writing to: David De Vries, Director of Development
Services, City of Lemon Grove, and 3232 Main Street, Lemon Grove, California 91945. 
Comments must be received by 5: 00 P. M. on the last day of the public review period. 

1. Project Title: Vista Azul; ND16- 04

2. Lead Agency Name and Address: City of Lemon Grove
3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

3. Contact Person and Phone Number: David De Vries

Director of Community Development
City of Lemon Grove
3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

619) 825- 3800

4. Project Location: Southwest corner of Camino De Las Palmas

and Palm Street

APN: Lemon Grove, CA 91945

503- 252- 42- 00

5. Project Applicant: Vista Azul, LLC

Attn, Christopher Dahrling
8109 Santa Luz Village Green

San Diego, CA 92127

6. General Plan Designation: Transportation Land Use Designation and

Special Treatment Area ( STA) VII, Palm

Street/ SR- 125 Planning Area. 

7. Zoning Designation: Residential Low ( RL) and Residential

Low/ Medium ( RL/ M) 

8. Project Description: 

The project site is former Caltrans right- of-way from the State Route ( SR) 125. The
proposed project is a request to amend the General Plan Land Use Designation from
Transportation to Medium Density Residential; to amend the Zoning District from
Residential Low ( RL) and Residential Low -Medium ( RLM) to Residential Medium ( RM); 
Tentative Subdivision Map to authorize a 24 -lot subdivision on an 89, 887 square foot
2. 064 gross acre) parcel, including 20 residential lots, one private street lot ( 0. 30 acres), 



Attachment F

and three common area lots; and a Planned Development Permit. Total net area excluding
the private street is 1. 757 acres. The maximum density for the Medium Residential land
use designation is 14 dwelling units per acre, or a maximum of 24 dwelling units for this
1, 757 net acre site. The project proposes a total of 20 dwelling units, including 14 single- 
family units and six twin -homes, and two common open space lots with a turf area, walking
path, play structure, and benches. The proposed private street would take access from the
cul- de- sac portion of Palm Street at two locations. Required guest parking will be provided
by on -street parallel parking and a common parking area. Private street improvements
include sidewalks on both sides of the street, rolled curb and gutter, and decorative street
lights. A detention basin is proposed at the southeast corner of the site. A total of 13, 620
cubic yard of grading is proposed, including 3, 850 cubic yards of fill and 9, 770 cubic yards
of export, Proposed landscaping includes street trees on Palm Street and Camino De Las
Palmas; landscaping on the project' s perimeter slope areas, and internal landscaping on all
private Home Owners Association areas. Enhanced landscaping is proposed on the corner
of Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas. 

9. Setting and Surrounding Land Uses: 
The project site is in a developed urban residential area. It is a roughly triangular- shaped
undeveloped lot located on the southwest corner of the intersection of Palm Street and
Camino De Las Palmas, west of State Route 125 ( SR -125). Properties to the south and

north are developed with single- family residences; property to the east is vacant Caltrans
right- of-way; and property southwest of the site is a school ( Liberty Charter High School). 

10. Approvals Required: 

Planned Development Permit No. PDP - 150- 0003, Tentative Subdivision Map No. TMO- 000- 
0062, General Plan Amendment No. GPA - 150- 0003, and Zoning Amendment No. ZA1- 
500- 004

11. Other public agencies whose approvals are required ( e. g., permits, financing
approval, or participation agreement): 

None. 



Attachment F

ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED: 

Based upon the initial evaluation presented in the following Initial Study / Environmental

Checklist, it is concluded that the Project would result in the following potentially significant

adverse environmental impacts to the following resource areas: 

Aesthetics

Agriculture & Forestry Resources
Air Quality
Biological Resources

Cultural Resources

Geology and Soils
Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Hazards and Hazardous Materials

Hydrology and Water Quality
Land Use and Planning
Mineral Resources

Noise

Population and Housing
Public Services

Recreation

Transportation / Traffic

Utilities and Service Systems

Mandatory Findings of Significance



Attachment F

DETERMINATION: 

On the basis of this initial evaluation: ( To be completed by the Lead Agency) 

I find that the project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, and a
NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 

I find that although the project could have a significant effect on the environment, there will
not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the project have been made by
or agreed to by the project proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be
prepared. 

I find that the project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required. 

I find that the project MAY have a " potentially significant impact" or " potentially significant
unless mitigated" impact on the environment, but at least one effect ( a) has been
adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and
b) has been addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis as

described on attached sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT ( EIR) is
required, but it must analyze only the effects that remain to be addressed. 

I find that although the project could have a significant effect on the environment, because
all potentially significant effects ( a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier EIR or
MITIGATED) NEGATIVE DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards, and ( b) have

been avoided or mitigated pursuant to that earlier EIR or (MITIGATED) NEGATIVE
DECLARATION, including revisions or mitigation measures that are imposed upon the
project, nothing further is required. 

Prepared by David De Vries, Development Services Director, AICP, September 8, 2016

EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS: 

A brief explanation is required for all answers except " No Impact" answers that are
adequately supported by the information sources a lead agency cites in the parentheses
following each question. A " No Impact' answer is adequately supported if the referenced
information sources show that the impact simply does not apply to projects like the one
involved ( e. g , the project falls outside a fault rupture zone). A " No Impact' answer should be

explained where it is based on project -specific factors as well as general standards ( e. g., the

project will not expose sensitive receptors to pollutants, based on a project -specific
screening analysis). 

All answers must take account of the whole action involved, including off- site as well as on- 
site, cumulative as well as project -level, indirect as well as direct, and construction as well
as operational impacts. 

3 Once the lead agency has determined that a particular physical impact may occur then, the
checklist answers must indicate whether the impact is potentially significant, less than
significant with mitigation, or less than significant. " Potentially Significant Impact" is
appropriate if there is substantial evidence that an effect may be significant. If there are one
or more " Potentially Significant Impact' entries when the determination is made, an EIR is
required. 



4 ' Nc gntiv(-,,, Del(: lrj rail lot i Le,,;s ' I I iari Sit,-,injflcant With MiligatiW InCO" pot ated" al, pljcs where -
it

the ur rrl. 
mezIsk,liros has reduce(j an (,dfect

as " Less Th,,,In signil' ic",111t " Fhra lead agency mt1st (Jescribe the rn4igatk)n

measures a, jr)(J boelly expl;-,iin how they 1 e,Jtice the effect to a less 0-mr) significant level
rt,1itig,-,i1j( g1 ni asure,,> frf,,)rn ", Ear lier Analyses", as described in ( 5) below, may be cross- 

referenced). 

5 Eculier Wl;.AlYsE',s 111ay lir,, j' 1Se( J Where., PUrSUant to the tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA
procf) ss, an effect has, bef,,,,an ade(:Iuately -,111.9lyzed in an earlier EIR or ( mitigated) negative
rrlo r r [ k)[ l tAWSM-10 to ,, I 5o63( c)( 3)( D) of the CEQA Guidelines. In this case, a brief
discw,;S' Orl sI,-1Ot1[( j idetifify the foflowi[ lg 

a. Earlier Analysis Used. Identify and state where they are available for review. 

acts Adequately Addressed, Iderifify which effects from the above checklist wereb tn lp, , 
y ed in n earlier document pursuant to

witl,111r, r I I anal Z, a
c, q. iatey

j p Ir) I i rj , 

of Eincl e0f,,, 

and SJ,,,Ate whether such effects were addressed by mitigationI) le legal standards, 

rneasIre s on the earliei, analysis, 

c. Mitigation Measures. For effects that are " Less Than Significant With Mitigation
Measures Incorporated", describe the mitigation measures that were incorporated or
refined from the earlier document and the extent to which they address site- specific
conditions for the project. 

6. Lead VIM 0'tC;C1LAU1gf-`(' I tri inCorI,)orate into the checklist references to information
soureffor poterdifl n,j" Icts ( e g. , gerle rEfl plans, zoning ordinances). 

Reference to a

is ,,. 

p1' eViOLJ'_:`,lY PrOl) at'Od docurn( nt should, where appropriate, include a reference to
if rq Page or P,_Iges VVI" Iere Ilrr statement is st. bstantiated. 

7, Supporting Information Sources: A source list should be attached, and other sources used
or individuals contacted should be cited in the discussion. 

8, This is ONY 8 s0ggesled form, and lead agencies are free to use different formats-, however, 
ac st) vi ii J normally address the questions from this checklist that are relevant toJ

s in whatever format is selected, 
a epv[ ronrnental effect

9, The explanation of each issue should identify: 

a The significance criteria or threshold, if any, used to evaluate each question-, and

b, The mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the impact to less than significant. 

The following terminology is used to describe the potential level of significance of impacts: 
A finding of no impact is appropriate if the analysis concludes that the project would not
affect the particular resource in any way

M



Attachment F

An impact is considered a less than significant impact if the analysis concludes that it
would not cause substantial adverse change to the environment and requires no mitigation. 

An impact is considered less than significant with mitigation incorporated if the analysis
concludes that it would not cause substantial adverse change to the environment with the
inclusion of environmental commitments that have been agreed to by the applicant. 
An impact is considered a potentially significant impact if the analysis concludes that itcould have a sr bstanttal ,) davers r, ff h ons thrr.., nvi' o r" uQ' Ir. M arl i a ;° i p o n' iitigat on. 



Explanation of Checklist

a - b: No Impact. The project site is not located within or near a designated scenic vista or a
State Scenic highway. 

c - d: Less than Significant. The site is located in a developed urbanized area. It is
undeveloped and previously graded, with a few shrubs on a portion of the south property line
that will be removed. Landscaping is proposed on the project' s perimeter slope areas, and
internal landscaping will be provided on all private Home Owners Association areas. Enhanced
landscaping is proposed on the corner of Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas The project
will be required to comply with the City' s landscape requirements The two existing overhead
utility distribution lines are required to be placed undergrounded prior to approval of the final
map The project proposes construction of 20 two- and three - stories residences, which, since
the site is currently vacant, will change the look of the property. Night time lighting of new
residences may occur as a result of this project. Glare onto adjacent public - rights - of - ways is
required to be reduced to a level of no impacts by municipal code requirements Aesthetic
impacts are expected to be less than significant. 

Source: 1, 2, 3, 4, 5

51... 

1. AESTHETICS

Would the project, 

Less i... tea ri 
pot litiailly ' Significant Less Than

No

Issue Signiiicapt with Significant
Impact

Impact Mitigation Impact

m, ........ .
w ....... 

In. omrI?orated
a Have a substantial adverse ml

effect on a scenic vista?~ 

b. Substantially damage scenic
resources, including but not
limited to, trees, rock El
outcroppings, and historic

buildings within a state scenic

highway
c. Substantially degrade the

existing visual character or El M

quality of the site and its
surroundin( Js? . 

d. Create a new source of

substantial light or glare that

would adversely affect day
ori-- 

nighttime views in the area? 

Explanation of Checklist

a - b: No Impact. The project site is not located within or near a designated scenic vista or a
State Scenic highway. 

c - d: Less than Significant. The site is located in a developed urbanized area. It is
undeveloped and previously graded, with a few shrubs on a portion of the south property line

that will be removed. Landscaping is proposed on the project' s perimeter slope areas, and
internal landscaping will be provided on all private Home Owners Association areas. Enhanced

landscaping is proposed on the corner of Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas The project
will be required to comply with the City' s landscape requirements The two existing overhead

utility distribution lines are required to be placed undergrounded prior to approval of the final
map The project proposes construction of 20 two- and three - stories residences, which, since

the site is currently vacant, will change the look of the property. Night time lighting of new
residences may occur as a result of this project. Glare onto adjacent public - rights - of - ways is

required to be reduced to a level of no impacts by municipal code requirements Aesthetic
impacts are expected to be less than significant. 

Source: 1, 2, 3, 4, 5

51... 



Attachment F

AGRICULTURAL AND FOREST RESOURCES

Would the project: 

Potentially
Issue Significant

Impact

a. Convert Prime Farmland, 

Unique Farmland, or Farmland
of Statewide Importance
Farmland), as shown on the

maps prepared pursuant to the

Farmland Mapping and
Monitoring Program of the
California Resources Agency, 
to non aric. -.

111111111111111ultural
use? 

b. Conflict with existing zoning for
agricultural use, or a

Williamson Act Contract? 
c Conflict with existing zoning for, 

or cause rezoning of, forest land
as defined in Public Resources

Code section 12220[ g]), 
timberland ( as defined by Public
Resources Code section 4526), 
or timberland zoned Timberland

Production ( as defined by
Government Code section
5110[ 1)? . 

d. Result in the loss of forest land

or conversion of forest land to
non -forest use? 

e. Involve other changes in the

existing environment, which, 

due to their location or nature, 
could result in conversion of

Farmland to non- agricultural
use or conversion of forest

land to non -forest use? 

Explanation of Checklist: 

a

Less Than

Significant Less Than
No

with Significant
Impact

Mitigation Impact

Incorporated

81

1: 1

N

Is

11

a - e: No Impact. The project site is located in an existing urbanized area with no agricultural or
forest resources within the vicinity, The site was previously graded, and no agricultural or
forestry uses are located on- site. The project site is not zoned for agricultural or forestry
purposes; nor is there a Williamson Act Contract associated with the site or vicinity Therefore, 
the project would not convert Important Farmland, conflict with agricultural zoning, or otherwise
cause the conversion of farmland or forest land to non- agricultural/ non- forest use, The project
would have no agricultural resource impact
Source: 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6

52



Attachment  u n

Ui

a - e: Less Than Significant Impact. Section 15125( B) ofthe CE[ lAGuidelines contains
specific reference tothe need tmevaluate any inconsistencies between the proposed project
and the applicable air quality management plan, ie . the San Diego Regional Air Quality
Strategy ( RAC) S), Included n the RAOS are transportation control measures ( TCKAs) The

RAOS and TCM set forth the steps needed to accomplish attainment of state and federal
ambient air quality standards. The primary concern for assessing impacts on the RAOS is
whether the project is consistent with the growth assumptions used to develop the plan - 

San Diego Air Pollution Control District ( SDAPCD) relies on land use designations contained in
local general plan documents and the San Diego Association of Governments ( SANDAG) 
regional transportation plans to prepare air quality plans. SDAPCD refers to approved general
plans to forecast, inventory, and allocate regional emissions from land use and development - 
related sources, These emissions budgets are used in statewide air quality attainment planning
efforts As such, projects that propose development that is equal to or less than population
growth projections and land use intensity are inherently consistent Projects that propose
development that is greater than anticipated in the growth projections warrant further analysis to

AIR QUALITY

Would the project, 

Less Than

Potentially Significant Less

ThanIssueSignificant with

SignificantImpactMitigation

ImpactIncorporatedimplementationof

theb. Violate any air quality
standardorcontribute substantiallytoanexisting or projected

airc. Result in a

cumulativelyconsiderable net increase

ofanycriteria pollutant for

whichtheproject region is

nonattainmentunder an

applicablefederalFZqualityor state ambient air

standard (

includingreleasingemissions

whichexceedquantitative

thresholdsdExpose sensitive receptors

tosubstantialpollutant

L1eCreate objectionable

odorsaffectinga substantial

numberOfDeoiDle? 

a - e: Less Than Significant Impact. Section 15125( B) ofthe CE[ lAGuidelines contains
specific reference tothe need tmevaluate any inconsistencies between the proposed project

and the applicable air quality management plan, ie . the San Diego Regional Air Quality
Strategy ( RAC) S), Included n the RAOS are transportation control measures ( TCKAs) The

RAOS and TCM set forth the steps needed to accomplish attainment of state and federal
ambient air quality standards. The primary concern for assessing impacts on the RAOS is
whether the project is consistent with the growth assumptions used to develop the plan - 

San Diego Air Pollution Control District ( SDAPCD) relies on land use designations contained in
local general plan documents and the San Diego Association of Governments ( SANDAG) 

regional transportation plans to prepare air quality plans. SDAPCD refers to approved general
plans to forecast, inventory, and allocate regional emissions from land use and development - 

related sources, These emissions budgets are used in statewide air quality attainment planning
efforts As such, projects that propose development that is equal to or less than population
growth projections and land use intensity are inherently consistent Projects that propose

development that is greater than anticipated in the growth projections warrant further analysis to



Attachment F

The proposed project would allow for medium density residential development within the
proposed Residential Medium Zone. The existing Transportation land use designation and
zoning would permit development of the site with a park and ride lot, or with transportation - 
compatible retail commercial uses. 

The proposed change from a land use designation that permits transportation and commercial
uses, to one that permits residential uses, would result in less intensive land uses, which
generate fewer daily vehicle trips than those currently anticipated by the air quality plans. Thus, 
project emissions would be less than emissions accounted for in regional pians, including RAGS
and the SIP. Impacts would be less than significant. 

While the propose'rl prgicct may r° esrrlt in a slight increase in vehicular traffic and a slight
increase in air quality rrrrtra( tts to region, the Master Environmental Impact Report ( MEIR) for
tt°r"e City of Lemon Grove' s General' Plan rrnhcipates air quality impacts associated with the build
out o't Lernon Grove but not to a l0vel of significance. The cumulative air quality impacts will
remain sigrtrlr arii and Unniitigated. 1° 10wever, this project is not considered to result in a
cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant. Standard conditions of project
approval will require the control of dust during site grading and construction. 

t uritIg r- rar1str'urao1'1, diesel equiprneni l may generate some nuisance odors; however, due to the
distance of sensitive re( Opt.ors fr none the I°:) roJect site, odors associated with project construction
wr°uk] riot be signifscarit. As a single- family rosid'ential use, the project would not generate
objectionable odors, ' Therefore odor impo is would be less than significant. 
Source: 1, 2, 4, 7

11111011111



IV

Would the project:. 

Issue

a. Have substantial adverse

effects, either directly or
through habitat modifications, 

on any species identified as a
candidate, sensitive, or special

status species in local or

regional plans, policies, or

regulations, or by the California
Department of Fish and

Wildlife ( CDFW) or U. S. Fish

and Wildlife Service ( USFWS)? 

b. Have a substantial adverse

effect on any riparian habitat or
other sensitive natural

community identified in local or
regional plans, policies, and

regulations or by the CDFW or
USFWS? 

c Have a substantial adverse

effect on federally protected
wetlands as defined by Section
404 of the Clean Water Act

including, but not limited to, 
marsh, vernal pool, coastal, 

etc.) through direct removal, 

filling, hydrological interruption, 
or other means? 

d Interfere substantially with the

movement of any native

resident or migratory fish or
wildlife species or with

established native resident or

migratory wildlife corridors, or
impede the use of native

wildlife nursery sites? 
e Conflict with any local policies

or ordinances protecting

biological resources, such as

tree preservation policy or
ordinance? 

Attachment F

BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES

Potentially Sif oificant Less Than
No

Significant with Significant
Impact

Impact Mitigation Impact

Incorporated



Attachment F

Explanation of Checklist: 

a - f: No Impact. The subject is located in a developed urban area surrounded by single- family
residential and school land uses. This site is a former Caltrans right- of- way and the entire site
was previously graded as part of construction of SR - 125. The MEIR for the City of Lemon
Grove' s General Plan confirms there are no known sensitive biological resources, riparian
habitat, or wetlands on the subject property. 
Source: 1, 2, 4, 5

L s ' rhe<. rj

Potentially Significant gess Than
NoIssr.re igniticrtnt with significant

11111,;,mctlinpact, Mitigation Impact

Incorporated

f, Conflict wit..:. -.... ... h the provisions of
an adopted Habitat

Conservation Plan, Natural

Community Conservation Plan, 
or other approved local, 

regional, or state habitat

conservation- plan'? 

Explanation of Checklist: 

a - f: No Impact. The subject is located in a developed urban area surrounded by single- family
residential and school land uses. This site is a former Caltrans right- of- way and the entire site

was previously graded as part of construction of SR - 125. The MEIR for the City of Lemon
Grove' s General Plan confirms there are no known sensitive biological resources, riparian
habitat, or wetlands on the subject property. 
Source: 1, 2, 4, 5



Attachment F

V. CULTURAL RESOURCES

Would the project-. 
1 . ...... 

I' ll, . . ..... 

I . . . ...... 

I . .................. 

Less Than

Potentially Significant Less Than
No

Issue
Significant

Impact

with

Mitigation

Significant
Im' pact

Impact

Incorporated

a Cause a substantial adverse

change in the significance of El Ll
an historical resource as

defined in X15064. 5? 
1611-- 

Cause
I

a substantial adverse

change in the significance of

an archaeological resource

pyrsuant t9_§1 5064. 5? ........... 

c. Directly or indirectly destroy a
unique paleontological

resource or site or unique

9' C. olog"ic - features
d human remains, 

Dicluding 71

insturb
those interred outside

of formal cemeteries? 

e - 

I

Cause - 
I

a substantial adverse

change in the significance of a
E1,

1111
El

Tribal Cultural Resource as

defined in Public Resources Code, 
Section21074 ..... 

Explanation of Checklist - 

a -e: Less than Significant impact with Mitigation.. 

The subje(, J pr'0I,)(z,1rtY i$ C.Urrenfly w-i(', ant There l- 10 lq1(,)wn culh,iral
on, the

propel ty, " i' l, jere are no knoW') JILAME' 1111 temak"is of ti -lose inleired cxitsid(" (, jf cf-.,,nieteries oil

the subject prop)efly or in J)CSLOT01, 111( JO- 1f 1 Two pr(,4'11stolic, sites we recordeid by Caftf-cil" s

wllhiri STA VII dL.16r1q thE, 6,,valt,iatlotj r) J the of Potential lEffect" ( of the I'rrol")Osed SR, -125, 

Neither sk,, was Jetermiric,(J to lx'" eligible for on the Najom.,,fl He( ' Jister of I, ( iStOriC

Placr,<i, The presence ()f pr(,!hlsI() i1c u, eSQLVC(.z" s Wi0lil) a Of fl"lis STA indicates tt-j( tje, tray

be the poterltu'..111 fol!" acidifiolu.,ii resoiirc(.,s h-' @Gk,'fition, ffie site is 1,) y' I' Hl-Jiary ((, erie). 

ige sedirnenlary bedrock, bel0i" gil1g, to Mission Valley forti' i'afir,)n, which ties a rnedjL,W1_l to
I :; R typiczIlly Contains ", J rich Inid( fle, 

high potenti,_fl to contain t;*, flr,:-ontologic
ct

Ecv; ene 1T- 10IILP.,;G,) n fzii irta 1he
it s expected Io rnrfact the Ml,; si<)rl Vi,"lleyIllat gi,acling and trefichk- ig d:) f t[, ie projcct s e and archoe( l( Micat

Y . ........ ? t!'-La(' Le tin 1- rill' iggLe g in PIcts 0 1: 11 -ayy , , 0

or Iidiii.ons y M be-includ I
h

1111 - id a IJ -. 1 -

a , F- Lseai acTed L,, 
Ir o e:cJ j, t, ' j

pgat . . . ..... ..... - 
i

j--  Q_ Q(. -
t x" t cl, 04,jralI

I to line f Illerie is fire w Arnet
earch ol t_ aie,',' 

t,::)c Ve ' rI - - 1 1—- d to 0 C p
e,spurce, s, !, f jardir g 1h sewch p lvyide

rt shallT 1, e r e 0
3! ry ces Dep"! 

M



Attachment F

P_LIYL
ec,,,,o I , Iqw! n( 181 . . .......... jons sh,all be

M—n.— I S a '
leas S ')

I- c
mitk abon n Lire 2) a ik P - ha

Vneand cLjjtLjt jj.jy, qi 1ted
e LW.

111..,.LIOm, erI the
mfJI(UtoCcwra rept arklI pple a djqVILe

if

On EtracjpfsA e d
Ia rlPRYR—)(Jist rs de inc,9 wO ar' WIMCJLMII vet - 11 we J2L, ortotQn P.r ar

111(111-)? LIO
ar peol

rMc— air

q'yaffjji afed Nati "
r l n

ri nLh IC rc rg L'41PAt p shaW be prej Ei. ql gUl les Jurit, ial c9 jhe 0 1IYJ n stui Ix,,dpr, yiol.. d jIir jer, Ls - issio j Vzjj epj; , r , 
if IS11 --- . .... . - Y- F , C " M; avatiorl Whicl- Ifl IXP g";j),, 5r-i(:I!,Ll-(L"r"Ils of O' le ssro VFJI (-, - --

II . - 119— —[j rl CIO P!* QLj
lit ( 110

I:LaLl - Y9 fLe - isverc,,cf, 4, 
gins

Mdcr lly, atf ialgid NativeCa h rrltrrru il
arf y

p kt low pk ( 
dtlrecLAP slj tp V 4

J, ajM(Lry,L)l Ila, ins

tr aura
r Ow e ( a

Staiarta rt r

hall doctla)erlt 11" Iera
fos

C iLan

even

eq( c St

a] 
arid

for1jfaCI
ins

s
pt(!! —(M 0- 1, [ LO . .....

arizip,g U.'! 
trp ar art ail tea p utu ragaY-o-fCa_ Grove Devek T11 Ir! L3TL .,, OrvicesjLi tar r tpo- 

IM
include acjj CLI SO of rnel

IL Orl
y! rtd- ql—s (— Co C C 10 x t 0 f fo s s i I a radLfz j fsl n

K, '- e of the fflifi LIfiorj p
p"jerls to Itiorl Will" I

Lq,9LI DD - L) 9
S

a e an( AI'll, t9f Of - C9 IJ9fln t, rm, , r
W cj 010 i 0 1, nd ar I aest

M-0 S LI -- Wi t ! g LnqD-ta,hot, of I h e irnntivat jr jh e—d ,-11) 0_ V a t e n t j a I
rg,5m rq-,s W UI Q) A, Lyney i-gy5,Ae for -, qL! ttUf`a — nust be orl

ricpawr yifieson fiar izrafrrtnewftssi. in vertS

r( -IL ILI QLS e

Source: 1, 2, 4, 8

M



VI

Would the project

Issue

P...- ..... 

a. Expose people or structures to

potential substantial adverse

effects, including the risk of

loss, injury, or death involving: 
i. Rupture of a known

earthquake fault, as

delineated on the most

recent Alquist- Priolo

Earthquake Fault Zoning

Map issued by the State
Geologist for the area or

based on other substantial

evidence of a known fault? 

Refer to Division of Mines

and Geology Special
Publication 42. 

ii. Strong seismic ground
shaking? 

iii. Seismic - related ground

failure, including
liquefaction? 

iv. Landslides? 

b. Result in substantial soil

erosion or the loss of toi' wsoil? 
c Be located on a geologic unit

or soil that is unstable, or that

would become unstable as a

result of the project, and

potentially result in on- or off- 
site landslide, lateral

spreading, subsidence, 

liquefaction or collal) se ? 

d, Be located on expansive soil, 

as defined in Table 18- 1- B of

the Uniform Building Code
1994), creating substantial

risks to life or property"," 

Attachment F

GEOLOGY AND SOILS

Less Thai) 

Potentially Significant Less Thin No
Significant with Sigpi art, 

Impact
Impact Mitigation Irrti'; act 

Incorporated

o

1 L7

0 I EI

111111101111111



Attachment F

Issue

Have soils incapable of - -------- 

adequately supporting the use
of septic tanks or alternative

wastewater disposal systems

where sewers are not available

for the disposal of wastewater? 

Explanation of Checklist: 

Le Than

Potentially, Si,911ificant Less Than
Significant with Significant

No

Impact Mitigation Impact
Impact

Incorporated

a: Less than Significant Impact. The site is located within the seismically active southern
California region. The Rose Canyon Fault Zone is the nearest active fault system to the project
site and lies approximately 7. 5 miles to the west. Given the proximity of the Rose Canyon fault
System, a strong eaf-thCtUake on tt-iis fault COLIld produce severe ground shaking at the project

blit WoLik"I 1,,) e unliWy to produce ground rupture. Despite the potential of the Rose Canyon
fault system to produce severe ground shaking at the project site, impacts to the project would
i) e rc,,duc(,,',d OIRAIC]h adhererice to requirel,rients specified in the Alquist—Priolo Act, the Uniform
Building Code, Titk-, 24 of the Califol' i' lia Ruflding Code, and all development regulations of the
City, con'lpliance With these building standards would minimize impacts associated with seismic
hazrmIrds

la rN: Less than Significant With Mitigation., There: are no known unstable soils iri th(,,: area of
the subject property, Arcoii,dil,ig to the Geotecl'inicaj Evaluation, Il' ie site apr,)ears lo be Undet'Win
wid"i, Eocene- ag(,,., sedin-jentary bedrock, consisting of interbedded sandstone and claystone
beior)giriq to the Mjssion Vatley Form,,ition, Ti -lin, surficial deposits Of COHLIOL1111 and

fill overli(,-a bedrock ia.acrally, wit , hin the southern and southwestern portions, of the
Site DUE! 1() Ihe relatively cornpressible Of Linclocurnented fill, G0110vi(, 1111, and weathc-,FwJ
Naaar;troa k, lhese materials ;zae considered unsr,iitable for the suppof,t Of the settlern(-,,nf- sensifive

ir(` r , ir(,. sidential foundations, concr(,Ae slab- on- 91"ade floors, situ? walls, exfey, k,)r
i"), ardsc,al"')e, etc ) andlor engineered 'fill in their existing state, As such, 11ie Geotecl-tr)k, al
Evaktatior, recot njjje ids that tho,.,se irraterials, be trlove( jre n-1 stirnated at two
to skwerl fee"' withwit variation , rpoisturt-", con,,Jjtion a r (J re- cc m t'mjct!,, rf A .... L — " ano: 

fmr rov ts, According lo the Geotechnical EValWItiOn, sde soils are (-,onsider( ad erosive, 
is 1101cess i,ry in re in erosi

I

onduc 9 Y

S Orl coilt A I I lj[,es Will be reCJLlired,,dLJ1' i11q pito ding The
subj(` ct Will be reclulmd 10 be connected to til" nion Gi'-ov(-.,, rnunicilml sew(-,rr systen, i

oldheG'eotechn cat Evaltiatioli ink,) Jiesen
WWI constlocfion considr rcifions of Project would reduce thi-.? illitif,)aliori tri b(,,,dow a 1c,,weJ of
sigrnfkl' arlck' 

e: No Impact. The project would be served by the City' s wastewater system and would not
require the use of septic systems. No impact related to septic system soil issues would occur
Source: 1, 2, 4, 8, 9



c

VII. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS

Would the project: 

Less ' Th a

Potentially Sarjtcnt` i Less Than
No

Issue Significant srit Significant
Impact

Impact Mitigation ; Impact

InC6rti0rat i

a Generate - ........ ..... greenhouse gas

emissions, either directly or

indirectly, that may have a
significant impact on the

environment?...... 

b, Conflict with an applicable

plan, policy or regulation
adopted for the purpose of

reducing the emissions of
ar(, enhouse gases? 

Explanation of Checklist; 

a - b: Less Than Significant Impact. 

The proposal to develop the project site with 20 new single- family homes is below the
threshold of significance established by the Californian Air Pollution Control Officers
Association ( CAPCOA) for greenhouse gas emissions. According to the CAPCOA White
Paper published in January 2008, it is presumed that the construction and operational
greenhouse gas emissions for single- family projects of less than 50 units would not exceed
900 metric tons of CO2 -equivalent emissions per year, and would therefore have a less -than - 
cumulatively considerable impact to the environment. Pursuant to California Assembly Bill 32, 
the State must reduce greenhouse gas emissions by at least 16% in order to roll back the

level of emissions for the year 2020 to those levels that existed in 1990. CAPCOA has
determined that any project which generates less than 900 metric tons of CO2 -equivalent
emissions per year is below the level necessary to achieve the 16% reduction in anticipated

state- wide emissions for the year 2020 under the " business as usual" scenario. Therefore, 
the impact is less than significant

During grading and project construction, a temporary increase in operational emissions may
occur, Operational emissions include mobile source emissions and building emissions. The
San Diego Air Pollution Control District Rule 55 requires compliance with standard fugitive
dust control best management practices which will be required as a part of normal practices. 
The impact is expected to be less than significant. 

Source: 1, 2, 4, 10



Attachment F

vul

Would the project;. 

HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

Issue

a Create a significant hazard to
the public or the environment
through routine transport, use, 
or disposal of hazardous
materials? 

Create a significant hazard to
the public or the environment
through reasonably
foreseeable upset and

accident conditions involving
the release of hazardous
materials into the

environment? 

Emit hazardous emissions or

handle hazardous or acutely
hazardous materials, 

substances, or waste within

one- quarter mile of an existing
or proposed school? 

Be located on a site which is
included on a list of hazardous
materials sites compiled

pursuant to Government Code
Section 65962. 5 and, as a
result, would it create a

significant hazard to the public
or the environment? 

e, For a project located within an
airport land use plan or, where
such a plan has not been

adopted, within two miles of a

public airport or public use

airport, would the project result

in a safety hazard for people
residing or working in the
protect area? 

f, For a project within the vicinity
of a private airstrip, would the

project result in a safety
hazard for people residing or
working in the prosect area? 

Less, Than

tentially Significant Less Than
rfitin; intWitt, Significant

No

vaa" MitlWition Impact
Impact

Incorporated

E



Attachment F

Less Than

Potelitially Significant Less Than
No

Issue Si jn fic4ht with Significant
Impact

lmpa+ U Mitigation, Impact

tnc p"orated

g. Impair implementation of or

physically

adopted emergency response I
plan or emergency evacuation

plan? 

h. Expose people or structures to

a significant risk of loss, injury
or death involving wildland
fires, including where wildlands _ j
are adjacent to urbanized

areas or where residences are

intermixedwith wildlands? 

Explanation of Checklist: 
a—h: No Impact. The site is to be developed as a residential project and will not create a

hazardous environment through the use or transport of hazardous materials. There are no

known hazardous material sites within the City. The site is not located within an airport land use
plan or within two miles of a public airport or public use airport and no such detriment should
occur. The proposed project will not impair implementation of or physically interfere with any

emergency response plan or evacuation plan because the project design and access has been
reviewed and approved by the Fire Department. The project is located within an urbanized area
and there are no wildlands located within the vicinity of the subject property. 
Source: 1, 2, 4



Attachment F

Ix. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY

Would the project

Lass Than

Significant Less Than
No

with Significant
Impact

Mitigation Impact

Incorporated

Potentially
Issue Significant

Impact

watera. Violate any water quality
standards or waste discharge

requirements? 

b. Substantially deplete
groundwater supplies or

interfere substantially with
groundwater recharge such

that there would be a net

deficit in aquifer volume or a

lowering of the local
jroundwat ' er table? 

c. Substantially alter the existing
drainage pattern of the site or

area, including through the
alteration of the course of a

stream or river, in a manner, 

which would result in

substantial erosion or siltation

on- or off-site? 

d. Substantially alter th e existing
drainage pattern of the site or

area, including through the
alteration of the course of a

stream or river, or substantially
increase the rate or amount of
surface runoff in a manner

which would result in flooding
on- or off-site? 

e. Create or contribute runoff

water which would exceed the

capacity of existing or planned
stormwater drainage systems

or provide substantial

additional sources of polluted

runoff? 

f, Otherwise substantially
der,')T'ade water quality" 

Lass Than

Significant Less Than
No

with Significant
Impact

Mitigation Impact

Incorporated



I

h

Less Than

Potentially Significant Less Than
No

Issue
Significant with Significant

Impact

Impact Mitigation Impact

Incorporated

Place housing within a 100 - 
year flood hazard area as

mapped on a federal Flood[ J LA
Hazard Boundary or Flood
Insurance Rate Map or other

flood hazard delineation map? .......... 
Place within a 100 -year flood
hazard area structures which L,d
would impede or redirect flood
flows? - - 
I

Expose people or structures to

a significant risk of loss, injury
0

or death involving flooding, 
including flooding as a result of
the failure of a levee or dam? 

Contribute to inundation by J El
seiche, tsunami, or mudflow? I .......... 

Explanation of Checklist: 

a -f.- Less than Significant IrnpacL The project does not substantially degrade groundwater
SUf) p[ ieS or interfere substantially Wit'll grOUndwater recharge. Low impact design, including
pe,rri,reable pavers in dr-iveways and a detenlion basin will be used to minimize new stormwater
crc-,,,,ited from tl"fls PrOjet; t by p1-() p() se,(J jmJ,)e1' ViOUs roof surfaces. According to the Hydrology

prepared for this project, Llnclur cor,(,I tjons proposed by the project, the increase in flow
is not ai,ificipated to h<ive sigrOicant on the downstream storm drain facilities. The

cl( sjqn of 11" ie project has been reviewed by the City of Lemon Grove Engineering Department
in order to ass(-Iss th( 3 nee(] for (:Ai" aiiria,r, eiii-il.,)fo\ tements, which have been included into the
design of the project The subject property is not located within a flood zone and is not subject
to flooding. 

The MOr. Stoirnwater Mai ( MC1j() 1- SWMP) concluded that the project does not
ar, ,(- -

id is not required to use Advanced Treatmentx(; ep1jon,, fl threat to wa _ r quality" ai

n,,e Hydron, OaJjfic,) taori [ Ik-,,in prepared for this project determined that the post- 
s cylst),octior"i hydrologic Cl laractenstics of tht," Project simulate the pre -development hydrologic

It 0,11e, pr irO of and the project is not required to manage

Hydromodification impacts. The Major SWMP determined that it is a " priority development
project" and requires a standard urban storm water

mitigation plan ( SUSMP) Standard best

management practices will be adhered to. 

Drainage patterns will be altered as a result of the project, but not to a level of significance, and
the project to be designed and constructed consistent with the conceptual grading plan and
drainage study

65- 



Attachment F

g -j: No Impact. The project site is not located within an area prone to flooding. Moreover, the
project site is located more than 7. 3 miles from the coast at an elevation of 490 feet above sea
level. As such there is no threat to the site from seiche, tsunami, or mudflow. 
Source: 1, 2, 4, 8, 11, 12, 13, 14

X. LAND USE AND PLANNING
Would the project: 

Less Than

Vssae
Potentially
Significant

Significant
with

Less Than

Significant
Impact Mitigation Impact lrrglara f

Incorporated
a, Physically divide

established community? I  
b. Conflict with any applicable

land use plan, policy, or
regulation of an agency with
jurisdiction over the project
adopted for the purpose of

avoiding or mitigating an
environmental effect? 

c. Conflict with any applicable
habitat conservation plan or
natural community
conservation r) lan? 

Explanation of Checklist.- 
a: 

hecklist: 

a: No Impact. The project proposes development of an existing vacant parcel that is bordered
on three sides by public streets and is surrounded by residential uses and a school. As such, it
will not divide the community. 
b: Less than Significant, 

existing General Plan designation for this property isTranspaorlalrora, wlricl) prrwOO tis for rights -,(,)f -way for transportation facilities. This site was
formerly (.,altr . aros night -.of -way wl rich was sold after completion of SR -125. The proposed project
includes at rerrr,: r° 1 Plan An"ierd'i' lent to re -designate the site from Transportation to MediumDensity Resklerflial The G(-'ra real " ar:, know ledf PrP that , a frrdure 9o91r, rM l. al. in arisen. rrir rjl 
wor.ijd lar, rerpraired al' ler t*, altr. an s solrt excess rrtphl of -way Subsequent to cor"rslrr,,wlion of SR -125, 
a4ld alntrr ipated the same designatra. rrl as qie da, aiatr wlri: ra rrf ar°tp rr rrr,.rt terol r: rtrr; M,_ 1 Ir rr p rcrlrwrrt
proposes a it rrdrw rrtr, al Irmirwrl use lsairinaturari of l " r. rsir.lr. r'rotlal r rlir.rr°r r ( rrp to 14 di,,ilzaar). J' I-je

resra,tarrtl. al paroperhes directly across l', rlrll Street Ica tlrf_ sottfo rad llrr: l,-YOject are da signater:dp r slot rotrr_al Low•. e(;jii.,iril ( saps k) r" dr.d acy- 1- I..rr ar.,r ) ss P- 11[, ri ' tri, r t I ravr:w a

l f ar*Porlatrrarr rami use desrrwlr alk')n and [Resrrlr:Ma° ih al 1 - raw drr. Irprr: tdr.rr Grata to t r. dr.arr r°xj flf Ì e
project is adp ar. era t lfw , r , W3a pool, within Zi ¢ Iraar er rrrlile () 1 a Irar<, Strata iaf" d is adjacent, Ira a high
trafficked colla ci[or strect f-Ictor s Whkl ;, h are rrrofe r. onducivr: r to density residentizal
rtr ve„ 0parNrent Tl°x-, pr ajert iS clesigner. d to provOe d(,1 ar;( d SIrarplf 9arnfly resideraces, eitrarrg twirl, Stir el r rr0 de s°ac across trion"r the exrStirtrl srrielle- fi. irrrrly rr;; rdenf,'res to lhr:. o: j o, anfrJ three
rriditiraro, ii raatitir lor„ d sjngkp faro°aily Ir slrla rar r°.:;ps , ad. the northwest end of the project site across from

tlrt siirupllrw frarrariy re ui, l hos, b; On the nor ' i side of Palm Street. The remaining 16 dwelling units



Attachment F

are composed of eight twin -homes, which are located along the remainder of Palm Street, along
Camino De Las Palmas, and in the center of the site. Impact is expected to be less than
significant. 

c: No Impact. There are no habitat conservation plans in effect within the vicinity of the project. 

Source: 1, 2, 4

XI. MINERAL RESOURCES

Would the project: 

Lei ... .. .. ....,.,.,. s Than

otentially Significant Ness TIk lri
No

l sue Sioh fic ntwith Significant
Impact

Imi '' t Mitigation, Impact

Incorporated
u - 

a. Result in the loss "of availability
of a known mineral resource

that would be of value to the Ell  
region and the residents of the

state? 

b. Result in the loss of availability

of a locally important mineral
resource recovery site IIS
delineated on a local general
plan, specific plan or other land

use plan? 

Explanation of Checklist: 

a -b: No Impact. There are no known mineral resources of significance or categorized as locally
important on the project site or within the City. As a result, there would be no impact to mineral
resources associated with implementation of the project. 

Source: 1, 2, 8

67- 



Attachment F

XII. NOISE

Would the project: 

Less Than

Potentially Significant Less Than
NoIssue Significant with Significant

Impact' 
Impact Mitigation Impact

Incorporated

a, Expose persons to or generate

noise levels in excess of

standards established in the e 

01 Ellocal general plan or noise

ordinance, or applicable

standards of other ar encies? 
b. Expose persons to or generate

excessive ground borne

vibration or ground borne

noise levels? 

c. Result in a substantial

permanent increase in ambient

noise levels in the project

vicinity above levels existing
without the project? 

d. Result in a substantial
temporary or periodic increase
in ambient noise levels in the F1 z F1
project vicinity above levels
exisfinaa without the project? 

e. For a project located within an

airport land use plan or, where

such a plan has not been

adopted, within two miles of a

public airport or public use r i ID i I.X"'I
airport, would the project

expose people residing or

working in the project area to
excessive noise levels? 

f. For a project within the vicinity
of a private airstrip, would the

project expose people residing (,, 
or working in the project area
to excessive noise levels? 

Explanation of Checklist: 

a: Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation. State Route 125 and Palm Street are the
primary noise sources within close proximity of the project. Figure N- 2 ( 2015 Noise Contours) in

the General Plan indicates that the subject property is located within an area of 70 dB CNEL or
less noise levels The MEIR for the General Plan states that projects with existing noise levels
below 60 dB CNEL are normally acceptable or satisfactory for the area and no conditions are



Attachment u  

projects excc!ecfirig 60 dB CNBL& w6se84Udy

would be [ jetween ( 34 and 68 dB ("INU, Propose( l lots I through 6, which are adjac(:,nt to

space, and Lot 7, Mirch has front,,,,ige on F" aln' t just west of li-le, of Palm Stree. t

siX_f() nt sottrid wall will be constrt,'Ic ed JJl _ qJqts, T1 ,,, noise study sh(:)wed thzit a

winclows open" condition will not provide adecluale rntLtior' noise r" OfigZ11" Or' s at all Units
Ft1c,refor(,v,,, a " closed window" condition is required forall uriits ahlove 60 ( IBA CNEL to redu; e
interior, noise levels to cornl,,.)ly with CGR Tille, 24 anoJ the C rty of Lemon Gn,)ve reqt,iirernenls, 

interior noise le dBA CNEL, The rernainder of
WOUld

Lgise levels below thc
Abate, aient arld Control ordinance ( Chapter 9, 24 of the I- ernon Grove Municipal Cod,) is

required for operation of any Single or cornbOation of powered (; onstruction e(p6pri' ient at, arly

noise impacts would be less than significant. 

b' Lm o than Significant Impact. pt. The n) sed pleclvNr cM is single- family residential in
t genefate, excessive ground borne vibration orgroundnatunavviUnc exposeperanns o. r8 n nm ,  

borne noise levels. Construction [ maycreate [* vn rground borne vibrations during the

construction process, but any such vibrations would be temporary in nature and less than
significant. 

c' d' Less than Significant Impact. The proposed project which is single- family residential in
nature will not introduce significant noise sources inthe vicinity that are inconsistent with the
existing residential development ofthe area. 

m - f: No | rnpoct' The project site is not within on airport land use p| an, is more than six miles
from the nearest airport, and more than nine miles from the nearest private air strip. 

Source: 1, 2, 4, 15



Attachment F

XIII. POPULATION AND HOUSING

Would the project; 

Less Than

Issue
Potentially
Significant

Significant
with

Less Than; 
Significant

No

Impact Mitiga0011 Impact

a. Induce substantial population
111comorat. f.._ 

growth in an area, either

directly ( for example, by
proposing new homes and El
businesses) or indirectly ( for
example, through extension of

roads or other infrastructurepI.,..., 

b. Displace substantial numbers
of existing housing, 
necessitating the construction 0
of replacement housing
elsewhere? 

c. Displace substantial numbers
of people, necessitating the
construction of replacement El EJ

usin; elsewhere? 

Explanation of Checklist: 

a: Less Than Significant Impact. The proposed development is located in an urbanized, 
residential area. The project proposes a medium density detached residential housing project
which would assist the City of Lemon Grove in meeting its Regional Housing Needs
Assessment ( RHNA). The project site already has roadway access and would not require the
extension of infrastructure to serve the project site. Further, the surrounding area is already built
out and the project would not induce substantial population growth. Thus, the project would not
indirectly induce growth. The proposed project would, however, result in a minor population
increase, which would not be considered substantial. Therefore, impacts would be considered
less than significant. 

b -c No Impact. The project site does not contain housing; thus, the project would not displace
existing housing or people. 

Source: 1, 2, 4

M



XIV

Would the project: 

Issue

a. Result in substantial adverse

physical impacts associated

with the provision of new or

physically altered

governmental facilities, need

for new or physically altered
governmental facilities, the

construction of which could

cause significant

environmental impacts, in

order to maintain acceptable

service ratios, response times

or other performance

objectives for any of the public
services: 

i. Fire protection? 

ii. Police protection? 

iii. Schools? 

iv. Parks? 

v. Other public facilities? 

Explanation of Checklist: 

PUBLIC SERVICES

Lest Than

Potentially Significant

Significant with: 

Impact Mitigation

Incorporated

Attachment F

Less Than
No

Significant
Impact

Impact

a( i— v): Less Than Significant Impact. The project is located on an infill site in a highly

urbanized community well served with sewer and water lines, streets, storm drains and other
public utilities. In addition, the project site is served by Heartland Fire & Rescue, a joint powers

authority delivering fire protection and emergency medical services to the cities of EI Cajon, 
Lemon Grove, and La Mesa Police protection is provided by the San Diego County Sheriff' s
office in Lemon Grove. 

The proposed project will not result in a significant increase in the demand for public services
and facilities. The Fire Department, San Diego Gas & Electric, EDCO disposal service, Helix

Water District, the Lemon Grove Sanitation District, School Districts, and the Sheriff' s
Department have reviewed the proposed project and determined that existing services are

adequate to serve the increase in households proposed by the project. 

Source: 1, 2, 4

d1... 

u

n n

ri o N

a( i— v): Less Than Significant Impact. The project is located on an infill site in a highly

urbanized community well served with sewer and water lines, streets, storm drains and other
public utilities. In addition, the project site is served by Heartland Fire & Rescue, a joint powers

authority delivering fire protection and emergency medical services to the cities of EI Cajon, 
Lemon Grove, and La Mesa Police protection is provided by the San Diego County Sheriff' s

office in Lemon Grove. 

The proposed project will not result in a significant increase in the demand for public services
and facilities. The Fire Department, San Diego Gas & Electric, EDCO disposal service, Helix

Water District, the Lemon Grove Sanitation District, School Districts, and the Sheriff' s
Department have reviewed the proposed project and determined that existing services are

adequate to serve the increase in households proposed by the project. 

Source: 1, 2, 4

d1... 



Attachment F

Would the project, 

Issue

a. Increase the use of existing
neighborhood and regional

parks or other recreational

facilities such that substantial
physical deterioration of the

facility would occur or be
accelerated? 

b. Include recreational facilities or
require the construction or

expansion of recreational

facilities, which might have an
adverse physical effect on the

environment? 

Explanation of Checklist'. 

xv. RECREATION

Less Than

Potentially Significant Less Than
No

Significant with Significant
Impact

Impact Mitigation Impact

Incorporated

a—b: Less Than Significant Impact. The proposed project will not likely cause a significant
increase in the demand on recreational services in the community. Standard conditions of
approval require the developer to pay a Parkland dedication in lieu fee for each proposed

dwelling unit. In addition, the project proposes an on- site common open space with play
equipment and seating areas. 

The project proposes 20 residential units with small private yards, common open space, and
park areas More specifically, the project park areas include a 5, 085 square foot turf play area
surrounded by a pedestrian path, and a 3, 256 square foot playground with playground
equipment, a shade structure, a picnic table, and a bicycle rack. In addition, the project site
includes enhanced landscaping around the project perimeter that contributes additional open
space, 

The closest existing public parks, Goodland Acres Park and Lemon Grove Park, are
approximately 0, 5 and 0 4 miles respectively from the project site. While the project would be
residential, it would include adequate parkland to serve the development. The project would not
significantly increase the use of existing parks such that deterioration would accelerate; nor
would it require the addition or expansion of park facilities. Thus, recreation impacts would be
less than significant. 

Source: 1, 2, 4

11111101111111



Attachment F

XVI. TRANSPORTATION TRAFFIC

Would the project
m...,,. 

Less flan

Potentially Significant Less Than No

Issue Significant wall Significant Impac

Impact Mitigation Impact t

Incormmpo...r.` t d

a Conflict with an applicable plan, 

ordinance, or policy establishing

measures of effectiveness for

the performance of the

circulation system, taking into
account all modes of

transportation including mass I I
transit and non - motorized travel

and relevant components of the

circulation system, including but
not limited to intersections, 

streets, highways and freeways, 

pedestrian and bicycle paths, 

and mass transit? 

b. Conflict with an applicable

congestion management

program, including, but not
limited to level of service

standards and travel demand

measures, or other standards

established by the county
congestion management agency

for designated roads or

highways? . 

C. Result in a change in air traffic
patterns, including either an
increase in traffic levels ora

change in location that results in

substantial safety risks? 

d. Substantially increase hazards
due to a design feature ( e. g , 

sharp curves or dangerous
intersections) or incompatible

uses ( e. g., farm equipment)? 

e. Result in inadequate emergency
access? 

73- 



Attachment F

Issue

Conflict with adopted policies, 

plans, or programs regarding
public transit, bicycle, or

pedestrian facilities, or

otherwise decrease the

performance or safety of such
facilities? 

Explanation of Checklist: 

a—f: Less Than Significant Impact. 

Lessss Than

Potentially Significant Less Than No 
Significant with Significant Imprre, 

Impact Mitigation Impact t

Incorporated

The Trip Generation Analysis that was prepared for this project estimates it would generate
approximately 220 average daily trips ( ADT) per day. Based on the San Diego Traffic
Engineers' Council ( SANTEC) and the Institute of Transportation Engineers ( ITE) document
SANTEC/ITE Guidelines for Traffic Impact Studies in the San Diego Region, a Traffic Impact
Study is not required because the project' s trip generation is calculated to be less than 1, 000
ADT and less than 100 peak hour trips. Additionally, the Trip Generation Analysis determined
that the ADT and number of peak hour trips generated by the proposed project does not trigger
Caltrans' threshold for a requirement to analyze State highway facilities. 

Approximately 90 percent of the trips generated by the proposed project are expected to be
distributed onto Palm Street/ Troy Street, with approximately 50 percent heading west on Palm
Street into Lemon Grove and 40 percent heading east on Troy Street toward Spring Valley
County of San Diego). Palm Street/ Troy Street is designated as a Class II Collector in the

Mobility Element of the General Plan and is forecasted to carry 9, 000- 10, 000 trips per day. The
addition of approximately 220 vehicle trips is found to not have an impact on adjacent roadway
segments and intersections. 

Project access is proposed from two private driveways on the southerly cul- de- sac segment of
Palm Street. The Fire Department and Engineering Department have determined that access is
adequate for emergency vehicles. The proposed project meets the City' s parking requirements. 
The project as designed complies with standard private street design requirements as it relates
to the travel lanes. A sight distance analysis was provided and indicates there are no potential
sight distance issues that will result from project improvements. The subject property is not
located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or public airport. Transportation and traffic impacts
are expected to be less than significant. 

Source: 1, 2, 4, 16

T4..... 



75- 

XVII. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS

Would the project: 

Less , rhan

Potentially Si riificaht Less Than
Nva

Issue Significant with , Sigiiificaflt
iAa t pct

Impact Mitid4fibin impact

If rporate'et

a.. 

a

m; ..._— ................. 

Exceed wastewater treatment

requirements of the applicable F' El
Regional Water Quality Control
Board? 

b. Require or result in the

construction of new water or

wastewater treatment facilities

or expansion of existing_ 

facilities, the construction of

which could cause significant

environmental effects? 

c. Require or result in the

construction of new storm

water drainage facilities or

expansion of existing facilities, 
the construction of which could

cause significant environmental

effects? 

d. Have sufficient water supplies

available to serve the project

from existing entitlements and
resources, or are new or 

expanded entitlements

needed? 

e. Result in a determination by the
wastewater treatment provided

which serves or may serve the
project that it has adequate

capacity to serve the project' s
projected demand in addition to

the provider' s existing
commitments? 

f Be served by a landfill with
sufficient permitted capacity to
accommodate the project' s

solid waste disposal needs? 

g. Comply with federal, state, and
local statutes and regulation

related to solid waste? 

75- 



Attachment F

Explanation of Checklist- 

a—g: Less than Significant Impact. 

The subject property is served by the City of Lemon Grove Sanitation District. The proposed
project will not result in a substantial increase in the demand for sanitary services. Standard
conditions of project approval will require that the project obtain sewer permits, pay sewer
service and connection fees, and connect to the Sanitation District. 

The existing site is a dirt pad with steep areas sloping down toward the existing streets. A larger
pad will be graded to construct the proposed project which will require retaining walls in various
locations within the project site. The proposed dwelling units will drain onto the proposed
permeable paver driveway ( the private internal street), where the runoff will be conveyed via
curb and gutter on both sides of the street and will enter an on- site storm drain system. The
storm drain will discharge into the proposed on- site detention basin with an outlet structure, 
which is connected via storm drain to the existing curb inlet on the corner of Palm Street and
Camino De Las Palmas where it enters the existing storm drain system. Runoff from the
rooftops will be directed to the landscaped areas before being conveyed onto the permeable
paver driveway. The graded slopes will be planted and irrigated and flat areas will be
landscaped to help reduce runoff from the site. The Major SWMP prepared for this project
determined that it is a " priority development project" and requires a standard urban storm water
mitigation plan ( SUSMP). The project is not within the environmentally sensitive areas as
defined on the maps in Appendix A of the County of San Diego Standard Urban Storm Water
Mitigation Plan for Land Development and Public Improvement Projects. Temporary
construction Best Management Practices ( BMPs) will be implemented during construction of the
project. Standard conditions of approval will require that the project constructs improvements
consistent with City Engineering requirements. 

The proposed project will not result in a significant increase in demand for domestic water
supplies. Standard conditions of project approval will require that the project obtain water
service permits, pay the water service and connection fees, and connect to the Helix Water
District. 

The proposed project will not result in a substantial increase in the generation of solid waste. 
The project will be required to comply with all federal, state, and local statutes and regulations
regarding solid waste. Impacts to utilities and service systems are expected to be less than
significant. 

Source: 1, 2, 4, 8, 12, 13, 14



XVIII. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Does the project;. 

Les;. Th'a'n

Potentially S;i 111fi afi i- ss That) 
No

Issue Significant with si nificarrt- 
Impact

Impact iitati i Irwpt

w, let

a. Does the project have thep J

potential to degrade the quality
of the environment, 

substantially reduce the habitat
of a fish or wildlife species, 

cause a fish or wildlife

population to drop below self- 
sustaining levels, threaten to__— 
eliminate a plant or animal

community, reduce the number
or restrict the range of a rare or

endangered plant or animal or

eliminate important examples

of the major periods of

pirehistony? California history or.. 
b. Does the project have impacts

that are individually limited, but
cumulatively considerable? 

Cumulatively considerable" 
means that the incremental

effects of a project are

considerable when viewed in

connection with the effects of

past projects, the effects of

other current projects, and the

effects of probable future

c. Does the project have

environmental effects, which

will cause substantial adverse

effects on man beings, 

either directly or indirectly

Explanation of Checklist - 

a: Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation. As discussed throughout the above portions
of the Initial Study Checklist, the project would have no impact on biological resources. 
However, the project may have the potential for significant impacts to cultural and fossil
resources Mitigation is required to avoid any such impacts, should such resources be
discovered during the proc.,e.ss Therefore, conditions of : J af r j hall„ include

on- site monitonnq by a qualified oaleontologistmarchaeologyist
and culturally affiliated Native



Attachment F

s

ratNraiclan
to 

oreit

hllifra lllre
nIdrl...--

cp

c....ondutwars
ralpl.... r atGNnrasre sWt.:.. 

preserved prior to the ctontinuation ofwl onstruction h atrvjb , s n documented, collected and
g. resourcesra mq shall be disc

Less Than Significant Impact. g p . As discussed above and throughout this checklist, the
Project will result irr than signific. arit ionpa(,,ts to air quality, greenhouse gas emissions, and
trattar,:. Stich rr p ct are not anticipated to be individually or cumulatively significant because
fl -le proic'ct is c: onsisterit with the growth asss. rnptions of local, regional, and statewide air quality
plans, greer' rhouse gas rr„. rftictr011 goals, ziruJ Crafi' ic management plans. 

c: Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation. As discussed above in Section XII ( Noise), 
the project has the potential to have significant noise impacts to future residents because of the
project sites

Proximityad Walls and sound att r

uatinoute
125. However, r

1

a o

ndi:

twrction metthods

LW

ch

1r—e
mins align in thhe lorr if sou ill

reduce noise to levels hallow the thresholds of significance. 

XIX. DETERMINATION AND PREPARERS
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE FEE DETERMINATION
Fish and Game Code Section 711. 4, Statutes of 2006 — SB 1535) 

It is hereby found that this project involves no potential for any adverse effect, either
individual or cumulatively, on wildlife resources and that a " Certificate of Fee Exemption" 
shall be prepared for this project. 

X ] It is hereby found that this project could potentially impact wildlife, individually or
cumulatively, and therefore, fees in accordance with Section 711. 4( d) of the Fish and
Game Code shall be paid to the County Clerk. 

78- 



Attachment F

XX. REFERENCES

Section 15150 of the State CEQA Guidelines permits an environmental document to incorporate

by reference other documents that provide relevant data. The documents listed below are
hereby incorporated by reference. The pertinent material is summarized throughout this Initial
Study / Environmental Checklist where that information is relevant to the analysis of impacts of

the Project. The following references were used in the preparation of this Initial Study / 
Environmental Checklist and are available for review at the City Hall located at 3232 Main
Street, in Lemon Grove. 

Reference # Document Title

1 City of Lemon Grove General Plan
2, Master Environmental Impact Report for the Lemon Grove General Plan
3, City of Lemon Grove Municipal Code
4, PDP -1 50- 0003/ TMO- 000- 0062/ GPA- 1 50- 0003/ ZA1 - 500- 004 Application Packet

5 Site inspections conducted by staff from the City of Lemon Gove
6, Department of Conservation, Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program

website: http://www. conservation. ca. gov/dlrp/fmmp
7, San Diego Air Pollution Control District' s Regional Air Quality Standards ( RAQS) 

available at: http:// www.sdapcd. org/ content/ sdc/apcd/ en/ air-quality- planning. html
8 Geotechnical Evaluation, by GeoSoils, Inc. ( 10/ 2/ 2015) 

9 Department of Conservation' s Alquist- Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map

available at: http:// www. conservation. ca. gov/ cgs/ rghm/ ap
10, CAPCOA White Paper, published January, 2008. 
11 FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Map Panel No. 06073C1910G May 16, 2012
12 Hydrology Report, by Landmark Consulting ( 09/ 23/ 2015) 
13, Major Stormwater Management Plan, prepared by Landmark Consulting

02/ 04/ 2015) 

14, Hydro Modification Plan ( HMP), prepared by Landmark Consulting ( 09/ 18/ 2015) 
15, Exterior and Interior Noise Evaluation, by LDn Consulting, Inc. ( 11/ 10/ 2015) 

16. SANTEC/ ITE Guidelines for Traffic Impact Studies in the San Diego Region

Individuals and Orqanizations Consulted

David De Vries, Development Services Director, City of Lemon Grove
Jeremiah Harrington, Assistant Engineer, City of Lemon Grove
Chris Jensen, Fire Marshal, Heartland Fire and Rescue

Kurt Culver, President and CEO, Esgil

Patricia Bluman, City Place Planning
Eric Craig, Associate Planner, City of Lemon Grove
Malik Tamimi, Management Analyst, City of Lemon Grove

9



Suuvyed P arc:¢ l

Attachment G

VICINITY MAP AND AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH

Vista Azul

prww NoWWWM f POP
O 5011,00 . 200 3. 10

M



TABLE CD -1

PROPOSED LAND USE CATEGORIES AND DENSITIES /INTENSITIES

Maximum Expected

Land Use Development Development

Categories Per Not Acre Per Net Acre Land Use Category Description
a, la, c) d) 

Low Density 4 DUs/ acre 3 DUs/ acre Detached houses. Typical uses include uses such as

Residential accessory dwelling units, churches, day care, open
space, public facilities, home businesses and others

which are compatible with the surrounding

neighborhood. 

Low/ Medium 7 DUs/ acre 5. 25 Detached houses. Typical uses include uses such as

Density DUslacre accessory dwelling units, churches, day care, open
Residential space, public facilities, home businesses and others

which are compatible with the surrounding

neighborhood. 

Medium Density 14 DUs/ acre 14 DUs/ acre Detached and attached houses, including duplexes and
Residential town houses, and limited condominiums and

apartments. Typical uses include uses such as

accessory dwelling units, churches, day care, open
space, public facilities, home businesses and others

which are compatible with the surrounding

neighborhood. 

Medium/ High 29 DUs/ acre 24. 5 Duplexes, town houses, condominiums and

Density DUs/ acre apartments. Typical uses include uses such as

Residential accessory dwelling units, churches, day care, open
space, public facilities, home businesses and others

which are compatible with the surrounding
neighborhood. 

Mixed Use 43 DUs/ acre 20 DUs/ acre; Mix of residential ( condominiums and apartments), 

and 2. 0: 1 1. 25: 1 FAR retail and office uses within the same building, lot or
FAR area, with the intent of creating lively pedestrian - 

oriented villages near the trolley stations. Retail
includes entertainment and neighborhood - serving

businesses. Where mixes of uses occur within the

same building, locate retail uses on the street level. 

Retail Commercial 1 . 0: 1 FAR 0. 5: 1 FAR Retail operations providing a broad range of goods and

services, catering to both local and regional
customers. Includes shopping centers, department

stores, grocery stores, professional services and other

compatible retail businesses that are auto -oriented. 

General Business 1. 2: 1 FAR 0. 6: 1 FAR Professional office, wholesale businesses, research

and development, high technology production, and
sales. Includes commercial uses that support business

uses. 

WME

M



Maximum Expected
Land Use Development Development
Categories Per Net Acre Per Not Acre Land Use Category Description

a, b, c) ( d) 

Industrial 0. 7: 1 FAR 0. 5: 1 FAR Mixture of manufacturing, processing, warehousing
and storage uses that do not generate appreciable air

and water pollutants, noise, hazardousmaterials and

odors that might be offensive to residents and other

businesses. 

Public/ institutional 1 . 0: 1 FAR 0. 4: 1 FAR Public uses and service facilities, such as government
Facilities

offices and facilities, schools, public utilities, post

office, libraries, fire and law enforcement stations, 
social service facilities and churches. 

Parks/ Recreation 0. 51 FAR 0. 11 FAR Community and neighborhood parks, public recreation

and community centers. 

Transportation N/ A ( e) N/ A Streets, freeway and trolley corridors and stations, 
bus facilities, " park- and- ride" lots and associated

rights - of -ways. If Caltrans permits development

within the right- of-way after SR -125 freeway is
constructed, the development must conform to the

following designations: east and west of SR -125 - 
Retail Commercial, and south of the Broadway
commercial corridor - same designation as the

designation of adjacent properties, 

Special Treatment Areas - Overlays
I Downtown Village
II Massachusetts Station

III Regional Commercial

IV Western Central Avenue Residential
V Federal Boulevard Automobile Sales District
VI Central Lemon Grove Avenue
VII Troy Street/ SR- 125 Planning Area
Vill Eastern Central Avenue Residential

a) The density of residential development is expressed in dwelling units per acre IDUs/ acre). The intensity of non- 

residential development is expressed in floor area ratio ( FAR), which is the ratio of building floor area to the land
area. 

b) The maximum development represents the greatest level of development that can occur on individual parcels of
land. 

c) ThemaXiMUrn density within the residential categories may be exceeded for projects providing affordable housing, 
in accordance with the density bonus provisions of Section 6591 5 of the California Government Code. 

d) The expected development reflects the fact that the development which has occurred to date has not reached the
maximum allowed density or intensity, and future development is also expected to be less dense/ intense that the
permitted Maximum. The expected development provides a more realistic picture of future development within
the land use categories, and is therefore used to project population and buildout data. 

a) In general, davelopmout will not occur within transportation rights- of- way. Through negotiations with Caltrans, 
development may Occur in the future SR - 1 25freeway right- of- way, near the SR -94 freeway. Such development
will be subject to Caltrans lease requirements, and must be consistent with the Lemon Grove General Plan. 

C1') 20

M



RATIRTOTRN 

LO

4

o

0) 

Cl) (

D

4

cli

co

N — 

LO

0) 

p

s

a. 

164 

0

ly) 

co

r, 

CT) 

2

co

cl

LU

0

Cl) 

Z

rt

v

UJ

LOCO

00

LO

IL

L

LLJ

kb

C -

q -,

t

cq

Lo

LO

XV

It

CD

r - 

LO

co

Or

y

4! 

cr

cr

cc

CL

Q

Fr

4

m

0

LL

LL

LL

LL

Lj- 

LL

LU

r)

LO

04

0

ti

Lu

a. 

ma

X

W"' 0

V

xv
7% 

GE

ff-, 

fl - 

16

D :

3n
Z) 

LL

U- 

LL

LL

LL

LL

z

Z ,, _

0 _

0 -

0 -

0

O

gA
1 

A1N5

Wr, 
CY)

o

c7r- 
0

L 

0

C 

Ki - 

0

0

00- 
w "

Y

CL

DN: 

uj

zJ5

W1 : 

10

sa

L, 

KV

Cl) 

o

CO

1p

L9

C) 

r-- 

Lo

r, 

0

COC,
4 '

I) 

uj (

0 (

0 (

a

q, 

q

o

co

r- 

N

m -,

t

Cl) 

m "

a

OI

o

I3

oN

Fk

zi

tz

brs

g. 

tb

X-) 

C7

b

t1i

I:

z

b

v

0

Sz

r: 

ui

p

zi

ti

r< 

Z

LC

t4

Z

ri

lb

6" 

m



CWTVA1111

I

Molls :40• 

unclIMMI1 1Y1 - 

Our development group, Vista Azul, LLC, has been working closely with David DeVries
and Lydia Romero over the past 18 months to develop our proposed Vista Azul project
located at the intersection of Palm Street and Camino de las Palmas- Vista Azul is a

pedestrian oriented community clustering a total of 20 homes with beautiful views of Mt. 
Miguel and the hills of South Bay. This project will promote resident interaction within

the community as well as resident connectivity outside the community- The
combination of single family detached homes ( 14) and twin -homes ( 6) will be designed
with front porches, covered stoops, patios, balconies and decks. A pleasant and

expanded sidewalk will sweep along both sides of the internal road connecting the
hornes along that roadway. 

There will be two ( 2) dedicated common area green spaces. The active open space

area will be situated along the Palm Street cul de sac between Lots 14 and 20. This

open space includes a play structure, a shade sail, benches, BBQ and picnic tables. 
The passive open space area will be situated between Lots 6 and 7 and will include

benches, turf, and panoramic views out to the south and east. Bike racks will be located

at the active open space area, the passive open area and adjacent to the parking area
near Lot 13. 

The Community will have broader setbacks from the public streets with enhanced
landscaping. The setbacks will vary to create a more interesting building edge along
the public streets, including over thirty street trees and landscaped slope areas. In

addition, there will be a sidewalk that connects the current Palm Street cul de sac to

Palm Street along the western boundary adjacent to the Liberty Charter School_ 

Thehomes will have articulated elevations with appropriate and consistent details that

reflect the varied design styles of the elevations on all sides of the homes. These

details include shutters, siding, out -lookers, knee braces and glass balcony guardrails. 

The homes will have three ( 3) different elevation styles, including Spanish Revival, 
Craftsman and Coastal Cottage -- each with varying materials and five ( 5) distinct color
schemes The roofs are varied with both flat and barrel tile. The intent is to have our

new community blend into the existing fabric of the surrounding neighborhood, yet with
a fresh and updated appeal. 

Thebuilding elevations also have varying heights, from two stories at 24 feet and three
stories at 33 feet These heights are in concert with the expanded street setbacks and

are offset from many of the building planes- In addition, the homes have an abundance

of covered front porches, patios, covered and uncovered decks and balconies that

create additional outdoor living space for the homeowners to enjoy. 

M



To accommodate additional bicycle storage, each home will be equipped with bicycle

racks or hooks in the private two car garages. To keep the neighborhood common area
free from large, unsightly trash dumpsters, all of the trash and recycling bins will have a
storage space within the confines of each garage. 

The homes will exceed the minimum green standards with energy efficient materials
such as windows, roof materials and insulation. The heating and air- conditioning units
will be high efficiency, meeting or exceeding the Title 24 requirements. High efficiency
plumbing fixtures, fittings and tank -less water heaters will be standard, Energy Star
appliances and LED lighting fixtures will be included as standard features for resource
conservation. 

The landscape is designed with drought tolerant plants and frees with efficient irrigation

systems. The streetscape will be enhanced along the three ( 3) public streets abutting
the community with a significant number of tree canopies. 

There are a total of five ( 5) Equivalent Benefits per Code 17. 28. 030 and four ( 4) 

Additional and Enhanced Benefits included with in our project submittal- Most of these

benefits have been articulated in this narrative. A complete list is located on the front

page of the Tentative Map. 

In addition, three ( 3) significant power poles and approximately 400 feet of overhead
electric lines will be undergrounded as a part of the overall project design enhancing the
view for all the residents in this area of the City. 

We look forward to the Vista Azul project being approved by the Lemon Grove City
Council and becoming a beautiful addition to the Palm Street and Camino de las
Palmas neighborhoods. Thank you. 

Sincere

Chris Dahrl ing
Vista Azul, LLC

Member

88' 



EXHIBIT " A" - PROJECT PLANS

Attachment J

I



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 3_........................ 
Mtg. Date October 4, 2016 ............ 

Dept. Finance Office

Item Title: Revised General Fund Reserve Policy. 

Staff Contact: Gilbert Rojas, Interim Finance Director

Recommendation: 

Adopt the attached revising the General Fund Reserve Policy. 

Item Summary: 

On June 5, 2012, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 3111 which approved a General Reserve
Policy. This policy was to ensure that the City maintained an appropriate reserve fund. The reserve
was set at a goal of 25% of General Fund operating expenditures. However in recent years one time
purchases have routinely been budgeted from the reserve fund. During FY 16- 17 budget adoption
staff recommended that the reserve policy be updated to allow for the reserve fund to be used only
for an economic emergency or a catastrophic event. One time expenditures will be budgeted each
year in the non -departmental fund. 

The revised policy will only allow transfers from the Reserve Fund by City Council Resolution that
address repayment of the funds ( if under the 25% threshold). The policy revision will assist the City
Council and the public in identifying the reserve funds. 

Fiscal Impact: 

No fiscal impact with the revision of the reserve policy. 

Environmental Review: 

X Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section

Public Information: 

X None  Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

Resolution

Negative Declaration

Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners within 300 ft

Neighborhood meeting



Attachment A

RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA
APPROVING THE REVISED GENERAL FUND RESERVE POLICY

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove recognizes the fiscal prudence

of protecting reserve funds for the general operation of the City in the event of a natural disaster, 

an economic crisis or an unforeseen capital expenditure; and

WHEREAS, an established General Fund Reserve Policy will help ensure that the City
maintains an appropriate reserve; and

and

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted the General Fund Reserve Policy on June 5, 2012; 

WHEREAS, the revised policy eliminates the operating reserve fund that funds one time
expenditures. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, 

California' 'hereby approves the revised General Fund Reserve Policy ( Exhibit 1.) 



Background

The Government Finance Officers Association ( GFOA), an organization that promotes the

professional financial management of governments for the public interest, recommends that
local governments establish a reserve and maintain this reserve by adopting a formal policy for
administration. 

Purpose

To maintain the City' s credit rating and meet seasonal cash flow shortfalls, economic
downturns or a local disaster, the City Council shall establish a contingency reserve equal to
25% or more of the General Fund adopted operating budget. 

The contingency reserve may be used at the discretion of the City Council to: 

Provide temporary resources in the event of an economic downturn while expenditure
reductions are implemented. 

Provide resources to meet emergency expenditures in case of flood, fire, earthquake or
other disasters. 

Provide resources for an unforeseen capital expenditure. 

Administration

The City will establish a separate Fund ( 06) within the City' s internal books to account for this
Reserve Fund. All disbursements and replenishments will be accomplished as Inter -fund
transfers. The Reserve fund will be combined with the General Fund for Financial Statements. It
is important to clearly demonstrate the actual Reserve amount to the general public. 

Year End

General Fund surpluses at Fiscal Year- end will be divided in half. Half will be transferred to the
Reserve Fund, with the remaining half to be used at City Council discretion for one- time
expenditures. The Pension Liability Fund ( 04) and/ or Capital Reserve ( 32) are two possible uses
for one- time expenditures. 

Transfers

The use of the reserves shall be accomplished only by City Council Resolution. The City Resolution
will direct which City Fund ( entity) will receive an inter -fund transfer from the Reserve Fund. The
Resolution will also include information regarding the plan and timeframe for replenishment of
the Reserve provided the Reserve is below the minimum requirement. 

Adopted June 5, 2012

Amended October 4, 2016

3- 


